] AMENDED
Putting
Sacramento 2

Childr BOARD OF EDUCATION
citynified | Children
School District| ] 't MEETING AND WORKSHOP

Board of Education Members Thursday, March 7, 2024
Lavinia Grace Phillips, President (Trustee Area 7) X .

Jasjit Singh, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 4:30 p.m. Closed Sesszlon
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 6:30 p.m. Open Session

Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1)
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3)

Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) ) Serna Center
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) Community COnfel”el’lChe Rooms
Liliana Miller Segura, Student Member 5735 47" Avenue

Sacramento, CA 95824

AGENDA
2023/24-19

Allotted Time
4:30p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION/CALL TO ORDER /ROLL CALL

2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

3.0 CLOSED SESSION

While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also
recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye. Closed session
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope. They primarily involve personnel issues, pending
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.

3.1  Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel:
a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government
Code section 54956.9 (Four Potential Cases)

3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA
SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management
(Cancy McArn)

3.3 Government Code 54957 — Public Employee
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint

3.4  Government Code 54957- Public Employee Appointment
a) Approve - Assistant Superintendent, Facility Support Services
b) Approve — Principal, Father Keith B. Kenny

3.5  Government Code Section 54957—Public Employee Employment
(Positions: Superintendent, Deputy Superintendent)
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6:30 p.m.

6:35 p.m.

6:40 p.m.

6:45 p.m.

7:00 p.m.

7:27 p.m.

4.0

5.0

6.0
7.0

8.0

3.6  Government Code Section 5495 7—Public Employee Performance Evaluation—
Interim Superintendent, Interim Deputy Superintendent

CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance
4.2 Broadcast Statement

4.3  Stellar Student introduced by Board Member Jasjit Singh

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

AGENDA ADOPTION

PUBLIC COMMENT 15 minutes

Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter
Jjurisdiction of the Board. Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2)
submitted in writing through the district’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or

(3) provided in-person at the meeting. The submission deadline for written public comments shall be no
later than noon on the day of the meeting. If you intend to address the Board in-person, please fill out a
yellow card available at the entrance. Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or

grouped by subject area. We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15
minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard. By law, the Board is allowed
to take action only on items on the agenda. The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district

staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.

COMMUNICATIONS
8.1 Employee Organization Reports:

= SCTA4

= SEIU

= TCS

= Teamsters

= UPE

8.2 District Advisory Committees:

» Student Advisory Council

»  Community Advisory Committee

» District English Learner Advisory Committee

» Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee
» Black/African American Advisory Board

= Community Schools Advisory Committee

= Native American Parent Committee
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Information

SCTA — 15 minutes
SEIU — 3 minutes
TCS — 3 minutes
Teamsters — 3 minutes
UPE — 3 minutes

Information
3 minutes each



7:48 p.m.

8:08 p.m.

8:18 p.m.

8:33 p.m.

8:48 p.m.

9:08 p.m.

9:13 p.m.

9:18 p.m.

9:23 p.m.

9:33 p.m.

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

9.1  Actualizing English Learner Reclassification: Success and
Opportunities for Emergent Bilingual Students in SCUSD
(Dr. Olga Simms)

PUBLIC HEARING

10.1  Public Hearing: AB 1200 Public Disclosure and Approval

of MOU between SCUSD and SCTA (Janea Marking)

BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC INITIATIVE

11.1  Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June
30, 2023, Submitted by Crowe LLP (Janea Marking)

11.2  2023-24 Second Interim Financial Report
(Janea Marking)

11.3  Early Learning and Care Update (Dr. E’leva Gibson)

COMMUNICATIONS

12.1  Superintendent’s Report (Lisa Allen)

12.2  President’s Report (Lavinia Grace Phillips)

12.3  Student Member Report (Liliana Miller Segura)

12.4  Information Sharing by Board Members

13.0 CONSENT AGENDA

Information
15 minute presentation
5 minute discussion

Public Hearing/Action
5 minute presentation
5 minute discussion

Conference/Action
10 minute presentation
5 minute discussion

Conference/Action
10 minute presentation
5 minute discussion

Information
15 minute presentation
5 minute discussion

Information
5 minutes

Information
5 minutes

Information
5 minutes

Information
10 minutes

Action
2 minutes

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion. The Superintendent or a Board
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately.

13.1 Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session:

13.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of Other
Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus Materials

and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion

(Janea Marking)
13.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn)

13.1c Approve Donations to the District (Janea Marking)
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9:35 p.m.

9:37 p.m.

9:39 p.m.

14.0

15.0

16.0

13.1d Approve Resolution No. 3389 Declaring Futility of Competitive Bidding for
Procurement of Electronic Billboard and Transit Shelter Marketing from Clear
Channel Outdoor and Authorize Purchase of Electronic Billboard and Transit
Shelter Marketing from Clear Channel in the amount of $152,826.56
(Janea Marking)

13.1e Approve Minutes for the January 18, 2024 Regular Board of Education Meeting
(Lisa Allen)

13.1f Approve Minutes for the February 1, 2024 Regular Board of Education Meeting
(Lisa Allen)

13.1g Approve Albert Einstein field trip to Washington DC and New York City from
March 20-25, 2024 (Lisa Allen)

13.1h Approve John F. Kennedy field trip to New Orleans, LA April 4, 2024 (Lisa Allen)

13.1i Approve Miwok Middle field trip to Washington, D.C March 21, 2024 (Lisa Allen)

13.1j Approve Resolution No. 3390 Authorizing to Accept Termination of Leases and
Quit Claim Deed for the Hiram Johnson High School Stadium Lighting /
Bleachers / Concession Restroom Buildings Project (Janea Marking)

13.1k Approve Appointment of Board Member Tara Jeane to the California School

Board Association (CSBA) Delegate Assembly (Board President Lavinia Grace
Phillips)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information

14.1 Sacramento County Annual Investment Policy of the Pooled Investment Fund —
Calendar Year 2024 (Janea Marking)

FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS

v’ March 21, 2024, 5:00 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,

5735 47" Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting

v" April 4, 2024, 5:00 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,

5735 47" Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting

ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the
public meeting process. If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to
accommodate you. [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education relating to an open session item will be available for public
inspection at the Serna Center, at 5735 47" Avenue, Sacramento, during normal business hours or on the District’s
website at www.scusd.edu.
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Sacramento SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City Uniﬁed. BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District

Agenda ltem#9.1

Meeting Date: March 7, 2023

Subject: Actualizing English Learner Reclassification: Success and
Opportunities for Emergent Bilingual Students in SCUSD

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

ooooooXx

Division: Multilingual Literacy Department

Recommendation: Informational Item Only

Background/Rationale: Districts in the state of California are required to adhere to the
policy enacted to serve English learners and their families. The California English
Learner Roadmap State Board of Education Policy enacted in 2017 explicitly focuses on
the improvement of the educational system, the quality of teaching and learning, and
educational outcomes. It centers on standards, curriculum frameworks, assessments
and accountability, educator quality, early childhood/preschool, social and family support
services, parent/community involvement, and higher education. The EL Roadmap,
Principal #4 underscores the importance of aligning practices and pathways across
grade levels and educational segments, beginning with TK and continuing through the
reclassification process to graduation and beyond (EL Roadmap, 2017).

According to Education Code Section 313(f)(1-4), each Local Education Agency (LEA),
must reclassify English learners as proficient in English by using a process and criteria
that include, but are not limited to: a) assessment of ELP (i.e.,ELPAC); b) teacher
evaluation; c) parent opinion; and d) comparison of student’s performance skills against
an empirically established range of performance in basic skills (i.e., iReady ELA or
CAASPP ELA). Additionally, each LEA must monitor reclassified students for an
additional four years to ensure correct classification, placement, and additional
academic support as needed (20 U.S.C. Section 6841[a][4][5]; 5 CCR Section 11304).



Financial Considerations: The District’s Title Ill English Learner and Immigrant
allocations include support to increase opportunities for reclassification. Each school is
responsible for addressing English learner reclassification and follow the criteria
established by the district (i.e. Title |, LCFF EL and LCFF Free and Reduced).

LCAP Goal(s):

Goal 1- College and Career Readiness

Goal 2- Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for
ALL students

Goal 6: Provide Students with Multi-Tiered Systems of Support

Documents Attached:

1. California English Learner Roadmap State Board of Education Policy: Educational Programs
and Services for English Learners
2. English Learner Program Instrument

3. CA Practitioners Guide for Educating English Learners with Disabilities
2022-2023 Local Control A

Estimated Time of Presentation: 15 minutes

Submitted by: (Yvonne Wright,Chief Academic Officer; Dr. Olga L.
Simmes, Multilingual Literacy Director)

Approved by: Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent



https://www.cde.ca.gov/SP/el/rm/index.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/SP/el/rm/index.asp
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1B1Yup8wuZAgILZAh3MBRuFtjJSnhdPrf/edit
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/ac/documents/ab2785guide.pdf
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/2023_local_control_and_accountability_plan_sacramento_city_unified_school_district_20230918.pdf?1695067419
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Sacramento BOARD OF EDUCATION
City Unified
School District Agenda ltem#_10.1

Meeting Date: March 7, 2024

Subject: Public Hearing: AB 1200 Public Disclosure and Approval of MOU

(|

between SCUSD and the Sacramento City Teachers Association

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

Division: Labor Relations; Business Services

Recommendation: Approve agreement between SCUSD and SCTA for the 2023-24

and 2024-25 year.

Background/Rationale: The parties’ agreement is effective beginning July 1, 2023

and includes the following items:

A 6% salary schedule increase for all SCTA employees retroactive to July 1,
2023; The amount is calculated as 4% plus reallocated 2% from pre-funding
retiree health insurance contribution (OPEB);

A 2% salary schedule increase for all SCTA employees effective July 1, 2024;
Amendments to Article 8, Transfers — Effective upon ratification by both parties;
Amendments to Article 12, Compensation — Effective July 1, 2023 unless
otherwise noted;

Amendments to Article 17, Class Sizes — Effective July 1, 2024 unless otherwise
noted;

Amendments to Article 13, paragraph 13.18(B) to remove the required OPEB
trust contribution; the parties acknowledge that the savings achieved from this
amendment were used to increase the 2023-24 compensation from 4% to 6% as
outlined in the first bullet point above.

The attached agreement closes all negotiations for the period from July 1, 2023 to June
30, 2025.
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Financial Considerations: Projected costs for all funds for the 2023-24 fiscal year of
$20,060,532; projected costs for all funds for the fiscal year 2024-25 of $35,851,853;
and projected costs for all funds for the fiscal year 2025-26 of $35,398,875.

LCAP Goals: College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy
and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence.

Documents Attached:
e AB 1200 Disclosure
¢ MOU between SCUSD and SCTA

Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 Minutes

Submitted by: Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operation
Officer

Approved by: Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent
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PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF PROPOSED COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
in accordance with AB 1200 (Chapter 1213/Statutes 1991), AB 2756 (Chapter 52/Statutes 2004), GC 3547.5

Name of School District:

Sacramento City Unified School District

Name of Bargaining Unit:

Sacramento City Teachers Association

Certificated, Classified, Other:

Certificated

The proposed agreement covers the period beginning:

July 1, 2023

and ending:

June 30, 2025

The Governing Board will act upon this agreement on:

(date)
March 7, 2024

(date)

(date)

Note: This form, along with a copy of the proposed agreement, must be submitted to the County Office at least
ten (10) working days prior to the date the Governing Board will take action.

A. Proposed Change in Compensation

Bargaining Unit Compensation

Fiscal Impact of Proposed Agreement
(Complete Years 2 and 3 multiyear and overlapping agreements and Step & Column

increases)
All Funds - Combined Annual Cost Prior to Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Proposed Settlement | Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
1. [Salary Schedule $ 269,704,424 | $ 16,429,592 | § 26,936,363 | $ 26,565,373
Including Step and Column
6.09% 9.41% 8.49%
2. |Other Compensation $ - 19 -1$ -1 -
Stipends, Bonuses, Longevity, Overtime,
Differential, Callback or Standby Pay, etc.
Description of Other Compensation
3. |Statutory Benefits - STRS, PERS, $ 77,697,910 | $ 3,630,940 | $ 6,180,548 | $ 6,098,560
FICA, WC, Ul, Medicare, etc.
4.67% 7.60% 6.97%
4. |Health/Welfare Plans $ 55,363,230 | $ - |93 2,734,942 [ $ 2,734,942
0.00% 4.94% 4.71%
5. [Total Bargaining Unit Compensation | $ 402,765,564 | $ 20,060,532 | $ 35,851,853 | $ 35,398,875
Add Items 1 through 4 to equal 5
4.98% 8.48% 7.72%
6. |Total Number of Bargaining Unit 2,398.13
Employees (Use FTEs if appropriate)
7. |Total Compensation Average Cost per | $ 167,950 $ 8,365| $ 14,950 $ 14,761
Bargaining Unit Employee
4.98% 8.48% 7.72%)




Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 2
A. Proposed Change in Compensation (Continued)

8. What was the negotiated percentage change? For example, if the change in "Year 1" was for less than a full
year, what is the annualized percentage of that change for "Year 1"?

The parties agree to a 6% salary schedule increase effective July 1, 2023 for fiscal year 2023-24, and an
additional 2% Salary schedule increase effective July 1, 2024 for the 2024-25 fiscal year. Additionally, the
parties agreed to lower class sizes for grades 4-6, special education release days for two years, additional
librarian staffing, increases to the designated teacher stipends, and additional instructional aide support for

9. Were any additional steps, columns, or ranges added to the salary schedules? (If yes, please explain.)

Other adjustments include additional direct nursing staffing and behavioral intervention specialist positions but
projected costs are expected to be offset by the a reduction to contracted services.

10. Please include comments and explanations as necessary. (If more room is necessary, please attach an
additional sheet.)

Class size reduction, librarian staffing, and additional instructional aide support to be effective for the 2024-25
fiscal year.

11. Does this bargaining unit have a negotiated cap for Health and Welfare Yes|:| No
benefits?
If yes, please describe the cap amount.

B. Proposed negotiated changes in noncompensation items (i.c., class size adjustments, staff development days,
teacher prep time, classified staffing ratios, etc.)

Class size adjustments for grades 4-6 from 33 to 30 effective in 2024-25, increases in librarian staffing for
secondary school sites effective in 2024-25, 2 special education teacher release days for 2023-24 and 3 for 2024-
25, and additional instructional aide support for mild/mod special education classrooms from 1 aide to 2 aides
effective 2024-25.

C. What are the specific impacts (positive or negative) on instructional and support programs to
accommodate the settlement? Include the impact of changes such as staff reductions or increases, program
reductions or increases, elimination or expansion of other services or programs (i.e., counselors, librarians,
custodial staff, etc.)

The AB1200 reflects reductions to categorical program budgets for materials/supplies and operating costs.
Additional adjustments will be made in the current year and two subsequent fiscal years as continued strategic
planning and budget discussions occur. Additionally, a portion of the ongoing salary increase is to be funded
from reductions to the district's OPEB contribution to the SCTA OPEB trust account.



Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 3

D. What contingency language is included in the proposed agreement (e.g., reopeners, etc.)?

NA

E. Identify other major provisions that do not directly affect the district's costs, such as binding arbitrations,
grievance procedures, etc.

Other provisions of the agreement include the parties agreeing to settle pending unfair labor practice charges.

F. Source of Funding for Proposed Agreement:
1. Current Year

The ongoing cost is to be funded using ESSER funds in year 1, and using a split of unrestricted and restricted funds
from the 2024-25 year onward. Additional, a portion of the ongoing salary increase is to be funded from reductions to
the district's OPEB contribution to the SCTA OPEB trust account.

2. Ifthis is a single year agreement, how will the ongoing cost of the proposed agreement be funded in
subsequent years?

NA

3. If this is a multiyear agreement, what is the source of funding, including assumptions used, to fund these
obligations in subsequent years? (Remember to include compounding effects in meeting obligations.)

The ongoing cost is to be funded using ESSER funds in year 1, and using a split of unrestricted and restricted funds
from the 2024-25 year onward. Additionally, a portion of the ongoing salary increase is to be funded from reductions
to the district's OPEB contribution to the SCTA OPEB trust account.



Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4a
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Unrestricted General Fund
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 500,312,508 $ - |$ 500,312,508
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ - $ - |8 -
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 12,144,270 $ - |$ 12,144,270
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 4,365,410 $ - |$ 4,365,410
TOTAL REVENUES $ 516,822,188 $ - |$ 516,822,188
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 213,630,890 | $ 3,561,488 | $ 4,357,498 | $ 221,549,876
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 51,334,360 | $ - |8 4,050,737 | $ 55,385,097
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 137,484,805 | $ 787,089 | $ (1,289,067) | $ 136,982,827
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 8,706,896 $ -3 8,706,896
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | $ 33,261,622 $ - $ 33,261,622
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 1,527,015 $ - 19 1,527,015
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ 1,510,300 $ - |$ 1,510,300
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ (8,411,792) $ - 19 (8,411,792)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 439,044,097 | $ 4,348,577 | $ 7,119,168 | $ 450,511,842
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ 2,475,399 | $ - |8 - |8 2,475,399
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - |$ - |$ - |8 -
Contributions 8980-8999 [ §  (122,013,844)( $ (301,985) $  (122,315,829)
(OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (41,760,354) | $ (4,650,562) | $ (7,119,168) | $ (53,530,084)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 135,640,173 $ 135,640,173
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 93,879,819 | $ (4,650,562) | $ (7,119,168) | $ 82,110,089
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ 325,000 | $ - |8 - 1S 325,000
Restricted 9740
Committed 9750-9760 | $ 10,000,000 | $ - 13 (10,000,000) | $ -
Assigned 9780 $ - |8 - |8 - |8 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ 16,621,485 | $ - |8 235,394 | $ 16,856,879
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 66,933,334 | $ (4,650,562) | $ 2,645,438 | $ 64,928,210

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive




Sacramento City Unified School District

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4b
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Restricted General Fund
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 2,478,216 $ - 19 2,478,216
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 141,267,968 $ - 1% 141,267,968
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 111,594,017 $ - |$ 111,594,017
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 3,852,936 $ - |$ 3,852,936
TOTAL REVENUES $ 259,193,137 $ - |$ 259,193,137
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 88,604,422 | § 11,959,782 | $ 686,381 | $ 101,250,585
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 38,920,725 | $ - 13 1,987,525 ( $ 40,908,250
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 91,229,242 | $ 2,643,111 | $ 776,159 | $ 94,648,512
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 50,939,113 $ (8,875,486) | $ 42,063,627
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | § 102,908,464 $ (8,875,486) | $ 94,032,978
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 14,660,255 $ - |3 14,660,255
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ - $ - |8 -
JAQD TAOQQ
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ 7,243,324 $ - $ 7,243,324
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 394,505,544 | $ 14,602,893 | $ (14,300,907) | $ 394,807,530
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES $ =
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - 1S - 13 - 13 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - 13 - 13 - 13 -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ 122,013,844 | $ 301,985 | $ - |8 122,315,829
(OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (13,298,562) | $ (14,300,908) | $ 14,300,907 | $ (13,298,563)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 122,292,561 $ 122,292,561
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 108,993,999 | $ (14,300,908) | $ 14,300,907 | $ 108,993,998
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ - |8 - |8 - |8 -
Restricted 9740 $ 108,993,999 | $ - |8 1S 108,993,998
Committed 9750-9760
Assigned Amounts 9780
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - 13 - 13 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ - 1S (14,300,908) [ $ 14,300,908 | $ -

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive



Sacramento City Unified School District

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4c
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Combined General Fund
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement [ (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 14+2+3)
(12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 502,790,724 $ - |8 502,790,724
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 141,267,968 $ - 13 141,267,968
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 123,738,287 $ -8 123,738,287
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 8,218,346 $ - 1S 8,218,346
TOTAL REVENUES $ 776,015,325 $ - |8 776,015,325
[EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 302,235,312 | $ 15,521,270 | $ 5,043,879 | $ 322,800,461
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 90,255,085 | $ -8 6,038,262 | $ 96,293,347
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 228,714,048 | $ 3,430,200 | $ (512,908) | $ 231,631,340
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 59,646,009 $ (8,875,486) | $ 50,770,523
Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 | $ 136,170,086 $ (8,875,486) | $ 127,294,600
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 16,187,269 $ - |8 16,187,269
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ 1,510,300 $ - 1S 1,510,300
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ (1,168,468) $ - |8 (1,168,468)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 833,549,641 | $ 18,951,470 | $ (7,181,739) [ $ 845,319,372
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfer In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ 2,475,399 | $ -8 - 1S 2,475,399
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ -3 -8 -8 -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ - $ - S - $ -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (55,058,916) | $ (18,951,470)| $ 7,181,739 | $ (66,828,647)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 257,932,735 $ 257,932,735
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - $ -
[ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 202,873,818 | $ (18,951,470) | $ 7,181,739 | $ 191,104,087
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ 325,000 | $ - 18 - |8 325,000
Restricted 9740 $ 108,993,999 | $ - 1% Ml 108,993,998
Committed 9750-9760 | $ 10,000,000 | $ - 1% (10,000,000) | $ -
Assigned 9780 $ - |$ - |3 - |8 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ 16,621,485 | $ -8 235394 $ 16,856,879
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 66,933,334 | $ (18,951,470) | $ 16,946,346 | $ 64,928,210

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive



Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4d
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(As of 12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 1,255,196 $ - |8 1,255,196
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 2,658,057 $ - |8 2,658,057
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 2,992,564 $ - s 2,992,564
TOTAL REVENUES $ 6,905,817 $ - 1S 6,905,817
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 2,363,069 | $ 118,264 | $ 78,398 | $ 2,559,731
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 1,338,415 | $ - |3 43,032 | $ 1,381,447
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 2,286,870 | $ 26,136 | $ 30,888 | $ 2,343,894
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 652,229 $ - 1S 652,229
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | $ 668,388 $ - |3 668,388
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ - $ - |8 -
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ - $ - |8 -
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ 61,913 $ - s 61,913
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 7,370,884 | $ 144,400 | $ 152,318 | $ 7,667,602
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (465,066) [ $ (144,400)( $ (152,318) $ (761,784)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 1,061,008 $ 1,061,008
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 595,942 | $ (144,400)( $ (152,318)( $ 299,224
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Restricted 9740 $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Committed 9750-9760 | $ - |3 - 13 - |3 -
Assigned 9780 |$ - |3 - 13 - |3 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 595,942 | $ (144,400)( $ (152,318) $ 299,224

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM




Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4e
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Fund 12 - Child Development Fund
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 7,181,688 $ - s 7,181,688
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 9,318,614 $ - s 9,318,614
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 1,261,405 $ - |3 1,261,405
TOTAL REVENUES $ 17,761,708 $ - |$ 17,761,708
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 4,755,085 | $ 252,371 | $ 28,958 | $ 5,036,414
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 2,687,162 | $ - |8 - 1S 2,687,162
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 5,667,990 | $ 55,774 | $ 6,434 | $ 5,730,198
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 2,432,122 $ - |8 2,432,122
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | $ 322,919 $ - |3 322,919
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ - $ - |8 -
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ - $ - |8 -
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ 432,543 $ - s 432,543
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 16,297,820 | $ 308,145 | $ 35392 1% 16,641,357
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ 1,463,888 | $ (308,145) $ (35,392)| $ 1,120,351
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 1,239,859 $ 1,239,859
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 2,703,746 | $ (308,145)( $ (35,392)| $ 2,360,209
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Restricted 9740 $ 2,457,829 | $ - |8 - 1S 2,457,829
Committed 9750-9760 | $ - |3 - 13 - |3 -
Assigned 9780 $ 245917 | $ (35,392)| $ - |8 210,525
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ - |3 (272,753)( $ (35,392) $ (308,145)

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM




Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4f
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Fund 13/61 - Cafeteria Fund
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ - $ - s -
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 30,958,922 $ - s 30,958,922
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 4,049,024 $ - s 4,049,024
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 638,600 $ - |3 638,600
TOTAL REVENUES $ 35,646,546 $ - S 35,646,546
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 10,211,104 | $ - 1S 259,578 | $ 10,470,682
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 7,839,001 | $ - 1S 88,924 | $ 7,927,925
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 15,117,329 $ - |8 15,117,329
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | $ 714,207 $ - |3 714,207
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 813,078 $ - 1S 813,078
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ - $ - s -
400 7400
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ 674,012 $ - s 674,012
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 35,368,731 | $ - |8 348,502 | $ 35,717,233
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ 277,815 $ - 1S (348,502)( $ (70,687)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 18,388,342 $ 18,388,342
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 18,666,157 | $ - 1S (348,502) $ 18,317,655
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Restricted 9740 $ 18,439,707 | $ (357,634)( $ - 1S 18,082,073
Committed 9750-9760 | $ - |$ - |$ - |8 -
Assigned 9780 $ 226,450 | $ - 1S - 1S 226,450
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - |3 - |3 - |3 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ - 13 357,634 1% (348,502)| $ 9,132

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive



Sacramento City Unified School District
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Page 4h
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Enter Fund: Charter Fund 09
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 702,633 $ - 13 702,633
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 20,375,073 $ - |8 20,375,073
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ - $ - 13 -
TOTAL REVENUES $ 21,077,706 $ - 1% 21,077,706
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 9,762,074 | $ 537,688 | $ - 13 10,299,762
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 1,143,823 [ $ - 1S - |8 1,143,823
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 6,140,145 | $ 118,829 | $ - 13 6,258,974
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 1,266,205 $ - |8 1,266,205
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | $ 2,093,492 $ -8 2,093,492
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 183,608 $ - 1% 183,608
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ - $ -8 -
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ - $ - 13 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 20,589,348 | $ 656,517 | $ - 1% 21,245,865
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - 13 - 13 - 13 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ 2,475,399 | $ - 1S - |8 2,475,399
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (1,987,041) [ $ (656,517)| $ - |3 (2,643,558)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 15,520,269 $ 15,520,269
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ - $ -
[ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 13,533,228 | $ (656,517)| $ - 1% 12,876,711
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 97119719 | $ - |8 -8 -8 -
Restricted 9740 $ 6,941,246 | $ - |8 - 1% 6,941,246
Committed 9750-9760 | $ - 18 -8 - |3 -
Assigned 9780 $ 6,591,982 | $ - |8 - 1% 6,591,982
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - 13 - 13 - 13 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ QIR (656,517)| $ -8 (656,517)

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive



Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4g
G. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
Enter Fund: Building Fund Fund 21
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
Latest Board- Adjustments as a Other Revisions Total Revised
Approved Budget | Result of Settlement | (agreement support Budget
Before Settlement (compensation) and/or other unit (Columns 1+2+3)
(12/15/23) agreement)
Object Code Explain on Page 4i
REVENUES
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ - $ - |8 -
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ - $ - 13 -
Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 | $ 4,711,219 $ - |8 4,711,219
TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,711,219 $ - 13 4,711,219
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ -3 - 1S - |8 -
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 837,386 | $ - 13 97,470 | $ 934,856
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 508,990 | $ - 1S 33,898 | $ 542,888
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 2,168,774 $ - 13 2,168,774
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | $ 2,523,222 $ - 13 2,523,222
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 170,126,010 $ - |3 170,126,010
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ - $ - 1% -
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ - $ - |8 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 176,164,382 | $ - |8 131,368 | $ 176,295,750
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ 1,293,465 | $ - 1S - |8 1,293,465
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - 13 - 13 - 13 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (170,159,698) | $ - |8 (131,368) [ $  (170,291,066)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 277,090,337 $ 277,090,337
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | § - $ -
[ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 106,930,640 | $ - |3 (131,368) | $ 106,799,272
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | § - 13 - 13 - 13 -
Restricted 9740 $ 106,930,640 | $ (131,368) | $ - |3 106,799,272
Committed 9750-9760 | $ - |$ - |8 - |3 -
Assigned 9780 $ - 13 - 13 - 13 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - 13 - |8 - |3 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ -8 131,368 | $ (131,368) | $ -

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

NOTE: 9790 amounts in Columns 1 and 4 must be positive




Sacramento City Unified School District
Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 4i
Explanations for Column 3 "Other Revisions' entered on Pages 4a through 4h:
Page 4a: Unrestricted General Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ 7,119,168 Projected total cost of other settlement agreements including UPE, Teamst
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -
Page 4b: Restricted General Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ (14,300,907) Reductions to books/operating costs to offset increase in salaries/benefits.
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -
Page 4d: Fund 11 - Adult Education Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ 152,318
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -
Page 4e: Fund 12 - Child Development Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ 35,392
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -
Page 4f: Fund 13/61 - Cafeteria Fund Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ 348,502
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -
Page 4g: Other Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ 131,368
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -
Page 4h: Other Amount Explanation
Revenues $ -
Expenditures $ -
Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -

Additional Comments:



Sacramento City Unified School District
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Page 5a
H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS
Unrestricted General Fund MYP
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Total Revised Budget After

First Subsequent Year After

Second Subsequent Year

Object Code Settlement Settlement After Settlement
REVENUES

LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | § 500,312,508 | $ 501,672,557 | $ 505,297,188

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ - 13 S -

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 [ § 12,144,270 | $ 16,034,263 | $ 16,034,263

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 4,365,410 | $ 4,365,410 | $ 4,365,410
TOTAL REVENUES $ 516,822,188 | $ 522,072,230 | $ 525,696,861
EXPENDITURES

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 221,549,876 | $ 219,590,644 | $ 221,873,119

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 55,385,097  § 51,299,940 | § 51,644,862

Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 136,982,827 | $ 145,035,908 | $ 151,600,188

Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 8,706,896 | $ 8,706,896 | $ 8,791,123

Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 | $ 33,261,622 | $ 31,738,233 | $ 31,822,459

Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 1,527,015 § 86,073  § 86,073

Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ 1,510,300 | $ 1,510,300 | $ 1,510,300

7400-7499

Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ (8,411,792)| $ (6,815,513)| $ (7,109,051)

Other Adjustments
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 450,511,842 | $ 451,152,481 | $ 460,219,072
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ 2,475399 | $ 2,475,399 | § 2,475,399

Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ -

Contributions 8980-8999 | § (122,315,829)| $ (132,831,015)| $ (141,675,805)
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (53,530,084)| $ (59,435,867)| $ (73,722,617)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 135,640,173 | $ 82,110,089 [ § 22,674,222

Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 82,110,089 [ § 22,674,222 | $ (51,048,395)
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:

Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ 325,000 | $ 325,000 | $ 325,000

Restricted 9740

Committed 9750-9760 | $ - 18 - |3 -

Assigned 9780 $ - 193 - |3 -

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ 16,856,879 | $ 15,498,356 | $ 14,860,363

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 64,928,210 | $ 6,850,866 | $ (66,233,758)

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive




Sacramento City Unified School District
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Page 5b
H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS
Restricted General Fund MYP
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
Total Revised Budget After|First Subsequent Year After] Second Subsequent Year
Object Code Settlement Settlement After Settlement
REVENUES
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 2,478,216 | $ 2,478,216 | $ 2,478,216
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 141,267,968 | $ 39,116,752 | $ 39,116,752
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 111,594,017 | $ 99,259,198 | $ 99,259,198
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 3,852,936 | $ 2,308,318 | $ 2,308,318
TOTAL REVENUES $ 259,193,137 | $ 143,162,484 | $ 143,162,484
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 101,250,585 | $ 90,144,489 | $ 73,618,848
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 40,908,250 | $ 37,951,408 | $ 29,052,874
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 94,648,512 | $ 95,717,201 | $ 83,937,915
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 42,063,627 | $ 14,959,374 | $ 10,015,316
Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 | $ 94,032,978 | $ 82,660,537 | $ 85,496,661
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 14,660,255 | $ 1,754,811 | $ 1,754,811
Other Outgo (excluding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ - |$ - |$ -
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ 7,243,324 | $ 5,647,045 | $ 5,940,583
Other Adjustments $ (2,594,144) | $ (4,542,517)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 394,807,530 | $ 326,240,719 | $ 285,274,489
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ - 18 - 18 -
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - 18 - 18 -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ 122,315,829 | $ 132,831,015 | $ 141,675,805
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (13,298,563) | $ (50,247,220) | $ (436,200)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 122,292,561 | $ 108,993,998 | $ 58,746,778
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 108,993,998 | $ 58,746,778 | $ 58,310,577
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ - |$ - |8 -
Restricted 9740 $ 108,993,998 | $ 58,746,778 | $ 58,310,577
Committed 9750-9760
Assigned 9780
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ - 18 - 18 -
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ - |38 - |38 -

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive
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Page 5c
H. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON SUBSEQUENT YEARS
Combined General Fund MYP
Bargaining Unit: Sacramento City Teachers Association
2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
Total Revised Budget After| First Subsequent Year Second Subsequent Year
. Settlement After Settlement After Settlement
Object Code
REVENUES
LCFF Revenue 8010-8099 | $ 502,790,724 | $ 504,150,773 | $ 507,775,404
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | $ 141,267,968 | $ 39,116,752 | $ 39,116,752
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | $ 123,738,287 | $ 115,293,461 | $ 115,293,461
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 | $ 8,218,346 | $ 6,673,728 | $ 6,673,728
TOTAL REVENUES $ 776,015,325 | $ 665,234,714 | $ 668,859,345
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | $ 322,800,461 | $ 309,735,133 | $ 295,491,967
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | $ 96,293,347 | $ 89,251,348 | $ 80,697,736
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | $ 231,631,340 | $ 240,753,109 | $ 235,538,103
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | $ 50,770,523 | $ 23,666,270 | $ 18,806,438
Services and Other Operating Expenditures ~ 5000-5999 | $ 127,294,600 | $ 114,398,770 | $ 117,319,120
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | $ 16,187,269 | $ 1,840,884 | $ 1,840,884
Other Outgo (excuding Indirect Costs) 7100-7299 | $ 1,510,300 | $ 1,510,300 [ $ 1,510,300
7400-7499
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | $ (1,168,468)( $ (1,168,468)( $ (1,168,468)
Other Adjustments $ (2,594,144)( $ (4,542,517)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 845,319,372 | $ 777,393,200 | $ 745,493,562
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
Transfers In and Other Sources 8900-8979 | $ 2,475,399 | $ 2,475,399 | $ 2,475,399
Transfers Out and Other Uses 7600-7699 | $ - 18 -3 -
Contributions 8980-8999 | $ -|$ - 13 -
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)* $ (66,828,647)( $ (109,683,087)| $ (74,158,818)
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 9791 $ 257,932,735 | $ 191,104,087 | $ 81,421,000
Audit Adjustments/Other Restatements 9793/9795 | $ -
ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 191,104,087 | $ 81,421,000 | $ 7,262,183
COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE:
Nonspendable 9711-9719 | $ 325,000 $ 325,000 | $ 325,000
Restricted 9740 $ 108,993,998 | $ 58,746,778 | $ 58,310,577
Committed 9750-9760 | $ -8 -3 -
Assigned 9780 $ - 18 -3 -
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 $ 16,856,879 | $ 15,498,356 | $ 14,860,363
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 $ 64,928,210 | $ 6,850,866 | $ (66,233,758)

*Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM

NOTE: 9790 amounts must be positive



Sacramento City Unified School District

Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement

4. If no, how do you plan to restore your reserves?
The district continues to strategically plan on future budget adjustments necessary to meet the minimum reserve
requirement.

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM

Page 6
. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON UNRESTRICTED RESERVES
. State Reserve Standard
2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
Total Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses
. |(Including Cost of Proposed Agreement) $ 845,319,372 | $ 777,393,200 745,493,562
.|Less: Special Education Pass-Through Funds $ - -
.|Net Expenditures, Transfers Out, and Uses $ 845,319,372 | $ 777,393,200 745,493,562
State Standard Minimum Reserve Percentage fer—»|
. |this District Enter percentage 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
State Standard Minimum Reserve Amount for this
District (For districts with less than 1,001 ADA,
this is the greater of Line a, times Line b, or
.{$50,000) $ 16,906,387 | $ 15,547,864 14,909,871
. Budgeted Unrestricted Reserve (After Impact of Proposed Agreement)
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted
. |Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789) $ 16,856,879 | $ 15,498,356 14,860,363
General Fund Budgeted Unrestricted
.|Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (9790) $ 64,928,210 | $ 6,850,866 (66,233,758)
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted
. |Designated for Economic Uncertainties (9789) $ 5 $ 5 =
Special Reserve Fund (Fund 17) Budgeted
.|Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount (9790) $ = $ = -
.|Total Available Reserves $ 81,785,089 | $ 22,349,222 (51,373,395)
- |Reserve for Economic Uncertainties Percentage 9.68% 2.87% -6.89%
. Do unrestricted reserves meet the state minimum reserve amount?
2023-24 Yes |X No | |
2024-25 Yes |X No | |
2025-26 Yes No
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L. IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON UNRESTRICTED RESERVES (CONTINUED)

5. Does the Total Compensation Increase/(Decrease) on Page 1, Section A, #5 agree with the Total
Increase/(Decrease) for all funds as a result of the settlement(s)? Please explain any variance.

Total Compensation Increase/(Decrease) on Page 1, Section A, #5 $ 20,060,532
General Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4c, Column 2 $ (18,951,470)
Adult Education Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4d, Column 2 $ (144,400)
Child Development Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4e, Column 2 $ (308,145)
Cafeteria Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4f, Column 2 $ -
Other Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4g, Column 2 $ -
Other Fund balance Increase/(Decrease), Page 4h, Column 2 $ (656,517)
Total all fund balances Increase/(Decrease) as a result of the settlement(s) $ (20,060,532)

Variance $ -

Variance Explanation:
Variance due to rounding.

6. Will this agreement create or increase deficit financing in the current or subsequent years?
"Deficit Financing" is defined to exist when a fund's expenditures and other financing uses exceed its revenues
and other financing sources in a given year. If a deficit is shown below, provide an explanation and any deficit
reduction plan, as necessary.

Surplus/
General Fund Combined (Deficit) (Deficit) % Deficit primarily due to:
Current FY Surplus/(Deficit) before settlement(s)? $(55,058,916)  (6.6%) Settlement Agreement
Current FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? $(66,828,647)  (7.9%)  Settlement Agreement
1st Subsequent FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? HitHHHEH (14.1%)  Settlement Agreement
2nd Subsequent FY Surplus/(Deficit) after settlement(s)? $(74,158,818)  (9.9%)  Settlement Agreement

Deficit Reduction Plan (as necessary):
The district continues to strategically plan on budget adjustments necessary to meet the minimum reserve
requirements.

7. Were "Other Adjustments" amount(s) entered in the multiyear projections (pages Sa and Sb) for 1st and 2nd
Subsequent FY?

"Other Adjustments" could indicate that a budget reduction plan was/is being developed to address deficit
spending, and to rebuild reserves. Any amount shown below must have an explanation. If additional space is
needed, attach a separate sheet, or use page 8a.

MYP Amount "Other Adjustments" Explanation
1st Subsequent FY Unrestricted, Page 5a

1st Subsequent FY Restricted, Page 5b (2,594,144) Projected reduction to categorical programs to offset salary increases.

2nd Subsequent FY Unrestricted, Page 5a

$
$
$
$

2nd Subsequent FY Restricted, Page 5b (4,542,517) Projected reduction to categorical programs to offset salary increases.

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM
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J. CERTIFICATION NO. 1: CERTIFICATION OF THE DISTRICT'S ABILITY TO MEET THE COSTS
OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

This certification page must be signed by the district's Superintendent and Chief Business Official at the time of public
disclosure and is intended to assist the district's Governing Board in determining whether the district can meet the costs
incurred under the tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement in the current and subsequent years. The absence of a
certification signature or if "I am unable to certify" is checked should serve as a "red flag" to the district's Governing Board.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Sections 3540.2 and 3547.5, the Superintendent and Chief
Business Official of the Sacramento City Unified School District, hereby certify that the District can meet the costs
incurred under this Collective Bargaining Agreement during the term of the agreement from July 1, 2023 to _June 30,
2025.

Board Actions
The board actions necessary to meet the cost of the agreement in each year of its term are as follows:

Current Year

Budget Adjustment
Budget Adjustment Categories: Increase/(Decrease)
Revenues/Transfers In and Other Sources/Contributions $ -
Expenditures/Transfers Out and Other Uses $ 13,546,373
Ending Balance(s) Increase/(Decrease) $ (13,546,373)
Subsequent Y ears

Budget Adjustment
Budget Adjustment Categories: Increase/(Decrease)
Revenues/Transfers In and Other Sources/Contributions $ -
Expenditures/Transfers Out and Other Uses $ =
Ending Balance(s) Increase/(Decrease) $ -

Budget Revisions

If the district does not adopt and submit within 45 days all of the revisions to its budget needed in the current year to
meet the costs of the agreement at the time of the approval of the proposed collective bargaining agreement, the county
superintendent of schools is required to issue a qualified or negative certification for the district on its next interim report.

Assumptions
See attached page for a list of the assumptions upon which this certification is based.
Certifications
I hereby certify I am unable to certify
District Superintendent Date
(Signature)
I hereby certify I am unable to certify
Chief Business Official Date
(Signature)

Special Note: The Sacramento County Office of Education may request additional information, as necessary, to review
the district's compliance with requirements.

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM
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Assumptions and Explanations (enter or attach documentation)

The assumptions upon which this certification is made are as follows:
Please see attached documents.

Concerns regarding affordability of agreement in subsequent years (if any):

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM
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K. CERTIFICATION NO. 2

The disclosure document must be signed by the district Superintendent at the time of public disclosure and by the
President or Clerk of the Governing Board at the time of formal board action on the proposed agreement.

The information provided in this document summarizes the financial implications of the proposed agreement and
is submitted to the Governing Board for public disclosure of the major provisions of the agreement (as provided in
the "Public Disclosure of Proposed Collective Bargaining Agreement") in accordance with the requirements of
AB 1200 and Government Code Sections 3540.2(a) and 3547.5.

Sacramento City Unified School District
District Name

District Superintendent Date
(Signature)
Contact Person Phone

After public disclosure of the major provisions contained in this summary, the Governing Board at its meeting on
_March 7, 2024, took action to approve the proposed agreement with the Sacramento City Teachers Association

President (or Clerk), Governing Board Date
(Signature)

Special Note: The Sacramento County Office of Education may request additional information, as necessary, to
review the district's compliance with requirements.

Printed 2/27/2024 at 1:22 PM




ARTICLE 8 —- TRANSFERS
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Sacramento City Teachers Association
Counterproposal from SCUSD @ ‘@

November 6, 2023

8.1

8.14

8.14.1

8.14.2

DEFINITION

A VOLUNTARY TRANSFER is one which is initiated upon application of the employee and involves
either a change in assignment from one school or administrative unit to another or a change in
classification within the bargaining unit.

AnINVOLUNTARY TRANSFER is one which is initiated by the administration and involves a change
in assignment from one (1) school or administrative unit to another without a change in classification.

For the purposes of this Article, a VACANCY is any new or existing opening among those positions for
which a member of the bargaining unit may be considered for transfer.

SENIORITY, as referred to in this Article, shall be based on years of service to the District and shall
apply to all members of the bargaining unit regardless of classification or position held. A year of
experience must represent not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the days of required full-time
service; although semesters will be added together, even if in separate school years, in computing years
of service.

In instances where there has been prior certificated service in the District, years of service in the District
shall be determined by using the date on which the teacher most recently joined the District, and then
backdating the anniversary date by the number of years previously served (based upon cumulative
semesters during which the teacher served 75% or more of the time). In no case shall the anniversary
date be earlier than the first required day of service in that school year.

Certificated service in the children's center shall count toward total District seniority, but the seniority is
only applicable in the program where the certificated person is currently employed.

A COMPELLING REASON is defined as the need to meet credential and legal requirements, or special
qualifications which can be documented.

A TEMPORARY _ as referved to in the Application and Placement section of this Article is
one who is employed on a temporary certificated contract which includes the master contract
entitlements for health and welfare benefits, salary, and sick leave.

A SEVENTY-FIVE PERCENTER as referred to in the Application and Placement section of this
Article is one who was employed in a temporary certificated position or who has been serving as a long-
term substitute performing all of the duties of a regular teacher for at least seventy-five percent (75%)
of the days school was in session in the most recent school year.

A NEW QOFFER as referred to in the Application and Placement section of this Article is one who has
been offered a certificated contract with the District for the next school year.

A NEW APPLICANT as referred to in the Application and Placement section of this Article is one who
is not currently employed in a certificated position in the District but one who applies for a position in
the District.

a
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A LONG TERM SUBSTITUTE as referred to in the Application and Placement section of this Article
is a substitute who the District anticipates will remain employed for more than 90 consecutive work days
and who is so informed by the District at the time of hiring or at the time of change from day-to-day
substitute status.

A DAY-TO-DAY SUBSTITUTE as referred to in the Application and Placement section of this Article
is a substitute who is hired as needed to fill a certificated position.

IN-DISTRICT PERMANENT PERSONNEL as referred to in the Application and Placement section
of this Article are those who have gained tenure in the District; or in the case of application for positions
to be filled in the next school year, persons who will gain tenure the beginning of that next school year.

IN-DISTRICT PROBATIONARY PERSONNEL as referred to in the Application and Placement
section of this Article are those in probationary status except as referred to in 8.1.12.

In-District training program participant are current participants in credential training programs
including student teacher, intern, teacher residency, classified-to-credential programs. [ok]

GENERAL PROVISIONS

No teacher shall be transferred nor denied a transfer request arbitrarily, capriciously or without basis in
fact.

Applications for voluntary transfer may be filed whenever a Notice of Vacancy is posted by the District.
Application forms for transfer shall be available online erin-the Himan Resources-Offies. No-classroom

maehemay—ve%umafdy—gaﬂ&kﬁm‘“%ep{embeé@ —ﬂai—a—peﬂﬂeﬂ—dﬁﬁﬁg—&}e—etmm—seheel

elass-x—ﬁea&eﬂ— ( D1strlct okay)

If an applicant is not selected for a specific position for which he/she applied, school site or
administrative unit shall, upon written request, provide the applicant with a written statement of the
reasons therefore.

Any teacher may submit an application for transfer at any time directly to the Human Resources Office
without being required to notify or receive approval from the building principal or other administrator
in charge.

Application for transfer to any type of position ot location shall be made to the Human Resources Office
on forms provided for this purpose. Verification of the receipt of application can be obtained in person
or by email from the Human Resources Office. [0k]

If a teacher requests an interview with the Human Resources Office, or if the District desires an
interview, it will be scheduled.

If a teacher desires to be considered for future vacancies a new application for transfer must be filed with
the Human Resources Office as each new vacancy is posted.

The teacher shall be transferred to a position which is consistent with major(s), minor(s), experience,
certification, qualifications, and insofar as possible, with desires and interests of the teacher.

All transfer applicants, upon receipt of the offer of a position shall respond by 4 p.m. of the next business
day. Within this time constraint, the person may request information regarding the status of any other
position(s) for which he/she applied, and the Human Resources Office shall comply with such request.
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If an applicant fails to accept or respond to a tentative assignment, or when all available means of
communications prove unsuccessful in contacting that applicant, the Human Resources Office may
proceed to the other referred applicants.

Any teacher transferred during the times that schools are in regular session shall be provided one (1)
non-teaching day prior to the beginning of the new assignment for the purpose of relocation, orientation
and lesson planning.

No teacher shall be involuntarily transferred more than once during any one (1) school year.
Full-time probationary personnel may apply for a voluntary transfer. [ok]

All positions filled by a person on a temporary contract, on a limited term assignment, or long term
substitute which are to be continued, shall be declared vacant the last day of the second semester and
shall be made a part of the vacancy list for Step 1 placements unless the position is being held for a
permanent teacher on leave or a limited term assignment who has return rights.

If the termination date of the limited term assignment is extended during the school year the assigned
teacher shall continue in the position unless there is a need for a surplus teacher to be placed in the
position.

No regular position shall be reserved as a limited term assignment in excess of one (1) school year, while
a teacher is voluntarily filling another assignment.

Positions involving classifications other than classroom teacher and/or positions which provide
additional pay shall be filled as per Step | criteria except that posting and placement may occur
throughout the year. Any other qualifying position(s), or any new position(s) created by the District or
any changes in existing job specifications which would be controlled by this section must be mutually
agreed to by the District and the Association. These positions include the following: Counselor, Program
Specialist, Vocational Specialist, Department Chairperson, Librarian, Psychologist, Resource Specialist,
School Social Worker, Student Activities Advisors, Training Specialist.

In order to provide services for students with limited English proficiency ("LEP students"), positions
which an approved school plan defines as requiring specialized Bilingual credential services to LEP
students will be filled in the following manner:

Prior to Step 1, the new, created or open positions in the District and schools requiring teachers holding
Bilingual credentials for the following school year will be identified for posting and made known to
SCTA upon its request. The District will determine the type of credential(s) required for each position.

All such positions shall be posted with their requirements, and shall be filled in accordance with the
procedures of Steps | and 2.

Teachers with LDS or SB 1969 certification and those in a verifiable continuous training program for a
Bilingual or CLAD certificate(s), the length of which training program shall be as approved in the
District's Plan to Remedy, but not require a period of less than two years, and whose continued progress
in that training program is documented, shall be considered equal to CLAD/BCLAD credentialed
teachers except that among such a group seniority shall prevail.

No teacher unit member may voluntarily transfer more than once each fiscal/school year (July 1* to June
30™). [ok]

The District and SCTA will collaborate on a teacher recruitment and review process to increase the
quality of teacher applicants.
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8.4.1

NOTICES OF VACANCIES

It is the intent of these procedures that every reasonable effort shall be made to provide employees with
information regarding the establishment of new positions as well as vacancies in existing positions when
time permits. Positions shall be posted for a period of not less than four (4) work days. A notice of
vacancy shall list all objective criteria which shall serve as the basis for selection.

After internal assignment changes, if any, vacancies for the ensuing year shall be identified and reported
to the Human Resources Office and SCTA by site/program administrators in sufficient time to meet the
posting timelines. Exceptions may be made for extenuating circumstances which can be documented.

To assist in early staffing, any unit member who submits his or her retirement or resignation prior to
February 1 for a retirement or resignation effective at the end of that same school year, shall be paid a
one-time stipend of fifteen hundred dollars ($1500) upon Board acceptance of the retirement or
resignation. By mutual agreement, the parties may agree to increase the retirement/resignation incentive.
Additionally, the District and SCTA agree to the following efforts based on mutual agreement for retirees
and resignees:

a. A program that provides for substituting opportunities at the teacher's last site(s) for the purpose
of continuity and in-servicing and provisioning of new teachers.

b. A program of recognition.
c. Development of appropriate information regarding STRS, health benefits, and other matters.
All notices of vacancies shall be prepared as soon as possible after vacancies and positions are known,
with the exception that vacancies that become known and available as a result of early
retirement/resignation notice set forth in 8.3.1.2 will be posted on February 15%. Each notice shall be
advertised by Human Resources Office in the following ways:

e  Post on the District website

e Email to the designated Association representative(s)

e Email to teachers
Except for surplus teacher placement, and contracted teachers unassigned by Jdly1, no vacancy can be
filled as a regular assignment during Steps 1 and 2 until it has been advertised in accordance with
established procedures. [ok]

Notices of Vacancies will be numbered in the order of issuance.

Any modification to a Notice of Vacancy shall require a new posting and cancellation of any
commitments based on the previous Notice of Vacancy.

A listing of positions filled shall be provided to the SCTA on the first and fifteenth of each month.

INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS (SURPLUS)

The initial identification and notification of surplus personnel will be accomplished by the Human
Resources Office no later than the Friday occurring in the first full week in April, insofar as they are
knownPersonnel identified for surplusing shall be notified within three (3) days of the time they are
identified. Such notification shall consist of written notice mailed to address of record and an email to
the work address.

Surplusing may occur for the following reasons:

a. Over staffing at school sites (Surplus Personnel).
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Reduced funding in special programs.

el The termination of an LTA position or special funded position for a regular permanent teacher
who has no immediate return rights to a position, classification or a designated position.

Before declaring anyone surplus, it shall be determined if there is a volunteer with the proper credential
in the area being surplused who is teaching in that area and who is willing to accept surplus status.
Written and email notification shall be sent to all affected staff requesting any volunteers prior to the
least senior teacher being identified by the Human Resources Office. If more than one teacher volunteers
for surplussing, the most senior volunteer shall be selected.

Teachers who are projected to teach in year-round schools may voluntarily declare themselves surplus
at that school for the following school year if the declaration is placed in writing to the site administrator
by February 1st. Such persons shall then be treated as all other involuntary surplus persons.

Teachers must declare their intention to self-surplus by March 15%. With the exception of teachers who
have self-surplussed within the previous three (3) school years, or a teacher who is currently in a
performance improvement plan, teachers may elect to self-surplus. Teachers who have self-surplussed
within the previous three (3) years, or a teacher who is on a performance improvement plan may self-
surplus with the approval of the District. Unless otherwise agreed by the District and the Association,
self-surplussing will be limited to no more than seven (7) teachers per school year. If more than seven
(7) teachers elect to self-surplus, eligibility will be determined in seniority order. Said teacher shall be
placed.

In any elementary school or administrative unit where a surplus exists, the principal or other
administrator in charge shall identify the teachers to be declared surplus. Unless there are compelling
reasons for doing otherwise, the site administrator shall declare surplus the individual with the least
District seniority.

In any secondary school or administrative unit where a surplus exists, the principal or other administrator
in charge shall identify the teachers to be declared surplus. Unless there are compelling reasons for
doing otherwise, the site administrator shall declare surplus the individual with the least District seniority
in the subject area of the position declared surplus.

If the teacher who is declared surplus has served in another subject field within the previous five years,
or has a major or minor in another subject field, the teacher may choose to be compared in any of those
fields on the basis of District seniority for surplus declaration.

[f the site administrator declares surplus an individual other than the one with the least District seniority,
the site administrator shall immediately place in writing the reasons for such decision and transmit them
to the Human Resources Office and to the teacher(s) involved.

Whenever two (2} or more persons have the same seniority ranking, the person to be declared surplus
shall be determined by the casting of lots. Such casting of lots will take place in the presence of all
persons who have the same seniority ranking and who could be affected by this process.

The Human Resources Office shall provide written notice and email notice to teachers subject to
involuntary transfer, stating the nature of the transfer with reason therefore, and informing them of their
right to a meeting with the District representative if the teacher so requests.

Within a four-year period, teachers who have been declared surplus from a regular position shall have
preference in returning to the school from which they have been surplused. Teachers may complete the
application any time during the four (4) year period commencing on their involuntary surplus date (July

).
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8.5.1

Surplussing of Counselors: The following procedures shall be used except where in conflict with
compelling reasons. However, these provisions do not apply to declaration of surplus staff at a school
and an involuntary transfer where the total number of District positions has not been reduced. This
provision would apply only if the total number of counseling positions have been reduced.

When the number of elementary counselor positions is reduced in a non-lay off situation (school closure,
consolidation, or overstaffing), the least senior elementary counselor(s) who is/are credentialed and
experienced as a classroom teacher will be declared surplus and placed in the surplus teacher pool.

If the surplus elementary counselor is credentialed and experienced at the secondary level he/she may
choose to be compared on the basis of seniority with secondary counselors.

When the number of secondary school counselor positions is reduced in a non-layoff situation (school
closure, consolidation, or overstaffing), the least senior secondary counselor(s) who is/are credentialed
and experienced as a classroom teacher will be placed in the surplus teacher pool. The vacancy(ies)
created will be filled by the more senior counselor(s) unassigned as a result of the surplus.

If the surplus secondary counselor is credentialed and experienced at the elementary level he/she may
choose to be compared on the basis of seniority with elementary counselors.

Vocational Specialists: When the number of vocational specialist positions is reduced in a non-layoff
situation (school closure, consolidation, or overstaffing), the least senior vocational specialist who is
credentialed as a counselor and experienced as a counselor shall replace the least senior secondary
counselor who has less seniority than the vocational specialist and who is credentialed and experienced
as a classroom teacher. This counselor shall then be declared surplus.

Psychologists: When the number of psychologist positions is reduced in a non-layoff situation (school
closure, consolidation, or overstaffing). the least senior psychologist who is credentialed as a counselor
and experienced as a counselor or classroom teacher shall replace, depending on credential and
experience, the least senior elementary or secondary counselor who has less seniority than the
psychologist and who is credentialed and experienced as a classroom teacher. This counselor shall then
be declared surplus.

Social Workers: When the number of social worker positions is reduced in a non-layoff situation
(school closure, consolidation. or overstaffing), the least senior person(s) shall be given the opportunity
to replace, depending on their credential and experience, the least senior elementary or secondary
counselor who has less seniority than the social worker and who is credentialed and experienced as a
classroom teacher. This counselor shall then be declared surplus.

Other non-teaching certificated positions are not to be covered by this section.

This section shall not preclude administrative transfers under Section 8.7 et seq. of this Article.

APPLICATION AND PLACEMENT

Step 1 - Unit Member Priority Period (February 1 to-)

Step 1 shall begin on February 1* and shall conclude 0n_.5 Any position that was posted February
1% or after but before *shall be part of Step 1. Vacancies that the District was made aware

of prior to February 1*' which occurred during the current school year, shall be included during Step 1.
Available positions shall be as a result of Ore-Stop-statfing Budget Development Process for staffing,
retirement/resignations notices and any other reasons for which vacancies exist. The District shall
complete the One-Stop—staffing—process Budget Development Process for staffing by no later than
February lst so that those positions may be included the Step 1 process.
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vacancies occurrmg after [PIEISIIEwill be made avaxlable to remaining surplus teachers under Step 1 B
below. If it is determined that a position has been hidden to avoid its inclusion in the Step 1 process, the
position will be posted and awarded according to the step 1 procedures set forth in this section, regardless
of the time of year.

For Step 1 "quahﬁed appltcants" are defined as bargaining tmit; in-District, permanent and surplus
personnel, inclu nary employees. For Step 1, "additional applicants" or "additional teacher
applicants" are dcﬁnad as tamporary, seventy-five percenters, new offers, new applicants, in-district
training program partici and substitutes, —[ok]

If there are five (5) or more quahﬁed applicants, the five (5) most senior shall be referred. One (1) shall
be selected and placed: (District okay)

If there are four (4) qualified applicants, the four (4) shall be referred. One (1) shall be selected and
placed.

If there are only three (3) qualified applicants, all three (3) shall be referred, and the District may refer
one (1) additional applicant. One (1) shall be selected and placed.

If there are only two (2) qualified applicant, both shall be referred, and the District may refer two (2)
additional applicants. One (1) shall be selected and placed.

If there is only one (1) qualified applicant that applicant shall be referred, and the District may refer two
(2) additional applicants. One (1) shall be selected and placed.

If there is no qualified applicant, the District will hold the position for placement in the surplus process.
If there is no one qualified for the positions in the surplus pool, the position shall be posted under Step
2. [ok]

After the beginning of the school year, placement in positions must be made within fifteen (15) working
days after the final posting date of the position. For positions commencing the following school year,
selection shall be made within ten (10) working days, or as soon as possible, after the final posting date.

If all those referred for a position decline the offer for the position leaving no placement possible, then
the position will be incorporated into the surplus process-

Selection from among the candidates shall be made by the District/principal or designee(s), based on and
following the recommendation from the interview panel. The interview panel or designee(s) shall
include:
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The principal or designee;

bargaining-unit member(s), from the school site, selected by the bargaining unit staff assigned
at the school site; priority shall be to include grade level and/or subject area, where applicable.

At newly opened sites, SCTA will appoint panel members.

Other participants mutually-agreed upon by the principal and SCTA-representatives on the
committee.

SCTA will be updated on the results of Step 1 hiring process once every two weeks and upon request.

Step 1A - Resulting Positions (Classroom)

Classroom positions that become available or open as a result of in-District permanent classroom
teachers accepting positions at other sites/departments, per 8.5.1 of are current vacancies inder Steg

B be posted as limited term assignments for the rest of the school year and posted in the surpius
for the followmg school year. chéposnt:on is not . aﬁtgp d 1heSt¢p 1B Smplus Placemem process

Step 1B - Surplus Placement

a.

Unless by mutual agreement between the Association and the District, surplus placement shall
be completed by no later than April 30"—provided that the meetings to discuss staffing after
the completion of the Budget Development process as set forth in Section 8.5.1 above have
occurred.-The parties shall mutually agree on the time and District location of surplussing. It
shall not be during spring break. Only surplus personnel per 8.4.1, 8.4.2.1, and 8.4.2.1.1 shall
be placed for the following school year during this period. Surplus placements for teachers not
placed during the surplus process may be ongoing until such teachers are placed. [ok]

During the surplussing process, the District will host a Surplus Fair, which is an internal process
designed to complete staffing in an expeditious manner in order to afford the District the best
and carliest opportunity to search for and hire new teachers. At the Surplus Fair, both the
District and the SCTA will have a designated representative on hand to ensure that the spirit of
the process is being complied with and who can make determinations for each respective party
as to any questions or procedural issues that may arise. School sites with available vacancies
will have representatives present and display/share site specific information related to the
specific school site vacancies. Surplus teachers may attend the Surplus Fair. [ok]

All surplus personnel shall be contacted by the Human Resources Office. Each surplus
employee shall have the opportunity to select two (2) positions in which he/she is interested
and the employee shall be placed in one (1) of the identified positions. Such selections shall
occur in the seniority order of the surplus employees. If only one choice remains and the
position is one that is acceptable to the surplus employee, that position shall be awarded to the
surplus employee.

If no position is available for which a surplus teacher qualifies during the surplus process, the
surplus teacher will be placed on a priority and seniority basis in the first available position for
which he/she qualifies, including those positions which open in Steps | and 2. Such positions
need not be advertised. Should two or more positions for which such teachers qualify become
available at the same time, the teachers shall choose from among the positions on a seniority
basis.

In the event a surplus teacher is unable to attend the Surplus Fair/surplussing process. the
teacher may designate another SCTA unit member to act as a proxy, and said proxy may put in
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8.5.4

8.5.4.1

8.54.2

for surplus selections on behalf of the teacher who has given them the appropriate authority. In
order to designate a proxy, both the surplus teacher and the unit member acting as a proxy must

sign the Assignment Proxy Form. Decisions made by the proxy designee regarding surplus

assignment selections are binding in the same manner as in the same manner as if they were

made by the sumlus teacher [ok1_

uuﬂ membeu mly i the Snrplupfniram : gqii&on tlmmgiﬂhe surpins
process in seniroty order after the regular surplus process is complete. [ok]

Self-surplused personnel per 8.4.2.1.1 shall be placed.

Non-classroom teachers in indicated positions (classifications) who have no retum rights to a prior
position shall enjoy the following rights at the end of their special assignment:

a. Teachers may participate in the surplus process.
b. If the surplussing process has already occurred, teachers may apply for any vacancy for which
they are qualified.

Any positions that remain unfilled following the surplus process shall be posted in accordance with Step
2 — Open Period, set forth below.

Step 2 - Open Period (-to January 31}

Step 2 shall begin on [illlland shall continue through January 31%. Candidates may include all
qualified in and out of District applicants.

be referred to the site or unit admlmstrator for selection.
be those with the greatest seniori 0
employees apply. I Bpress §
or more qualitied substrtuteq apply at least one (1) shall be referred The remalmng referred apphcants
may be referred from any source.

Selection from among the candidates shall be made by the District/principal or designee(s), based on
and following the recommendation from the interview panel. The interview panel or designee(s) shall
include:

a. The principal or designee;

b. bargaining-unit member(s), from the school site, selected by the bargaining unit staff assigned
at the school site; priority shall be to include grade level and/or subject area, where applicable.

c At newly opened sites, SCTA will appoint panel members.
d. Other participants mutually-agreed upon by the principal and SCTA-representatives on the
committee.

One of the referred applicants shall be selected and placed within ten (10) working days following the
final posting date of the position. All referred applicants who interviewed will be notified in writing, by
phone or by email the results of their interview.

If there are less than two (2) qualified applicants, the site administrator may request a relisting-
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8.5.4.3

8.54.4

8.5.4.5

8.54.5.1

8.5.4.6

8.5.5

8.5.6

The parties intend that long-term substitute teachers assigned authorized, permanent, positions because
regular credentialed teachers are not available for these positions will remain in the assignment until the
end of the school year or until the employee is terminated. The position will then be posted for the
following year. For the purposes of this provision, long-term substitute means:

a. employees who are provided a contract indicating their status;

b. the contract indicates the fringe benefits provided in conformance with this collective
bargaining agreement;

c. the employee is authorized pursuant to law to serve in the position:

d. the employee may be terminated at any time pursuant to Education Code section 44953 or
44954, The District and SCTA will consult regarding providing special help or support for these
teachers.

e. the district will provide opportunity for interested and qualified substitute teachers to receive

their Emergency Career Substitute Permit per CTC guidelines. [ok]

If a clear, open and vacant position is filled during this step by a permanent District teacher or qualified
applicant, the position shall be classified as a regular position

All surplused contracted teachers who do not have an assignment by Auguast July 1 may be placed
directly. At the time of such placement, should there be two or more positions for which such teachers
qualify, the teachers shall choose from among the positions on a seniority basis. [ok]

Positions that become vacant after January 15" and filled subsequently for the remainder of that school
year may be designated as limited term assignments and become available during Step | for the following
school year.

Notwithstanding, Child Development teachers may be placed year-round as regular assignments in clear,
open, and vacant positions

Selection from among the candidates shall be made by the District/principal or designee(s), based on and
following the recommendation from the interview panel. The interview panel or designee(s) shall
include;

a. The principal or designee;

b. bargaining-unit member(s), from the school site, selected by the bargaining unit staff assigned
at the school site; priority shall be to include grade level and/or subject area, where applicable.

(o8 At newly opened sites, SCTA will appoint panel members.
d. Other participants mutually-agreed upon by the principal and SCTA-representatives on the
committee.

The district will meet to discuss with SCTA potential changes to the Early Learning and Care programs,
classes, locations, hours, etc. no later than March 1®. The Early Learning and Care programs surplus
process will take place no later than May 1* unless a timeline extension is mutually agreed upon.

The district will provide SCTA with proposed changes to Special Education programs, classes, locations,

etc. no later than April 1%. The special education change of assignment process will occur not later than
May 1st unless a timeline extension is mutually agreed upon.

10
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8.6

8.6.1
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8.6.2

8.7

8.7.1

8.8

INTRADISTRICT EXCHANGE

Should two (2) or more teachers desire to exchange positions on a temporary basis, said teachers shall
be responsible for making all of the arrangements. Such arrangements shall be reduced to writing and
shall include the following:

a. The name of the teacher(s) involved.

b. The subject areas the teachers are qualified to teach.

c. The written approval of the site administrators.

d. The written approval of the Human Resources Office.

€. All arrangements must be completed at least 30 days before the exchange is to occur.

Such an intra-district exchange shall be limited to a duration of one (1) school year and can be effected
only once in four (4) years.

ADMINISTRATIVE TRANSFERS

Transfers necessitated as a result of a substandard performance or other problems encountered by an
employee, shall be recommended to the superintendent and Board of Education by the Human Resources
Department, upon the recommendation of staff level instructional administrators. The reasons for any
recommended transfer other than for reasons of surplus shall be delineated in writing by the staff level
instructional administrators and delivered to the Human Resources Office which shall provide a copy to
the affected teachers. Such personnel shall be transferred into an existing vacancy in which they will be
able to perform more effectively.

As soon as an administrator transfer is being considered by the Human Resources Department, but no
less than thirty (30) working days from the initiation of the administrative transfer, the site administrator
or Human Resources representative (only by direction of the Human Resources Department) will meet
with the employee to:

a. Inform the employee of the problem;

b. Express reasons that an administrative transfer is being considered and what actions would lead
to an administrative transfer;

Whenever possible, certificated employees will not be moved without their consent, and will be given
all available options as to which site they will be moved. The parties agree that administrative transfers

may be effectuated with or without employee consent.

Creation of Working Group to Discuss Changes to Article 8 and Academic Calendar to Address

Impediments, Including Timelines, to Filling Vacancies
The District and SCTA will convene a working group to review the school calendar and Article 8,
Vacancies and Transfers. to address impediments to filling vacancies and staffing our schools, and

provide other recommendations related to the recruitment and retention of certificated employees in the

District. This working group will be referred to as the Recruitment and Retention Committee. [ok]

11
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February 6, 2024

EAGREEMENT
1)

ARTICLE 12 - COMPENSATION

12.1 Definitions of terms used in this Anticle.

12.1.1 Base Salary: Annual salary rate for employees compensated on the Teachers' Salary
Schedule, based upon training and years of experience.

12.1.2 Contract Daily Rate: Base salary divided by the number of days of required service
[or teachers. This is also known as the Per Diem Rate.

12.1.3 Contract Hourly Rate: The contract daiIF\lf rate multiplicd by .1538 for all Non-
an}nagemcnl certificated personnel cxcept those for whom scparate factors are listed

clow:
- Counselors: Contract daily rate multiplied by .1428.
- lfsxcllgl%%i%m, program specialists. and social workers: Contract daily raie
multiplied by .1250.
- Children's Center teachers: Contract daily rate multiplied by .1250,

12.1.4 Contract Salary: Buse salary plus or minus adjustments for additional days of required
service, employment begun before or after the first day of required service, and/or less
than full-time employment.

12.1.5 Extra Duty Assignment: The supervision ol students in activities after the close of the
regular school day and/or on non-teaching days. Extra duty assignments for which
compensation is provided arc listed in Section 12.9.2 of this Article.

12.1.6  Per Session Rate; Pay rate calculated at 1/1080 of the base annual salary up to a
maximum amount calculated from Class C, Step 2, on the Teachers' Sa Imiy Schedule
for K-12 and preschool, or Class 5, Step 2, on the Salary Schedule for Teachers off
Adult Education.

12.1.7 Day-to-Day Substitute: A certificated teacher hired on a da -to-day basis to replace a
regular teacher who is absent or who is temporarily assigned other dutics,

12.1.8 Non-Contract Certificated Non-management Em plurees; Certilicated  Non-
management employees employed on a per session or hourly basis for not more (han
eighteen (18) hours per week, and in adult education, for not more than four (4) months.

12.2 Salary Schedule Structure

12.2.1 The salary schedules for SCTA unil members consist of the following;

A > lis "the salary sehedules. inel

er,] (District ok)

The parties (urther acknowledge that (he savings achieved by the change to Article 13.18.13 were
used fo increase the across-the-board increase in 2023-24 from 4% 10 6%.

1
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122.1.1 An additional stipend of $3000 per year is added for the earned doctorate

from an accredited college or university and is prorated if for less than a full year. [OK}

42202 Educuators-who-possess-the-following-lieenses/eertifientions-shall-be
enm%ed—ie -n-additional-salory-oFseven-pereent-{ 1%}

f———2Nenro-Pavoletertibication -
!r.. Nt Hy-ternfed-Sehen !:; bl 4

E I' ]’I‘l o I:‘»‘.n he g"‘h‘ :

d——Marringand- l*mml;-—l hvmpml

! Clinenl-Sooml- Waorkers
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g Cenificnte-of-Clinieal

i National-Bogrd £ rlflu'd-l-v.-.mclh -0

i Autologtat-Feerme

12.2.2 Rates for day-to-day substitutes shall be as follows:

12.2.2.1 02474 imes- thevalue-ofCliss-A-Step-Steachers salaey-Ooe hundred Ofty
four clollars and thirty four cents (§154.34) for each full day of substitute

service upi%o and including the first (1) Hifth¢5th) day of assignment. This is
Ahat will be deducted _mnnrmployussnl whenmzymutggau
g differential leave, excent Whien the dif¥erential lesy gfa‘wmml
n cuscmemtoyuwm&wdﬁmm n $0%of
trmfrsmm of thelr saliry or other rate s required by low: (District okay)

12.2.2.2 [$355 matched to closest current daily rate afier July 1, 2022 retro pay is added to
the K-12 and other salary schedules, or long-term rate whichever is higher| For
each full day of assignment after the sixth-(6th) first day of assignment, the
substitute daily rate of pay will be the contractual daily pay rate for Column E,

Step 1, (District okay)

12.2.2.3 Qualified substitutes for psychologists shall be paid at Step 1, Class X of the
psychologists’ pay schedule for each full day of substitute work. Substitute work
for less than a full day shall be paid on a prorated hourly basis as per Step 1, Class
X

12.2.2.4 Substitutes who begin service in September annually shall be entitled to ten (10)
refusals of assignment annually. Substitutes beginning service after September
shall be entitled to a pro rata share of ten (10) refusals based on the remaining
months in the school year. First day of service must be on or before the 15th day
of the month to be eligible for credit for a refusal for the month. No reason for
refusals shall be required. Inability to reach substitutes by telephone, including
late calls up to 10:00 a.m., unanswered calls, busy signals, and answering devices,
after two (2) attempts shall be considered a refusal of assignment.

1 7
o
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12.2.2.5 Substitutes receiving a rate of pay above the first rate who exceed their
allotment of refusals shall be returned to the first rate of pay and must serve the
required number ol days before advancing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
rate of pay will not be reduced afier the allotted number of refusals during a
pilot program effective from December 17, 1996 through June 30, 1998.

12.2.2.6 Substitutes shall retain their compensation status and carry it forward to the
following school year. Any accumulated refusals shall not be carried forward to
the following school year.

12.2.2.7 Compensation for part-day assignments shall be based upon one-half (1/2) or two-
thirds (2/3) the rate of pay for which the substitute qualifics, depending upon
which fraction is nearest, but not less than the actual time served. The length of a
substitute's day is equal to the day of the employee for whom he/she is
substituting. Partial day assignments will be counted as a day of service for
advancement to the next pay slep,

12.22.8 Substitutes who teach or start a class for which there is no regular teacher
providing lesson plans at any time during the school year shall be paid at their
appropriate contract daily rate, onthe/daily the!sub'fate'whichever s Higher.
(Diswrict okay) provided they are responsible for lesson planning, all other
teacher duties, and in the position for at least thirty (30) calendar days.

After thirty (30) days, the substitute shall receive the appropriate rate retroactively
and shall continue to receive the rate until replaced or placed in the position.

12.3 Experience Credit
12.3.1 Vertical (step) placement on the Teachers' Salary Schedule shall correspond to the

number of years of District teaching service, with the following exceptions:

12.3.1.1 Step placement may be higher if expetience credit has been granted at the time of
initial employment in keeping with Sections 12.3.2 through 12.3.5 of this Article.

12.3.1.2 Persons who have reached the maximums of their salary classes, when obtaining
the requirements for a higher class, shall be moved over to the new class and be
placed on the step which corresponds to their years of credited service.

12.3.2 Upon employment, expericnce credit is granted on the basis of one (1) step for
each year of properly verificd comparable experience with limitations sct forth in
Sections 12.3.2 through 12.3.3.3 of this Article. A year of cxperience must
represent no less than seventy-five per cent (75%) of the days of required full-
time service, although full semesters will be added together, cven if in separalc
school years und/or at one or more school districts (but not more than thieg [3]
school districts), in computing years of service. Credit for part-time experience

3
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12.3.3

12.3.4

12.3.5

123.6

12.3.6.1

12.36.2

12.3.7

will be computed by converting to [ull-lime expeticnce; ¢.g., two (2) years of
halftime experience equal one (1) step of experience credit. Comparable
experience includes previous teaching experience, Peace Corps service, VISTA
service, preschool experience, or other exceptional prolessional assignments.
[OK]

Upon application (o the LTuman Resources Office, at the time of initial employment,
prior non-certificated paid experience closcly allicd to the local certilicated
assignment, when fully verified, will be evaluated on the basis of one (1) step for
cach two (2) years of such acceptable experience within the past ten (10) years.

Upon reemployment, prior experience credit is not reevaluated for a teacher
returning to the service of the District within ten (10) years after termination, but
verified experience gained during the interim will be evaluated. Such personnel
are returned to their place on the schedule in elfcet when they terminated, and
then all schedule changes which occurred during their absence and any interim
experience credil are applied to determine their placement on the present
schedule.

Employees new to the District have a maximum of ninety (90) days from their
first day of required service in which to file verifications of comparable or allied
experience. After ninety days, verification can be filed without retroactive credit.
Prior to hiring, employecs will be notificd of their projected salary schedule
placement based on employees reported experience, subject to completion of the

verifications of comparable or allied experience. Emplovees whe are not able to - [ Formatted: Highlight

provide appropriate docwmentation of reported experience will have their salary
schedule placement adjusted o mateh that of verilied documentation.

A year of \eaching service in the District is camed for salary schedule step
placement if an employce is paid for seventy-five percent (75%) or more of the
school year, including Llime spent on sabbatical leave of absence, or if the
employee is participating in the carly retirement incentive plan as set forth in
District Board Policy 4117.11. JOK]|

Initial placement on the salary schedule for newly hircd cmployecs shall
include cumulative semesters, where service has been for at least 75% of each
semester, rounded to the nearcst {ull year.

Following initial employment, personnel shall be given earned step increments
cifective July 1. Personnel may accumulate non-consecutive semesters of
employment and shall be advanced on the next succeeding July 1 for each two
semesters.

Personnc! employed in summer school programs shall be given their eamed step
increments effective with their first day of summer school service.
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12.3.9

12.4

12.4.1

12.4.1.1

12.4.2

AGREEMENT

~ Personnel employed on 4 per session basis in 12-month adult education programs
are to be given their carned step increments, effective July 1.

Personnel who are employed during the summer period on a contract daily
rate basis (CDR) are to be given their carned salary step increments,
cffective July I.

Training Classification

Training classification is based upon eamed collegiate degrees and regular credits
carned in excess of degree requirements in fully accredited fou=year colleges and
univcrsities, or in the District's Professional Improvement Program as outlined in

the Board's Policies and Bylaws, Sections P-3572 through P-3573, adopted on
July 10, 1978. [OK on removal ol d-yeur, may still need hoard policy update. |

Credits will be accepted only if they are carned in a fsur-year college or
university accredited by a regional acerediting Association, if they are accepted
by the Commission for Teacher Preparation and Licensing for credentialing
purposes, or if lhey are reported on appropriate forms as outlined in connection
with the District's Professional [mprovement Program. 'T'raining classification
shall be determined twice annually on July | and February 1, except that July 1st
class changes shall not be uscd in determining summer school per session rates of
pay for that year. [ok|

Excess units arc defined as those units earned in excess of the minimum
requirement for the degree in the institution where the degree was granted, and
may have been earned before or after the awarding of the degree.

Before-beginning-worlcon-any-four-yen-eollege or-university-courses-oron-any
WWWW&DIS{FHﬁQMWMPMWRN
approval-must-be-obtained-by-all-Non-management-certificated-personnelfrom
their-prineipak-tor-other-administrator-responsible-for-the-evaluntion-of-the
employee's-performance)—Fhis-approval-will-be-made-Lon-the-busis-of-a-plan
ferwMeﬂy—and—appmpnam—p&ﬂwaenﬂ—rmpmvem&Mibemp[&yeeﬁ-—
Ap iversity-eourses-must-be-completed
aatHdIed-w:th—&e—khmmwllewurees—@ﬁiee—&ppmv&l forms-tor-in-service
eourses-offered-by-the-Staf-Fraining-Services-Department-musl-be-fled-with
that-depactment—Approvals-denied-by-the-principals-may-be-appenled-to-the
assistant-superiniendent-Muman-Resourees-Offiee:

1242 ——Reasons-for-disapproval-by-the-site- administrator-must-be-substantialed-in-writing

12422

and-returned-to-the-teacher-yithin-five-(5) duys-Eatlure-to-do-se-shatl-eonstitute-a
waiver-of-the-site-administrator's-right-lo-disapprove-the-coursefs):

The-teacher-may-appeal-the site-administralors-disapproval-to-the-assistant
superintendent-Human-Resourees Olfice-oi-in-histher-absence-the-approprinte

5



5 Yk

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

SC1;

A-SCUSD

Eebruary 6, 2024

1243

12.4.3.1

12.4.3.2

12.4.3.3

12.43.4

12435

12.4.3.6

12.43.7

12.43.8

12.43.9

124.3.10

12.4.4

area-assistont-superintendent-—Such-nppeal-must-be-in-writing-and-must-be
received-in-the-approprinte-assistantsuperitendents-offiee-no-tater-than-ten-(Hh
days-afier-the-date-of-the-site-ndministrnters-disapprovak

Credit lor participation in the District's Program for Professional Improvement, as

on July 10, 1978, to be amended according to this Agreement, shall be as follows:

Textbook evaluation or curriculum development (allowance, one [ 1] unit of credit
per thirty-two [32] hours of time expended).

Junior college or adult education courses (allowance, one 1] unit of credit per
fifteen [15] hours in a lecture course, or forty-five [45] hours in a laboratory
coursc).

Educational rescarch (allowance, one [1] unit per thirty-two [32] hours of effort
expended).

Prolessional organization work (allowance, one [1] unit per thirty-two [32] hours
of time and effort expended).

Visitations or observations (allowance, one [ 1] unit per forty [40] hours spent).

Conference atiendance (allowance, one [1] unit per forty [40] hours of
attendance).

Workshop attendance (allowance, one [1] unit per thirty-two [32] hours of time
and effort cxpended).

Development of teaching materials (allowance, one [ 1] unit per forty [40] hours
of time expended).

Travel (allowance, one [ 1] unit per week of travel; limit, three [3] units per
three-year period).

Private study (allowance, one [1] unit per thirty-two [32] hours of time expended).

Transcripts or official grade cards containing evidence of units earned should be
filed immediately upon completion. The deadline for filing units for July 1 class
changes is October 10. The deadline for filing units for February 1 class changes
is March 10. Class changes based upon credits eamed prior to the deadline dates
will be retroactive to July | or February 1. Records filed will not be returned to
the employee. Employees new to the District will have a maximum of sixty (60)
days from (heir first day of required service in which to file units. Handwritten or
typed grade cards cannot be accepted unless properly stamped with the school
seal.
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12.5 Method of Payment
12.5.1 The annual amounts shown on the Teachers' Salary Schedule are full annual

contract salaries and are based upon required days of service as provided for in
this contract. Employees on regular and temporary contracts may elect either to
have payment made in either twelve (12) ¢qual installments beginning on
September 30 and continuing through August 31, or ten (10) equal installments
beginning on September 30 and continuing through June 30, except for those
incumbents on the advanced pay plan, who may have payment made in twelve
(12) equal installments beginning on July 31 and continuing through June 30,
Requests for changes in preferred pay plan must be submitted in writing to the
Human Resources Office no later than May 15 preceding the school year in
which the change is to take place.

12.6 Computations

12.6.1 When unit members begin employment in their position on the first comtracted day for that fiseal
year, their annual salary will be equalized over the months of the contracted serviee in that fiscal

year, Fqualized means that number of paid contenctual days for the year will be spread out equally
amongst the contracted months of service regurdless of the actual number of work days in each individual
month,

When unit members begin paid service atany time aller the first day of their positions” contracted service
days, their firstmonthrofpay-witkbe-adivsted-for-tharmonil-onlyte-alow-thei e monthly checksto

will be equalized based upon the tolal possible contraet diys remaining in thit year. _ss-theugh-they

started-on-the first day oF service:

Afthefirstmonth pay-udjusiment-forunit members-who-begin-puid-service nlter-the fis-din-oftheir _—{ formatted: Stikethrough, Highlight

pﬂsiliomiﬁ-&mlraemhewiw-duywreule&n-ﬁnmwiubhurdﬂhip.—lmil-memhuls-muyﬂqlml-nvsnhwy
itdvaneenentrelated-to-thei-finstmontrofservice—Said-ndvaneement-will-be-repaid-menthly-throughout

the-remninder-ofthe-conrncted-year . | Formatted: Strikethrough

12.6.2 When an employee is reassigned from a position of psychologist, program
specialist, or school social worker, to a position compensated on the Teachers
Salary Schedule, placement shall be in the class on the teachers' schedule to
which he/she is entitled by virtue of training, provided that his/her step placerent
in the class on the teachcrs' schedule shall be that which is closest to but not less
than the daily rate presently reccived; except that such rate cannot exceed the
maximum rate of the assigned class,

12.6.3 When an employee is reassigned from a position compensated on the salary
schedule for certificated Non-management Children's Center personnel to a
position compensated on the Teachers' Salary Schedule, he/she shall be moved to
the training classification for which he/she qualifies at the same step, except that
he/she shall be allowed one (1) step increment if the requirements of an annual
earncd increment have been met, and placement is not already at maximum for
the class.
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12.7 Per Session Compensation
12.7.1 Per session or hourly rate shall be based upon the adopted salary schedule. The

rate shall be calculated at 1/1080 of the Teachers' Salary Schedule for K-12 and
preschool up to a maximum amount calculated from Class C, Step 2.

12.7.2 Members of the unit employed in summer school or part-time adult shall be paid
at the appropriate per session rate of pay.

12.7.2.1 The per session rates for K-12 summer school shall be the same as set forth in
Section 12.7.1, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties. [ok]|

12.7.2.2 Adult Education Teachers paid on hourly Adult Education Teachers' Salary
Schedule (Appendix B-5) shall be paid the hourly amount per Class H-2, Step 7
for summer school work.

12.7.3 In any fiscal year a non-contract employce who has completed 810 hours of per
session service with the Sacramento City Unified School District shall be entitled
10 an earned increment for the following year. However, if less than 810 hours are
worked during a fiscal year, all of such hours shall be accumulated and carried
forward to the next fiscal year.

12.7.3.1 When accumulated hours equal 1,050 during the year eamned increment is granted,
the hours worked beyond 1,050 shall be credited toward the next step incremcnt;
provided that no employee shall be cligible for more than one (1) eamed step
increment during any fiscal year.

12.7.3.2 Earned increments shall be granted only on July 1 of each fiscal year. No
distinction shall be made as to the manner in which per session hours are
accumulated, i.¢., from adult education, summer session, home teaching, etc.;
provided, that per session hours shall have no effect upon step increments granted
to contract employees.

12.7.4 All certificated personnel who voluntarily perform duties authorized by the
Human Resources Office which are beyond their normal service day shall be
paid at their per session rates of pay, except for assignments and meetings as sct
forth in Article 5, Sections 5.9 through 5.10.7, and Sections 12.8.4 through 12.9.8
of this Article.

12.8 Compensation for Required Extra Service
12.8.1 All personnel erployed in classifications such as child welfare and attendance

counselors, department chairpersons, counselors, and vocational specialists, and

Salary Schedule in the same manner as regular teachers, and shall advance in the
same mannet, To their salaries, however, shall be added the product of the

8
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number of days of service beyond those required of regular teachers times the
contract daily rate.

128.2 Any member of the bargaining unit who is required by appropriate administrative
authority or District regulation to serve additional days or hours beyond his/her
service year or service day, as defined in Article 5 of this Agreement, shall be
compensated for such day or [raction thereof at the contract hourly rate or the per
session rate, whichcver is greater, cxcept for extra duty pay for those selected
work assignments enumerated in Scctions 12.8.4 through 12.9.8 of this Article
and also excepting Sections 5.3.7 and 5.9 through 5.10.7 of Article 5.

In addition. any clementary teacher who is not provided a prep period shall
cither @) receive an alternative prep period within five-fificen (515) working
days of the missed prep period or b) receive pay lor the missed prep at the
bargaining unit member’s contrnctual hourly rate of pay,

12.8.3 Adult Education Teachers who teach beyond regular contract hours of service
shall be paid per session rates.

12.8.3.1 Aduli Education Teachers who are placed on the hourly Adult Education
Teachers' Salary Schedule (Appendix B-5) shall be paid at the appropriate rate
for all hours assigned except thal hours beyond 40 hours per week in the Adult
Program shall be paid at 1 1/2 times the appropriate rate.

12.8.4 When teachers agree voluntarily to serve on curriculum development committees
or project teams, they shall be given the alternative of released time with the
provision of a substitute, or the negotiation of a-"contraet™for-such-work-which
shattbe-based-en-a contract daily rate. i-002438- o Cluss-ASlep-8: |OK|

12.8.5 In order to reimburse employees who temporarily assume the duties of a
principal, the District shall provide a stipend to a designated person in each
school where there is no co-administrator. This stipend will require that the
designated member of the bargaining unit shall assume the duties in the absence
of the principal for any and all occasions when the principal is not available at
the school site. Designated teachers in charge shall be paid a two hundred
dollars ($200) nonthly- stipend above ef ten-pereent-(10%)-above their regular
salary $50.00 for each of ten nine calendar months, Such persons serving i
year-round programs (c.g., 230-day programs) shall be paid a monthly stipend of
two hundred dollars (5200) ten-pereent-(48%) above their regular salary $30-00

lor each calendur month of the year,

— '[ Formatted: indent: Left: 0", First line: 0"
a. No teacher shall be required to serve in this position.
b. All teachers shall be given an opportunity o volunteer for this position
each year,
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12.8.5.1

12.8.6

12.8.6.1

12.8.6.1.1

12.8.6.1.2

12.8.7

12.8.8

12.8.8.1

c. A designated teacher in charge shall have the right to withdraw at any time
with 10 working days' notice and be paid on a pro rata basis.

d. The designated teacher in charge shall be informed cach time the
site administrator is Lo be absent from the school,

e. A designated teacher shall not have discipline or evaluation
responsibilities for members of the bargaining unit.

When both the principal and designated teacher are absent and another member ol
the unit is assigned responsibility for carrving out the duties of the principal,
he/she shall be compensated at the rate of ten-perees lifly dollars ($50) per
day above of their regular salary $8-perday.

When an employee temporarily assumes the duties of a viee principal, he/she
shall regeive a stipend ol sevesr-pereent-(2%) ily dollars (530) per day above
their regular salary per day. which equals-the ditferenee between his/her regulur
duily-rate-and-the-daily-rate earngble ts-a-viee-prineipal, provided-that he/she

shall-notreeeive-less-than $5-00-ner-mere-than-$8.00 additionnl-compensation
perdiy:

Children's Center teachers designated as teacher-in-charge must meet state
requirements.

At Children's Centers and with Pre-school Head Teachers where only one teacher
is assigned, the designated teacher-in-charge shall be granted i ten-pereent-(10%)
two hundred dollars ($200) per month above their regular salary iftyv-dollar
(550:009 stipend for cach month of service,

Aleach Children's Center site where two (2) or more teachers are assigned. the
stipend for designated teacher-in-charge shall be shared between two teachers and
shall be five-pereent-(3%) one hundred dollars (S100) per day above their regular
salary per month of service lor euch teacher

In accordance with Education Code Section 44032, District personnel required to
travel out-of-District and/or attend mandated workshops, seminars, or
conferences, will be reimbursed for actual lodging expenses and/or a maximum
equivalent to the single rate charged for lodging designated as conference
headquarters, the per diem rate for meal expenses i the rute established by the
United States General Services Administration and mileage claims, if any,
whether in-District or out-of-District, will be paid at a milcage allowance rate
based on the current IRS rate. effeetive-Septembel—2005- [OK

Parent Participation Teachers

Parent participation pre-school teachers who teach in a State-funded program for
30 hours a week shall receive a stipend of 6.3% of the annual base salary.

10
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12.8.8.2

12.8.8.3

12.8.8.4

12.8.8.5

12.8.8.6

12.8.8.7

12.9

12.9.1

12.9.2

Parent participation pre-school tcachers who teach in a Head Start/State-funded
program for 29 hours a weck shall receive a stipend of 12.9% of the Head Starl
portion of the annual base salary.

Parent participation pre-school teachers who teach in an Adult Ed/Head Start-
funded program for 30 hours a week shall receive a stipend of 12.9% of the Head
Start portion of the annual base salary.

Parent participation pre-school teachers who teach in an Adult Ed/State-funded
program for 30 hours a week shall receive a stipend of 6.3% of the State-funded
portion of the annual base salary,

All teachers identified in section 12.8.8.1 through 12.8.8.4 will be excused from
the District bimonthly in-service training. However, cach teacher will, in
consultation with his/her supervisor, develop an individualized staff development
plan.

No home visits will be required for teachers identified in sections 12.8.8.1
through 12.8.8.4 for the State-funded portion(s).

Home visits will be required for teachers identified in sections 12.8.8.1 through
12.8.8.4 for the Head Start-funded portion(s).

Extra Pay for Extra Duty

The following six (6) pay categories shall be cstablished as the basis for
compensating employees on the extra duty schedule described in Section 12.9.2
of this Article.

Category A: .083125 of Class A, Step 8.
Category B: 86.75% of the amount for Category A
Category C: 73.5% of the amount for Category A
Category D: 60.25% of the amount for Category A
Category E: 47% of the amount for Category A
Category F: 20.8% of the amount for Category A

The following table designates the specific positions allocated to Categories A
through F.
Abbreviation Key

(AL Assistap (13) Hoys

(F)__ Treshmen oty T 1 7 -
an - fend (LS) High Sghaol

Y ——lunioeiigh M-

(M) Muddle Schopl {Sy—Sophomore
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VL Vasiy (W Waomen

U JusionVasity (M) Dt Musal

). Elementary

Category A Category B
Agricullure Athletie-Director(HS)
Band Digecton Band-Bireetor
Baseball (LLV.M) Buseball (JVE:M}
Bashetball(EL V. 13M) Basketbull (J VEMB)
Basketball (11.0G%) Puskeball () VEMGY
Foothall (11.V,M) Cross:County ()2
Trek2(1LV MWB.G) Badusisiton (1L V, [3)e
Wieesibing (HLY.MI3) Badminton (Y. G)r
Wresthing (1LV.G) [lag Football (1L G)
Athlotie Director (HS)  (moved  (mom Jhrach Vatleyball (HLV.GY

Category B)
Softhall (WG (nwved Tom Cotggony
B)

Drmma

Lall MusiealiPlay Diregtor
Spring Mugicpl Play Dieetur
Football (VAM)
Newspaper Advisnr
Orchestra

SofthulbdNy
bimunhrlli.hgls.ﬂl‘\

&m.ﬂﬂi.—\_&!&&h&_) v mLm ARC
WVocal Music

Volleybal) (H.W-13)

Vollevball (H.G)

Yearbook

Computitive Clicer

Gol LMWL B (moved from Citegory C)
GolLAEWE.G) (moved from Category C)
Soccer (HM.B) (moved from Con C)
Sm:ss..r.ﬂlbi 1) muved from Cat, C)

s flb.l[[ mrgl Trom Cat. C)

S ' l

Witter Polo. L‘.LB}
Water Polo (FLG)

Tennis (L.B)
Tennis (HLG)

Category B - contmned
Basketbull (1. (M)
Soceer (1LIM)
Volleybull (MLIM)

Category C

Atbleties Diregtar (HS,A)
Bascball (F M)
Busketbull (F.MB)
Basketbal (1,G)

Category D

All City Band

All City Choir
AlLCiLy Orchesiny
Athlelic Director (MS)
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Bushutbull 68W) Basehull.(B)JLENMS
Cross-Countiy{ AN V) LmkﬂlaleLM&.l!):L‘:lﬂdb
Football (IV. A) Mkﬁﬂlﬂfﬂ&&nmﬂ.mﬂl_f;l
Jusz Band (HS, M5) Brondwny Musical Direcior (HS)
Gyimnstica MW Clusx Advisor (MS, 115)
Seveer(MW (moved w Ca_13) Choir (MS)
Softhalb (58 (moved 1o Cii, ) Cross-Country (MS,13.G)-JHAME
Syimming? (A M) Giymnuati
Lrngk”®® (A V) (ehonging Jrom (1) * 1o Football (FA)
(3)242) Muthletes (HS MS)
Volleybull (SIIV () Middle Schoy| Advisors
Volley Middie School Band
all (.G fMoved from Ca 1) Widdle School Orchestra
Wrestling (A, B) Soccer (I, WG)
Wreslling (A, G) Soceer (M3.5)
Soecer (MS.G)
Softhalk WS (moved 1o Cat, €)
Softball (MS.CDIMS
Spirit Advisers(lIS ) (moved 1o Sidale Cleer-Adviso
Ell-and-Spring below)
Aui&nLl&mb LActivity Advisors (MS)
Swinming=24eA) (now in Car C wih (3) **4)
Teuniz i (noved (o Cat B)
FemisE moved © Cal 1)
Frnok- W (Moved 1o Cat C)
Truek (MSHBHUAAS-{Now only Ca-ed)
Volleyball (F._B)
Volleyball (F, G)
Valleybill (MS.CG-HHAME
Volleybail (MS.13)
Vocal Music
WinerPolo (moved to Cal C)
Wrastling:tiad) tmoved o Cud €)
UE&LOMLM
Q.QIELIMSJ
Category E Catepory F
Al-City Orchestra lntramuenls (3.G)-JHV/MS
AH-City Choit . s
Asststont Broadway Musical Director (AMS) Center, Preschool****
Flog Football (2)
Basketball (1)
Sideline Cheer (MS)
Stade Fall (E)
Stride Spring (£)
Lmoving “Assistant” o the end us tetier ghbrevintion E Spouts (MS.115)

(lor conmisteney)
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Al-City-Bund
GumnnstemtdaG-tMS
Qichesim

Fall Musical/Play (A)

Spomg MuosicalPlay (A)
Foofbull** (A IS)

———Sdwoliuoptiohivetwo 2 head conchisinCalupory Band one- e nssistintin-Eategar-Coorone
(Hilead-conirin-Cntegore- A two (23 nssistants - Goteson-E-thenosase-shollwegooh-be-placed
in-Cateaory-Aunlesshe/siehos il wsponsibilit-foeboth nens and-women’s ek progmm)

B Gross-copntry-coilches st piricipate i one-Hhbnesperwesk-formminimuni-of=t2-weeks and-field
the-totekprogmm-AaSonnd-Gite he-dligible for-Eutepory-B

st Sohovls-muv-oprie-have-iwo-t2Hhwndconehgs-orone ¢ iend-coneh-nnd-one-£Hmsistani-congh;

*Athletic Diceclors shall also receive additional per diem compensation equivalent to one prep
period.

12.9.3 It is understood by the parties that all high school, junior high scheol, and middle
school coaching positions on Lhe extra duty schedule are assigned by mutual
agreement of the principal and the teacher involved. If the tcacher wishes to
withdraw from an extra duty coaching position, or if the principal wishes to
withdraw the extra duty assignment from the person presently holding that
position, each party must notify the other in writing no later than December 1 of
any school year for spring sports for that school year, and no later than June 1 of
any school year to be effective at the beginning of the subsequent school year.

a. Teachers who are declared surplus after the June 1 date and who have
already agreed Lo a coaching assignment at their school for the subsequent
year shall have the option of withdrawing from the coaching assignment if
the teacher does not return to the school site.

b. Coaching vacancies will be advertised first within the school in which the
vacancy occurs. If there are no qualified applicants within the school, the
position shall then be opened for other applicants from inside the District.
If there are no qualificd applicants from inside the District, the position
shall be opened to outside of the District.

12.9.3.1 Such changes in extra duty assignments noted in 12.9.3 shall have no effect on the
teacher's assignment to classes during the service day.

129.3.2 If a teacher serving in a position listed on the extra duty pay schedule other than
coaching desires to withdraw from the extra duty position, he/she shall so notify
the site administrator in writing no later than March 1 preceding the school year in
which withdrawal would become cffective.
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12.9.3.3

12934

12.9.3.5

12.9.3.6

12937

12.9.3.8

12.9.4

Upon receipt of such notification, the principal should take the following courscs
of action as appropriate:

a Survey the faculty by memorandum, bulletin, or meeting, to determine if
there is another individual who is qualified and interested in the extra
duty assignment.

b. In the event that there is a teaching vacancy to be filled, determine if it
is feasible to add the extra duty to the teaching position. In making such
a determination, the principal should confer with the director, Secondary
Certificated Personnel Services, regarding the likelihood of applicants
who would be qualified for both the teaching assignment and the extra

duty.

If the principal is unable to fill the extra duty assignment by either course of
action, he/she should then discuss with the teachers requesting withdrawal the
kind of action which the teacher is willing to undertake in order to be relieved of
the extra duty assignment. Such actions could include:

a. “trading” extra duty assignments with other teachers who may also be
interested in a change;

b. requesting reassignment to a vacant teaching area in the school
not associated with the extra duty assignment; or

c. filing a voluntary request with the Personnel Services Office for transfer to
another school.

Such requests for transfer will be considered in keeping with the sections
governing transfers in Article 8 of this contract.

If none of these options are available to the teacher, or if the teacher is unwilling
to pursue them, the principal may continue to hold the teacher responsible for the
extra duty assignment during the ensuing school year, in which case the request
for withdrawal will remain in effect unless withdrawn by the teacher.

A teacher losing his/her classes related to his/her extra duty assignment shall have
the option of withdrawing from that assignment.

It is understood by the partics that eachers not already involved in non-athletic
coaching assignments shall not be required to assume any such assignments.

A teacher assuming classes that have a related activity is obligated to assume
responsibility for that related activity.

‘The CIF required coaching days prior to the first day of school shall be
compensated for and included in the extra duty stipend.

15
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12.9.5

12.9.6

12.9.7

12.9.8

The secondary principals acting in committee, as a whole, will establish District-
wide minimum requirements for activities not covered by league rules.

The parties agree that transportation for athletics and other school activities
covered by present District policy shall be considered a budget priority.

Regular contract teachers who also are assigned extra duty coaching assignments
will receive equal treatment and the same protection granted to all members of the
bargaining unit which derive from the current Agreement between the partics.

It is further understood by the parties that a joint Board/Association committee
(five [5] members to be selected by each party) will be appointed no later than
thirty (30) days following the effective date of this Article, to conduct an annual
review of the extra pay for cxtra duty schedule. The tasks of the committee shall
be to review existing positions for proper categorical placement on the schedule
and to consider addition or deletion of any position. The findings of the
committee shall be subject to review by the Association and the Board by March
31 of each school year. The findings shall be implemented during the next school
year unless objection is raised by either party prior to June 1.

16
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12.9.9 Department Chairs/Leads: Forty-tive-positions-Distriet-wide-with-o0One
department chair assigned to each of nine-departments al cach segular high school in the
following departmients (needs to be updated):

Physical Education Math

Social Science BrisinesseAGE

Science Fine Arts, Industrial Arts, Electives
Foreign Language Special Education

Counseling”

English

Any new high school shall have the same department chair staffing.

a. The service year shall be two (2) workdays beyond the teachers' required
days of service paid at the contract daily ratc; and

b, Department chairs shall receive payment from the extra-duty pay schedule
(12.9.2) according to the number of class sections taught within the
department as follows:

A - 88 65 scclions or more  E—4d5-sections-or-fore
B - 65 scctions or fewer mere B —44 sections oFmore

#lhe Counseling Department Chair shall be paid at the B3 extra-pay
schedule.

12.99.1 Each department chairperson shall be selected annually by a vote ol the teachers
in cach department. the-high-sehoel-principal from-smeng- list ofnet-less-than
two{2-eachers-tuess-anly-oneteaches pplied) front-the-department—Fhe
teaehers-shil-have-been-nominated by-a-mujority- oF-thetenchers-in-the
depaetment: - [n the case of’a tic, the Principal will decide between the two (2)
finalists.

a. A qualifying teacher may self-nominate or agree to any nomination from
department stall members.

b. To qualify for nomination or to vote on a nomination a teacher must
instruct for at least three periods per day in the department.

€3 Limited term teachers, substitutes, and temporaries may not vote.

d. Teachers who serve in department chair positions may not serve for more
than three consecutive years.

Voting by each department shall take place in March of each school year
and shall be conducted by the bargaining unit employees in the

o
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12.10

12.10.1

12.10.2

12.10.3

12.10.4

12.10.5

12.11

12.11.1

12.112

12.12

12.12.1

department. The principal shail not participate or otherwise try to
influence the outcome of the vote. Every tcacher who qualifies to vote
shall be given an opportunity to do so.

f. Split departments may by majority vote agree to have co-chairs, one from
each department. The voting process will be handled in the same manner
as all other departments. However, the co-chairs shall be compensated at
one-half the stipend rate as specified on the extra-duty schedule which a
teacher would have earned as chair of the split department. In addition,
cach co-chair would serve and be paid for two days beyond the teachers'
days of service.

Partial Funding for Sabbatical Leaves

Members of the bargaining unit who are granted sabbatical leaves will receive the
difference between their contract salaries and the amount specified for Class C,
Step 2.

District contributions for all fringe bencfits shall continue for the duration of such
leave at the same level as for all members on paid-leave status.

Afier the initial approval of an application for sabbatical leave, the Human
Resources Office shall provide full information regarding the compensalion
which will be paid to the applicant while on leave.

The applicant shall have five (5) working days upon receipt of such financial
information to inform the Human Resources Office of intent to accept or refuse
the leave before (inal approval of the Board is obtained.

Refusal o accept such leave shall not be the basis of denial of subscquent
applications submitted by the employee for sabbatical leaves.

The certificated Non-management salary schedules are incorporated into this
contract as Appendix B.

These salary schedules contain no overt or covert provisions for salary
discrimination based upon sex, race, creed, marital status, handicap, or age.

No differentials shall exist in rates of compensation except as provided for in this
Agreement,

Subbing on Prep Time

Secondary teachers who give up prep periods to work as substitutes will be paid at
the prorated (one-fifth) higher substitute rate. Secondary teachers who work block
schedules will be paid at the appropriate prorated higher substitute rate.

18



TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
SCTA-SCUSD

February 6, 2024

Notwithstanding the above, the District may continue to assign secondary
teachers to unpaid emergency substitutions as set forth in Article 5.4.6.

[Delete Remainder of Article 12—current 1213, 12.14, 12.15, 12.16~- because those sections
are obsolete.] [OK]
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ARTICLE 17 - CLASS SIZE

17.a

17.1
17.1.1

17.1.2

17.1.3

17.1.4

17.1.5

17.1.6

17.1.7

17.2
17.2.1

The District's goal is that all class size maximums will be met by the end of the first
week of school with students in order to enhance the educational process, Schoals
unable to meet maximums by this time are not subject lo any grievances. School
administrators must communicate the reason(s) to their supervisors for inability to
meet maximums,

‘The parties may agree 1o discuss other issues.

Elementary Class Size Limitations

At the kindergarten level, (he maximum class size shall not exceed twenty-four (24)

students per teacher so long as LCFF Class Size Grade Span Adjustment (GSA) funds

are in effect, If LCFF Class Size Grade Span Adjustment (GSA) funds are not

continued, the class size maximum shall not exceed twenty-nine (29). _
[ok]

At grades 1- 3, the maximum class size shall not exceed twenty-four (24) students per
tcacher, so long as LCFF Class Size Grade Span Adjusiment (GSA) funds are in
effect. If LCFF Class Size Grade Span Adjustment (GSA) funds are not continued, the
class size maximum shall not exceed twenty-cight (28).

Al grades 4-6, the maximum class size shall nol exceed Hristy-three-(33) 30 students
per teacher.

Instrumental music teachers will not be included in determining the staffing ratio in
the clementary school.

The maximums established in Section 17.1 of this Article may be exceeded by mutual
agreement between the site administrator and the affected teacher.

The District shall have 15 school days at the beginning of each school year to adjust
classes to meet the maximums established in 17.1.1 through 17.1.3. Thercafier,
maximums in any class may be exceeded by no more than three (3) students and only
for a cumulative total of five (5) school days during any school year as required (o
meel student needs, except in those classrooms where the mandates set forth by the
state do not allow for larger class sizes. In those instances where a class size exceeds
the maximum, certificated stafT shall be paid ninety dollars ($90) per day for every
day the class exceeds the maximum, [ok]

When two or more classes of the same grade level(s) arc housed at the same school
site, the enrollment difference between the smallest and largest classes shall not
exceed I,Lch_t:,ij_l_ﬁva.»cxccpl by mutual agreement of the sitc administrator and the
teachers involved._[ok]

Special Subject Teacher:

Special subject teachers shall provide release preparation time for no more than
seventeen (17) qualifying teachers per week excluding him or hersell, Qualifying

- —-‘[ Formatted: Highlight ]
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17.2.2

teachers means gradcs 1 through 6 classroom teachers, including special day class
teachers (which shall include aide support).

The maximum teacher load (or special subject teachers shall not exceed 190 students

per day. [OK]|

17.3
17.3.1

17.3.2

3 Formul
Tth and 8th Grades
One (1) teacher per thirty-one (3 1) students enrolled: which shall be computed on

third-month projected enrollment._ add-oOne (1) teacher shall be added (or all
fractional remainders over 0.50.

9th, 10th, 11th, and 12th Grades

One (1) teacher per thirty-two (32) students enrolled; which shall !'I& compulted on
third-month prq;]::clcd enrollment, ndd-oOne (1) teacher shall be added for all

fractional remainders over (.50,

1733 Secondavy-statling shall-be-based-upon-third-monti-projeetions: [OK]

17.4

17.4.1

Jislri inning of vach sclhool year (o adjust
classes to meet the maximums established in 178, 1 through 17.4.8, Therealler
maximums in any elass may be exceeded by no more than three (3) students and only
for a cumulative total of ten (10) school davs during any school vear as required Lo
meet student needs, except in those classrooms where the mandates set forth by the
state do not allow for larger class si

The District shall have 15 school days at the be

ot allow for In (hose instances where i class size exceeds
the maximum, certilicated stall shall be paid ninety dollars (590) per day for every
day the class exceeds the maximum,

Adistments-lo-masimums-astbe-made-s-thedunrtiavee ko b the-newschoo bvenr
fustinents-during-the-sehool vear-are to-he-made-afler-maximmms-have-been

exceeded-for ten (H0)vonsecutive days: after-whieh-the-Distriet-has-an-asdditionnl-10-

day-period-to-take-whatever-uction-is-necessary-to-alleviate the-exvess: |ok|

— T herenlier-in those-instances-where-n-elass-size-still exeeeds the-maximuny,

1742

certilicated stall shall be-paid-ninety-dollnes£590)-per-davtorevery-din- the-elass
exeeeds-the-maximum. [ok|

When two (2) or more sections of classes having the same course content are scheduled
1o meet during the same period, the enrollment difTerence between the smallest and the
largest classes will not exceed (hree (3) Five (5)-exeept by a mutual agreement of the site
administrator and the teacher(s) with a class(es) having an enrollment difference in
excess of- three (3) five(5)._[OK]
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17.4.3

1744 Maximum class size for Iproﬁcicncy and developmental classes shall be twenty (20)
students per period. Staff allocation for proficiency classes shall be computed
separately from the ratios shown in Sections 17.2.1 and 17.2.2 of this Article.

17.4.5 Class size maximums and/or maximum pupil loads shall be proportionate for teachers
assigned to subject arcas with and without maximums and/or with differing
maximums.

17.4.6 The maximum teacher load in the secondary schools shall be limited to 170 pupil
contacts per day. Exceptions to this maximum are permissible with mutual agreement
between the teacher and principal.

[ Formatted: Font color: Red, Strikethrough, Highlight
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; Is sure that th hysical education and
music teachers beginning with-the third-sehool-month-will be220. Class sizes for
physical education teachers in middle and high schools will be based on a
roportional level of 44 as maximum per period. Physical education teachers with
ewer than five (5) periods will have the maximum student load total (220) reduced
by the proportional level. (Example: 44 x 5 =220. If tcacher has only four (4)
classes the total student load would be 44 x 4 =176). The parties agree that the actual
number of students in any particular class may fluctuate shightly but that no single
class will have more than lony-cith (448) students with the single exception of pre-
designated PE Athletic classes on Kduring sixth period (and il'absaluleigv necessary,
fifth period) at High Schools which may have no more than fifty-five (55) students.
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counsclors, except by a mutul Agreeiment between the site = —[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt, |
administrator and the counselor. Not Bold

The student/counselor* workload in continuation high schools, independent study school
(Capital City), Accelerated Academy and the opportunity school will be one (1) full-time
counselor for each 150 students enrolled, based upon the third-month projected enrollment.

|("$l = = = - ) | Formatted: Font: {Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt i

_Aller the grace period, in those instanees where a counselor workload still ~{ Formatted: Not Highlight )|
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stations available where a student normally spends the majority of the class time Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt
performing the operational functions necessary to meet performance objectives and
goals of the course.

17.6 Special Education Class/Caseload Size Maximums

17.6.1 Based on each students’ IEP, the District will provide a continuum of scrvices for
spectil education-students receiving special education services that will meet the
educational requircments of students with gdisabilltics speeisk-needs-students-while

. ge . . T 5 A e Y E T
providing those services in the Least Restrictive Environment in accordance with slate
and federal law, The class size maximums (or special education shall be as specified
by-the-Califernis-stnte-Legistature-and/or-Bepartment-of-Eduention state and federal
law requirements, exeept lor the following limitations sgreed upon bg' the

o [Formatted: Highlight _]

parties. Students with disabilities speeial-needs-will be provided with appropriate ~{ Formatted: Highlight )
supports as informed by students” IEPs and as outlined below;— [OK] =
s hao S e {Formatted: Font: 12 pt ]
k.a.The maximum case load for each — (SDC) Mild/Moderate \lFormaﬂed: Indent: Left: 0, First line: 0", Space Before:
teacher at the clementary level shall be 15-with-the-exception-that-the-maximum 0 pt —

easedond-tor-sbEMaderate-to-Severeshatl-he-13.

e:b. The maximum case load for cach SDC/Mild/Moderate icacher at the secondary
level shall be 16.

¢, The maximum case load for each SDC/Moderate/Severe teacher at the
secondary level shall be 13. [ok]
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k. Adjustments to maximums set forth above at the elementary and secondary level
must be made at the beginning of each school year within 15 school days.

H:. The maximum casc load for teachers participating at John Morse Therapeutic
Center in all grades shall be 10 to 1.

k.

lej. Co-teaching among special education and general education teachers will occur
with the agreement of the assigned teachers. No special education teacher will
be assigned to co-teach with more than two general education teachers. No
general education teacher will co-teach with more than one special education
teacher. The method of co-teaching shall be determined by the co-teachers.

I:k. The maximum case load for teachers participating in Co-Teaching (equal
partnership of special education and general education teachers) Inclusive
Practices (combination of RSP and SDC students) at the elementary and
secondary level shall be 25. Each co-taught class will have g maximum student
enroliment bedonded-with-u-madmum of 1/3 students with IEPs; remaining 2/3
students without IEPs. [0k, except for restoring to 25]

mel General education classes will have a maximum student enroliment be
leaded-with--maximum of 1/3 students with IEPs; remaining 2/3 studenls
without IEPs (maximums excludes students with speech and language only
IEPs). However, this provision shall not prevent any student from being placed
in the least restrictive environment, and if that requires exceeded the above-
referenced maximurns, it will be treated like a class size overage for
compensation purposes.

Az The timeline for adjustments to maximums in special education classes
shall be the same as for general education classes.
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e:n.Case loads above the maximum during these "grace” periods set forth above are
not violations of this Agreement and no penalty shall be imposed on the District
for exceeding the maximums during these periods.

p-0.In the event that the District assigns a case load above the applicable maximum
outside of the "grace” periods set forth above, the District shall compensate the
teacher involved at the rate of $20 perstudent-per duy-above the-maximum-up-to

a-maximuirof-$4H00 pinety dollars ($90) per day. The District shall not exceed

the maximum outside of the unfunded "grace" periods for more than thirty (30)
school days. Under no circumstances shall there be more than five (5) students

over the maximum. [ok]

¢.p.Specialized Health Care: Specialized health care (e.g., catheterizations, gavage
feeding suctioning) should be provided by qualified designated personnel as
defined in the Education Code and recommended by the credentialed school
nurse. Certificated instructional staft shall not be required to perform these
services.

When licensed medical personnel are not available, special education students
unable to self-administer their medication shall have their medication, except for
certain medications such as insulin, administered by qualified designated
personnel, as defined by Ed Code, trained and supervised by a credentialed
school nurse.

m
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d. Classroom teachers who have an aide assigned (o assist with students of *— -—[ Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt ]
special necds students shall direct those aides, consistent with a student’s IEP., 3
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17.9.1 Language, Speech and Hearing Specialists (LSHS) caseload: Elementary or
Secondary: caseload is 55 students (inclusive of a maximum of five [5] speech
improvement students),

11.35 pt, Font Alignment: Baseline, Tab stops: 0.75",
Left

. '(Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.75", Line
\-spar.ing: Multiple 1.08 [i

17.9.1.1  Language, Speech and Hearing Specialists (LSHS) caseload: Preschool only (3-5
years): caseload is 40 students (inclusive of a maximum of five [5] speech
improvement students).

17.9.1.2  School-age and preschool: the caseload shall be reduced proportionally (pr¢-school [Formamd; Highlight _]
students are weighted at_1,375) to reflect the number of preschoolers assigned to
Language, Speech and Hearing Specialists. [provides further clarification of 17.9.1
and 17.9.1.1] [ok]

1792 Sections 17.1.6 and 17.1.7 of this Article are understood to apply (o the
implementation of the above student/ speech and language spectalist ratio. The
District shall have 15 days at the beginning of each school year to adjust classes 1o
I through [7.9.2.

meet the maximums established in 17.9.

okf
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17.10.1  The case load for vocational specialists will be 125 students to one (1) specialist
caleulated on the ten-month average enrollment. Foepurpases-of-these
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17.11 Child Development ren's €enters Non-management Certificated Personnel

17.11.1  Children's Development Centers adult/student ratios shall be based upon ratios
established by Tederal and state requirements,
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17.12 Librarians
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—Ferthe-2043~14 sehool-yenrthe-District-shall employ-no-fewer than eleven-and
three-Fifths-H--6-CFE-librarians—one-ofwhon-shal istrietwide-Hibrasian:
ut-the-Distriet’s secondary-sehaol-sies— | OK |
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[DRAFT]

Tentative Agreement
Between
Sacramento City Unified School District
&
Sacramento City Teachers Association
February 6, 2024

In furtherance of continued efforts to establish a more cooperative and constructive approach to
labor relations, the Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD and the Sacramento City
Teachers Association (SCTA) hereby agree as follows:

1. This Agreement consists of and incorporates the terms of the following Tentative Agreements:
Article 8 (Transfers), Article 12 (Compensation), and Article 17 (Class Sizes).

2. This Agreement also incorporates those terms of the February 6, 2024 Settlement Agreement
between the District and SCTA to the extent the terms of that Agreement expand on or further
define terms of Articles 8, 12, and/or 17. In addition, the discussions between the District and
SCTA related to the February 6, 2024 Settlement Agreement, exclusive of privileged
communications between the parties and their respective counsel, are part of the bargaining
history and record relevant to this Agreement.

3. Unless otherwise noted, the changes made to Article 8 will be implemented as part of the
District’s hiring efforts, upon approval by both parties. Unless otherwise noted, the changes
made to Article 12 will take effect for the 2023-2024 school year. Unless otherwise noted,
changes to Article 17 will take effect for the 2024-2025 school year.

4. This Agreement completely resolves negotiations for the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 school
years. All other terms of the Collective Bargaining Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect, except as modified by the terms of the Tentative Agreements referenced in Paragraph 1 of
this Agreement. The Collective Bargaining Agreement will be extended through June 30, 2025.

5. Consistent with Paragraph ___ of the Tentative Agreement on Article 12, Paragraph 13.18 (B) of
Article 13 (Health Benefits) shall be amended as follows:




Although Article 13 is not currently open in these reopener contract negotiations, the Parties
agree that this change will be incorporated into Article 13 to reflect the Parties agreement to
make the above change as part of the negotiations on Article 12 (Compensation).

The Parties further acknowledge that the savings achieved by this change were used to increase
the across-the-board increase in 2023-24 from 4% to 6%.

. This agreement will be implemented upon approval and/or ratification by both parties.

. The District agrees that retroactive payments due to employees will be provided by no later than
ninety (90) days of approval by both parties.
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Sacramento SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

City Uﬂif.ied. BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District

Agenda ltem# 11.1

Meeting Date: March 7, 2024

Subject: Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023,
Submitted by Crowe LLP

Information Item Only

Approval on Consent Agenda

Conference (for discussion only)

Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )
Conference/Action

Action

Public Hearing

LI

Division: Business Services

Recommendation: Receive the Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2023, submitted by Crowe LLP.

Background/Rationale: Education Code Section 41020 requires school districts to
conduct an annual audit of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Governing Board. The
Sacramento City Unified School District is currently under contract with Crowe LLP to
conduct this annual audit of district records.

Crowe LLP has completed the audit for the 2022-23 fiscal year. State law requires that
the Board of Education review the annual audit report. These reports are filed with the
County Superintendent, State Department of Education, and the State Controller's
Office.

Financial Considerations: None.

LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence

Documents Attached:

1. Executive Summary

2. Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023, Submitted by Crowe
LLP

Estimated Time: 10 Minutes
Submitted by: Janea Marking, Chief Business & Operations Officer
Approved by: Lisa Allen, Interim Superintendent

Page 1 of 1
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Board of Education Executive Summary

Business Services Sacramento
Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 City Unified
Submitted by Crowe LLP School District

March 7, 2024

I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY:

Per Education Code section 41020, each year districts are required to conduct an annual audit of funds
under the jurisdiction of the Governing Board by December 15.

The firm of Crowe LLP audited the financial statements of the district for the year ended June 30, 2023.
The audit is conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. These standards require that the audit is planned and
performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation and internal controls.

Findings and recommendations are reviewed by district staff with corrective action responses provided
in the audit report. In addition, the prior year findings and recommendations section of the audit report
reflects the status of previously identified corrective actions.

Staff and Crowe LLP will present the 2022-23 audit report at tonight’s December 14, 2023 Board Meeting.

Il. DRIVING GOVERNANCE:

e Education Code section 41020 outlines the requirements for the annual audit; scope of
examination; licensing requirements and other limitations; contents of auditor’s report;
corrections; certification.

e Education Code section 41020.3 states that by January 31 of each year, the governing body of
each local education agency shall review, at a public meeting, the annual audit of the local
education agency for the prior year, any audit exceptions identified in that audit, the
recommendations or findings of any management letter issued by the auditor and any
description of correction or plans to correct any exceptions or management letter issue.

lll. BUDGET:

The cost of the annual audit for the year ending June 30, 2023 was $145,000. This is a General Fund
expenditure.

Business Services 1
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Board of Education Executive Summary

Business Services Sacramento
Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 City Unified
Submitted by Crowe LLP School District

March 7, 2024

IV. GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES:

Meet required timeline for annual audit report review by the Board.

V. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

Use findings and recommendations as a guide to ensure continuous improvement.
VI. RESULTS:

Work towards the preparation of the annual audit will continue throughout the year. The initial audit
starts in the spring of each year.

VII. LESSONS LEARNED/NEXT STEPS:

e Continue working with external auditors to review processes and procedures.
e Ensure recommendations and corrective actions are implemented.

Business Services
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sacramento City Unified School District,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Sacramento City Unified School District 's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sacramento City Unified School District,
as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Sacramento City
Unified School District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

(Continued)



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Sacramento City Unified School
District ’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 15 and the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of The District's Contributions -
OPEB, the Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of
the District’s Contributions on pages 61 to 67 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

(Continued)



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
and other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
except for that portion marked “unaudited”, was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information, has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The information marked “unaudited” has
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 27,
2024 on our consideration of the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Creue 1P

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
February 27, 2024




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Section of the audit report is District management’s overall
view of the District’s financial condition and provides an opportunity to discuss important fiscal issues with the
Board and the public. The MD&A is an element of the reporting model adopted by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34. Certain comparative information is required to be presented
in this document.

District Overview

Sacramento City Unified School District (the “District”), located in Sacramento County, is the twelfth-largest
school district in California, with a student enrollment of 43,066. The District provides educational services to the
residents in and around Sacramento, the state capital. Although the District operates under the jurisdiction of the
Sacramento County Office of Education, it has attained 'fiscal accountability' status under the California
Education Code.

For fiscal year 2022-23, the District operated forty-three elementary schools (grades K-6), six elementary/middle
schools (grades K-8), six middle schools (grades 7-8), two middle/high schools (grades 7-12), seven high
schools (grades 9-12), three alternative schools, one special education centers, two adult education centers, two
dependent charter elementary schools (grades K-6), three dependent charter high schools (grades 9-12), seven
independent charters residing in District facilities, three independent charters not residing in District facilities,
twenty preschool programs, and forty transitional kindergarten programs.

The graph below shows the District’s enrollment trend, net of charter school enroliment. The District’s enroliment
and average daily attendance (ADA) continue to decline year over year. The District is funded based on its ADA,
which is tracked daily with staff following up on areas of concern. The District averages approximately 94.3%
ADA to enrollment. The chart below illustrates the District’s projected enroliment, ADA, and funded ADA:
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COVID-19 Impacts

The impacts of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic remain, yet they are steadily decreasing as time is moving
forward. Despite initial projections indicating higher enrollment based on historical trends, the district
encountered a reduction in enroliment attributable to the enduring impact of the pandemic. The district
experienced a decline in enroliment from 2021-22 to 2022-23, decreasing from 38,043 to 37,289, or 1.9% decline
compared to the district’s historical average of .5%.

The district has continued to utilize one-time COVID related funding to mitigate the financial and programmatic
impacts described above. This downturn contributed to a decline in the average ratio. Importantly, there has
been a noticeable decrease in the impacts of COVID, representing a positive development from a financial
perspective.

As we navigate through the challenges posed by the pandemic, the district is focused on transitioning into the
post-pandemic environment. Projections for the future indicate an anticipated improvement in the ADA to
enroliment ratio. The strategic approach moving forward aims to address evolving dynamics and foster a more
positive balance between ADA and enroliment in the aftermath of the pandemic.

Emergency School Closures

On December 27, 2022, the Governor of California declared a statewide state of emergency in response to
severe storms, causing persistent adverse weather conditions in the Sacramento area and subsequent power
outages at various district campuses, including the closure of all district schools on January 9, 2023. In
compliance with Education Code Section 41422, the district enacted emergency closures and submitted
emergency waiver requests to the state for school closures on December 21, 2022, January 9, 2023, January
10, 2023, and February 24, 2023. The District's responsible response to the emergency not only ensured the
safety and well-being of its students and staff but also reflected a positive financial outlook. This proactive
approach demonstrates the District's commitment to preparedness for unexpected and significant events. As we
navigate such challenges, the District remains consistent in its dedication to maintaining fiscal responsibility and
safeguarding the continuity of education for its community. The successful approval of J-13A requests for all
campus closures by the California Department of Education (CDE) further underscores the District's prudent
financial management during unforeseen circumstances.

Governance

The District is governed by a Board of Education consisting of seven members and one non-voting student
member. The regular members are elected to staggered four-year terms every two years. As a result of the
passage of two ballot measures at the November 7, 2006 election, beginning in 2008, Board member elections
are no longer held district-wide but instead are held among voters who reside in each of seven trustee areas.

Strategic Plan and Guiding Principle

The District’'s Strategic Plan 2016-2021 makes a commitment to provide every student with access to
opportunities for success. It functions like a blueprint, outlining a vision for our schools in the future and providing
the steps necessary to attain the vision. The Strategic Plan also guides the District's Local Control and
Accountability Plan, pairing actions with resources.

The District’'s Mission:

Students graduate as globally competitive lifelong learners, prepared to succeed in a career and higher
education institution of their choice to secure gainful employment and contribute to society.



The District’s Vision:

Every student is a responsible, productive citizen in a diverse and competitive world.

The District’s Core Values:

Equity: Commitment to reducing the academic achievement gap by ensuring that all students have
equal access to the opportunities, supports and the tools they need to be successful.

Achievement: Students will be provided with a relevant, rigorous and well-rounded curriculum, with the
expectation that all will be well prepared for a career and post-secondary education.

Integrity: Communication and interaction among and between students, parents, staff, labor and
community partners is defined by mutual respect, trust and support.

Accountability: Commitment to transparency and ongoing review of data will create a culture focused
on results and continuous improvement in a fiscally sustainable manner.

The District’'s Goals:

College, Career and Life Ready Graduates: Challenge and support all students to actively engage in
rigorous and relevant curriculum that prepares them for college, career, and a fulfilling life, regardless of
zip code, race/ethnicity, ability, language proficiency, and life circumstance.

Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students: Provide supports and opportunities to ensure that
every student succeeds, with safe school environments that foster student engagement, promote daily
attendance, and remove barriers to learning.

Family and Community Empowerment: Commit to a welcoming school environment for our community;
recognize and align district partnerships; and provide tools and family empowerment opportunities that
are linked to supporting student academic achievement and social emotional competencies in order for
families to be equal and active partners in their child’s educational success.

Operational Excellence: Be a service-focused organization. Consistently serve students, families, staff
and community with efficient and effective programs, practices, policies and procedures at every point of
contact across the district.

In addition to the Strategic Plan, the District’s Equity, Access, and Social Justice Guiding Principle — All students
are given an equal opportunity to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest
array of options — guides decision making and resource allocation.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of five parts: (1) management's discussion and analysis (this section); (2) the financial
statements; (3) required supplementary information; (4) other supplementary information and (5) findings and
recommendations.

The remainder of the MD&A highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.



The financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District: district-wide
financial statements and fund financial statements. The financial statements also include notes that explain some
of the information in the statements and provide more detail.

The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the District's overall financial position. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the
District's assets and liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of resources. All current year revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The
District's activities are divided into two categories:

e Governmental activities — Most of the District's basic services are included here, such as regular and
special education, transportation and administration. State support from the Local Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) and categorical apportionments finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — The District does not currently have any business-type activities.
These two financial statements start on page 16.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that report on the District’'s operations in more detail
than the district-wide statements. These statements begin on page 18.

District-wide Financial Condition

The Statement of Net Position is a district-wide financial statement that reports all that the District owns (assets)
and owes (liabilities). The District displays the book value of all district assets including buildings, land and
equipment, and related depreciation, in this financial statement. Land is accounted for at purchase cost, not
market value, and is not depreciated. Many school sites have low values because the District acquired the land
many decades ago. School buildings are valued at their historical construction cost less depreciation.
Comparative financial information as of June 30 from the Statement of Net Position is summarized in the
following table:

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 Variance % Diff
Capital Assets 664,601,498 626,455,604 38,145,894 6%
Other Assets 875,171,650 497,220,439 377,951,211 76%
Total Assets $ 1,5639,773,148 | $ 1,123,676,043 $ 416,097,105 37%
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 189,958,284 | $ 157,772,361 | $ 32,185,923 20%
Current and Other Liabilities 199,907,064 186,148,504 13,758,560 7%
Long-Term Liabilities 1,467,939,991 1,150,304,688 317,635,303 28%
Total Liabilities $ 1,667,847,055 | $ 1,336,453,192 $ 331,393,863 25%
$ o

Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 379,376,085 | $ 562,512,156 (183.136,071) -33%




Net Investment in Capital Assets o

(net of related debt) 161,367,275 167,912,958 (6,545683) | 7%
Restricted Net Position 260,362,322 134,049,206 126,313,116 94%
Unrestricted Net Position (739,221,305) (919,479,108) 180,257,803 20%
Total Net Position $ (317,491,708) | $ (617,516,944) | $ 300,025,236 49%

At the end of fiscal year 2022-23, the District had a total value of $1,393,948,424 in capital assets. Capital assets
include land, buildings, site improvements, equipment and work in progress. Total accumulated depreciation
amounted to $729,346,926. Net capital assets totaled $664,601,498, a decrease of $38,145,894 from prior year.
Current and other liabilities include accounts payable, unpaid self-insurance claims and unearned revenue. The
District ended the year with a total of $1,677,847,055 in outstanding obligations, which was an increase of
$331,393,863 over the prior year. The primary reason for the increase in liabilities was an increase of long term
liabilities of $331,393,863. On July 21, 2022, the District issued 2022 General Obligation Bonds totaling
$225,000,000. Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. In addition, on July 21, 2022, the
District issued 2022 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $55,845,000.

The Statement of Activities is a district-wide financial statement that reports the District’s cost of instruction and
other district activities, and the resources that fund individual and general activities of the District. Comparative
financial information for the year ended June 30 is presented in the following table:

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 Variance % Diff
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
Instruction 375,574,546 355,420,397 20,154,149 6%
. . 50
Instruction-Related Services 66,085,627 67,445,790 (1,360,163) 2%
. . Fo
Pupil Services 91,734,611 96,881,251 (5.146,640) | %
General Administration 30,070,866 30,037,239 33627 0%
H (0]
Plant Services 56,002,302 49,815,713 6,186,580 | 127
- 0,
Interest on Long-Term Debt 39,819,563 19,708,386 20,111,177 102%
_210
All Other Expenses and Outgo 6.781,081 8,618,788 (1,837,707) 21%
Total Governmental Activity Expenses $666,068,596 $627,927,564 $38,141,032 6%
Revenues
H _2RO
Charges for Services 3,712,658 5,790,443 (2,077.785) | ~36%
. o 0
Operating Grants and Contributions 350,614,727 263,236.219 87.378.508 33%
. L 1000
Capital Grants and Contributions 54 3,691,945 (3,691,891) 100%
H o
Taxes Levied for General Purposes 135,490 883 128,197,988 7292895 6%




Taxes Levied for Debt and Special 36%
Purposes 67,518,967 49,700,675 17,818,292 0
Unrestricted Federal and State Aid 381,203,145 288,315,825 92,887,320 32%

H 0,
Interest and Investment Earnings 13,771,755 258,645 11,513,110 510%
Interagency Revenues 1,273,954 1,048,118 225,836 22%
Special and Extraordinary ltems - - - 0%

H 0,
Miscellaneous 12,507,689 3,723.204 8,784,395 | 230%
Total Revenues $966,093,832 $745,963,152 $220,130,680 | 30%

| Change in Net Position |  $300,025,236 | $118,035,588 | $181,989,648 | 154% |

The District overall experienced a $181,989,648 increase in net position. Total revenues increased by 30% or
$220,130,680 from fiscal year 2021-22, primarily due to an increase in unrestricted federal and state aid and in
interest and investment earnings. Total expenditures increased by 6% or $38,141,032 from the 2021-22 fiscal
year. The slight increase in expenditures is primarily due to an increase in instruction, plant services, and interest
on Long-Term Debt costs.
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Fund Financial Statements
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The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds. A
fund consists of a self-balancing set of accounts that the District uses to track specific sources of funding and
spending on particular programs:

Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (such as
cafeteria funds) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (such as community facility funds).

The District has three kinds of funds:

Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flow in and out;
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. Because
this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we
provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that explain the
relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary Funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements. Enterprise funds
(one type of proprietary fund) are the same as business-type activities, but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows. The District does not currently have any business-type
activities. Internal service funds (another type of proprietary fund) are used to report activities that provide
supplies and services for the District's other programs and activities. The District currently has one
internal service fund, the Self-Insurance Fund, which includes Workers’ Compensation and Dental/Vision.

Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the
scholarship fund. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used
only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the District's fiduciary
activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements because the
District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

General Fund Financial and Budgetary Highlights

11.



The General Fund accounts for the primary operations of the District. The District’s initial budget is adopted by
July 1. Over the course of the year, the District’s budget is revised several times to account for revised and new
categorical funding appropriations and related expenditures, and to update budgets for prior year carryover
amounts. The budget may also be revised to reflect mid-year changes to the State Budget which affect district
funding. Additionally, the District is required to prepare expenditure reports and must include multi-year
projections at least twice a year. The following table summarizes the General Fund budget to actual information
for the year ended June 30, 2023:

Adopted Budget Year End Budget Actual
Total Revenues $689,889,933 $836,056,554 $797,964,113
Total Expenditures $650,065,110 $768,350,355 $653,164,085
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) $2,342,426 $3,467,968 $3,279,910

The net revenue increase of $146,166,621 between the Adopted Budget and Year-End Budget is due to an
increase in Federal and State Revenue, primarily resulting from the recognition of COVID-related funding
sources, as well as carryover funds from the 2022-23 year-end closing process.

The net increase to the total expenditure budget between Adopted and Year End Budget was $118,285,245,
primarily due to budgeting expenditures for COVID related funding sources and the increase in salaries and
benefits as a result of bargaining unit settlement agreements.

Actual revenues were $797,964,113, or 4.56% below the Year End Budget, due primarily to changes in the
recognition of COVID related funding sources due to less expenditures than projected. Actual expenditures were
$115,186,270 or 14.99% below Year End Budget due to expenditures less than projected in Title programs,
COVID-related, CCSPP, and federal special education funds.

The following table summarizes the General Fund financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023:

Total Revenues $797,964,113
Total Expenditures $653,164,085
Total Other Financing Sources/ (Uses) $3,279,910
Net Change $148,079,938

District Reserves and Net Ending Balance

12.



Revenues that have not been expended during a budget year are carried over for expenditure in the subsequent
year and are identified as the District’'s “Net Ending Balance.” Included within the projected net ending balance
is a “reserve for economic uncertainties.” The State requires districts of this size to retain an amount equal to
2% of budgeted expenditures to cover unforeseen shortfalls in revenues or expenditures greater than budgeted.
Also included in the net ending balance are carryover balances that originated from sources that can only be
used for specific purposes. These “restricted” resources can only be spent on the purposes determined by the
grantor, and the balances in these accounts carry the same restrictions as the originating revenue.

The District also has the option of committing or assigning the ending balance. Committing funds requires the
Board of Education to designate the funds for any purpose by a majority vote at a Board meeting. Once the funds
are committed, the amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board takes action to remove or
change the constraints for the committed funds. The Board has not taken any action in 2022-23 to commit funds.
Assigned ending balances are constrained by the District’s intent but are neither restricted nor committed. An
example of assignment is designating the ending balance to be used for a future textbook adoption.

The chart below represents the District’s financial analysis of its Governmental and Proprietary Funds:

Ending Fund Balances June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 Difference
Fund 01 General $257,932,735 $109,852,797 | $148,079,938
Fund 08 Student Activity Fund $1,570,033 $1,447,941 $122,092
Fund 09 Charter Schools $15,520,269 $9,347,446 $6,172,823
Fund 11 Adult Education $1,061,008 $1,384,337 ($323,329)
Fund 12 Child Development $1,239,859 $880,662 $359,197
Fund 13 Cafeteria $18,388,342 $14,581,388 $3,806,954
Fund 21 Building $277,090,337 $104,526,405 | $172,563,932
Fund 25 Developer Fees $26,933,108 $23,726,622 $3,206,486
Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund $0 $4,891 ($4,891)
Fund 49 Community Facilities $1,794,788 $1,113,186 $681,602
Fund 51 Bond Interest and Redemption $71,570,589 $36,744,469 $34,826,120
Fund 67 Self Insurance $12,328,878 $12,847,753 ($518,875)

Capital Projects

Modernization and construction projects are scheduled to continue as we update our existing facilities and
continue to close out construction projects. With the passage of Bond Measures Q and R in 2012 and Measure
H in 2020, the District continues facility improvements, modernization and construction projects that enhance
the learning environment.

13.



Total Expenditures for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Measure Q Total $ 42,446,272
e Program Management Expenditures $ 951,276

e Completed Project Expenditures:
Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 9,242,929
= Resource and Energy Conservation Improvement Projects $ 2,353,349

e In Progress Project Expenditures:

Core Academic Renovation $ 1,188,766
District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements $ 2,817,887
* Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $ 25,880,117
= Technology Upgrades $ 11,948
Measure R Total $ 822,463
e Program Management Expenditures $ 28,889

e Completed Project Expenditures:
Hiram Johnson Stadium $ 793,574
Measure H Total $ 20,067,926
e Program Management Expenditures $ 4,024,453

e Completed Project Expenditures:

Technology Enhancements $ 1,675,569

e In Progress Project Expenditures:

= Academic and Safety Equal Access $ 8,726,583
= PE and Athletic Programs $ 139,367

Safety and Security Improvements $ 327,812
= School and Classroom Improvements $ 4,358,156
» Technology Enhancements $ 815,986

Summary of Future Projects as of June 30, 2023

Estimated
Project Year(s) Projects
Budget
Measure Q Total $ 60,508,766
2023-2024 Core Academic Renovation $ 14,799,846
2023-2024 Modernization, Repair, and Upgrade Projects $ 43,946,256
2023-2024 District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements $ 162,664

2023-2024 Program Management $ 1,600,000



Measure H Total $ 733,395,866

2023-2028 Academic and Safety Equal Access — New $ 387,453,460
Construction and Major Modernization
2023-2028 School and Classroom Improvements — Campus $ 213,613,085

Renewal / Furniture Replacement /
Sustainability/Energy Reduction / STEAM and CTE

Programs
2023-2028 Safety and Security Improvements — Safety / Path of $ 21,956,188
Travel Remediation
2023-2028 PE and Athletic Programs - Playground Structures $ 105,373,133
2023-2028 Program Management $ 5,000,000

District Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2023, the District has incurred $1,467,939,991 in long-term liabilities. Of this amount,
$693,485,243 are General Obligation Bonds and Accreted Interest backed by property tax increases voted on
by District residents in 1999, 2002, 2012 and 2020, and $52,460,000 is Lease Revenue Bonds, backed by
Developer Fees and Mello-Roos Community Facilities funds.

Financial Outlook

The overall financial strategy underscores anticipation of an improved State Budget and increased funding,
contingent on stable or growing enroliment. Ongoing risks include a continued projected decline in ADA,
increased operating expenditures, such as rising special education costs and pension and health premium
increases, and uncertain future state resources. However, the District is projecting improved fiscal stability due
to the increase in on-going state funding.

Proactive measures have been implemented over the past fiscal years to curtail expenditures and bolster
reserves. The adoption of two Fiscal Recovery Plans, enacted on February 4, 2021, and December 17, 2021,
demonstrates the District's commitment to addressing the persistent structural deficit. Encouragingly, the 2023-
24 First Interim report projects positive cash balances at June 30 for the fiscal years 2023-24, 2024-2025, and
2026-2027.

The District continues to work with its labor partners, community stakeholders, and Sacramento County Office
of Education fiscal advisor to maintain fiscal stability. This collaborative approach reflects a commitment to
inclusivity and comprehensive engagement in the pursuit of financial well-being.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2023

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2)
Receivables

Prepaid expenses

Internal balances

Stores inventory

Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 4)

Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation (Note 4)

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions (Notes 8 and 9)
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB (Note 10)
Deferred loss on refunding of debt

Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (Note 5)
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities (Note 6):

Due within one year

Due after one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (Note 10)
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions (Notes 8 and 9)
Deferred gain on refunding of debt

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:

Legally restricted programs
Capital projects
Debt service

Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
805,481,463 36,034 $ 805,517,497
67,176,998 9 67,177,007
8,235 - 8,235
9,980 (9,980) -
2,494,974 - 2,494,974
75,764,967 - 75,764,967
588,836,531 - 588,836,531
1,5639,773,148 26,063 1,5639,799,211
120,155,934 - 120,155,934
68,922,967 - 68,922,967
879,383 - 879,383
189,958,284 - 189,958,284
178,388,914 1,016 178,389,930
300,701 - 300,701
21,217,449 - 21,217,449
56,337,790 - 56,337,790
1,411,602,201 - 1,411,602,201
1,667,847,055 1,016 1,667,848,071
297,299,781 - 297,299,781
76,759,000 - 76,759,000
5,317,304 - 5,317,304
379,376,085 - 379,376,085
161,367,275 - 161,367,275
160,063,837 - 160,063,837
28,727,896 - 28,727,896
71,570,589 - 71,570,589
(739,221,305) 25,047 (739,196,258)
(317,491,708) $ 25047 $ (317,466,661)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Governmental activities:

Instruction

Instruction-related services:
Supervision and administration
Library, media and technology
School site administration

Pupil services:
Home-to-school transportation
Food services
All other pupil services

General administration:
Centralized data processing
All other general administration

Plant services

Ancillary services

Community services

Enterprise activities

Other outgo

Interest on long-term liabilities

Total governmental activities
Business-Type activities:
Enterprise activities

Total governmental and business-
type activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in

Program Revenues Net Position
Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 375,574,546 $ 2,970,238 $ 169,493,097 $ 54 $§ (203,111,157) $ - (203,111,157)
31,658,839 38,177 68,701,173 - 37,080,511 - 37,080,511
2,251,354 38 523,270 - (1,728,046) - (1,728,046)
32,175,434 6,745 3,802,821 - (28,365,868) - (28,365,868)
11,288,773 - 1,981,595 - (9,307,178) - (9,307,178)
30,438,369 29,673 40,007,084 - 9,598,388 - 9,598,388
50,007,469 89,730 39,351,448 - (10,566,291) - (10,566,291)
5,712,616 8,579 567,251 - (5,136,786) - (5,136,786)
24,358,250 8,346 9,780,176 - (14,569,728) - (14,569,728)
56,002,302 263,897 7,865,997 - (47,872,408) - (47,872,408)
5,018,243 13 1,977,391 - (3,040,839) - (3,040,839)
275,436 2,661 11,091 - (261,684) - (261,684)
67,235 - 1,330 - (65,905) - (65,905)
1,420,167 294,561 6,551,003 - 5,425,397 - 5,425,397
39,819,563 - - - (39,819,563) - (39,819,563)
666,068,596 3,712,658 350,614,727 54 (311,741,157) - (311,741,157)
25,155 - - - - (25,155) (25,155)
$ 666,093,751 $ 3,712,658 $ 350,614,727 $ 54 (311,741,157) (25,155) (311,766,312)
General revenues:
Taxes and subventions:
Taxes levied for general purposes 135,490,883 - 135,490,883
Taxes levied for debt service 61,883,822 - 61,883,822
Taxes levied for other specific purposes 5,635,145 - 5,635,145
Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 381,203,145 - 381,203,145
Interest and investment earnings 13,771,755 - 13,771,755
Interagency revenues 1,273,954 - 1,273,954
Miscellaneous 12,507,689 44,450 12,552,139
Total general revenues 611,766,393 44,450 611,810,843
Change in net position 300,025,236 19,295 300,044,531
Net position, July 1, 2022 (617,516,944) 5,752 (617,511,192)
Net position, June 30, 2023 $  (317,491,708) $ 25,047 (317,466,661)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2023

ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash in banks
Cash in revolving fund
Cash with fiscal agent
Collections awaiting deposit
Receivables
Due from grantor governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenditures
Stores inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to grantor governments
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
fund balances

Bond

Interest and All Total
General Building Redemption Non-Major Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 372,001,647 $ 61,742,944 $ 64,975,700 $ 56,223,945 $ 554,944,236
13,999 354,489 - 3,130,163 3,498,651
225,000 - - 2,000 227,000
- 225,891,716 8,007,526 - 233,899,242
175,520 - - 1,343,431 1,518,951
14,861,990 1,218,314 996,958 9,865,823 26,943,085
32,480,920 - - 7,524,902 40,005,822
7,955,468 - - 2,034,633 9,990,101
8,235 - - - 8,235
104,391 - - 2,390,583 2,494,974
$ 427,827,170 $ 289,207,463 $ 73,980,184 $ 82,515480 $ 873,530,297
$ 86,945597 $ 12,116,727 $ 2,409,595 $ 4,119,745 $ 105,591,664
60,273,351 - - 2,291,524 62,564,875
19,569,449 - - 1,648,000 21,217,449
3,106,038 399 - 7,948,804 11,055,241
169,894,435 12,117,126 2,409,595 16,008,073 200,429,229
337,626 - - 2,392,583 2,730,209
122,284,326 277,090,337 71,570,589 64,114,824 535,060,076
85,832,540 - - - 85,832,540
2,949,890 - - - 2,949,890
46,528,353 - - - 46,528,353
257,932,735 277,090,337 71,570,589 66,507,407 673,101,068
$ 427,827,170 $ 289,207,463 $ 73,980,184 $ 82,515480 $ 873,530,297

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET -
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2023

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds $ 673,101,068

Amounts reported for governmental activies in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used for governmental activites are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds. The cost of the assets is $1,393,948,424 and

the accumulated depreciation is $729,346,926 (Note 4). 664,601,498

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.
Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2023 consisted of (Note 6):

General Obligation Bonds $ (668,440,892)
Accreted interest (25,044,351)
Lease Revenue Bonds (52,060,000)
Premium on issuance (55,385,747)
Net pension liability (Notes 8 and 9) (393,568,000)
Net OPEB liability (Note 10) (267,466,012)
Compensated absences (5,974,989)

(1,467,939,991)

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for which
costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recovery basis. Net
position of the Self-Insurance Fund is: 12,328,878

In the governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilites is not
recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. In the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the
period that it is incurred: (10,165,360)

Losses on the refunding of debt are recognized as expenditures in the
period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, they
are categorized as deferred outflows and are amortized over the life
of the related debt. 879,383

Gains on the refunding of debt are recognized as income in the
period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, they
are categorized as deferred infows and are amortized over the life
of the related debt. (5,317,304)

In governmental funds, deferred outflows and infows of resources
relating to other postemployment benefits (OPEB) are not reported
because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB
are reported (Note 10).

Deferred outflows of resources relating to OPEB 68,922,967
Deferred inflows of resources relating to OPEB (297,299,781)
(228,376,814)
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and infows of resources
relating to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to
future periods. In the statement of net position, deferred outflows
and inflows of resources relating to pensions are reported (Notes 8
and 9).
Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 120,155,934
Deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions (76,759,000) 43,396,934
Total net position - governmental activities $ (317,491,708)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Bond
Interest and All Total
General Building Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Local control funding formula (LCFF):
State apportionment $ 363,362,821 $ -3 - $ 17,369,989 $ 380,732,810
Local sources 119,980,714 - - - 119,980,714
Total LCFF 483,343,535 - - 17,369,989 500,713,524
Federal sources 102,737,272 - - 35,831,146 138,568,418
Other state sources 191,809,507 - 407,564 27,310,055 219,527,126
Other local sources 20,073,799 6,574,681 69,375,313 15,605,449 111,629,242
Total revenues 797,964,113 6,574,681 69,782,877 96,116,639 970,438,310
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries 229,980,325 - - 14,116,812 244,097,137
Classified salaries 67,457,009 699,891 - 14,730,724 82,887,624
Employee benefits 189,601,959 434,722 - 19,790,936 209,827,617
Books and supplies 20,898,836 2,586,947 - 16,965,033 40,450,816
Contract services and operating
expenditures 118,465,566 5,438,103 - 5,722,979 129,626,648
Other outgo 1,420,167 - - - 1,420,167
Capital outlay 25,340,223 55,520,951 - 2,016,392 82,877,566
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - 20,927,074 2,970,000 23,897,074
Interest - 154,887 28,102,809 2,497,974 30,755,670
Total expenditures 653,164,085 64,835,501 49,029,883 78,810,850 845,840,319
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures 144,800,028 (58,260,820) 20,752,994 17,305,789 124,597,991
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 3,279,910 4,945 - - 3,284,855
Transfers out - - - (3,284,855) (3,284,855)
Proceeds from the sale of bonds - 280,845,000 - - 280,845,000
Deposit to escrow fund for refunding - (60,740,000) - - (60,740,000)
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets - 1,462,350 - - 1,462,350
Premiums from issuance of bonds - 9,252,457 14,073,126 - 23,325,583
Total other financing sources
(uses) 3,279,910 230,824,752 14,073,126 (3,284,855) 244,892,933
Change in fund balances 148,079,938 172,563,932 34,826,120 14,020,934 369,490,924
Fund balances, July 1, 2022 109,852,797 104,526,405 36,744,469 52,486,473 303,610,144
Fund balances, June 30, 2023 $ 257,932,735 $ 277,090,337 $ 71,570,589 $ 66,507,407 $ 673,101,068

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

activities are different because:

Acquisition of capital assets is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but increases capital assets in the statement of
net position (Note 4).

Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not recorded
in the governmental funds (Note 4).

In the governmental funds, the entire proceeds (loss) from the disposal
of capital assets is reported as revenue (loss). In the statement of
activities, only the resulting gain or loss is reported (Note 4)

Proceeds from debt are recognized as other financing sources
in the governmental funds, but increases the long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 6).

Repayment of principal on long-term liabilities is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but decreases the
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 6).

Payments made to the refunding escrow is an other financing use in the
governmental funds, but decreases the long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position (Note 6).

Accreted interest is an expense that is not recorded in the
governmental funds (Note 6).

Premiums related to the issuance of long-term liabilities s
recognized as an other financing source in the governmental
funds, but decreases the liability in the statement of net
position. (Note 6).

In governmental funds, deferred inflows and deferred outflows of
resources are not recognized. In the government-wide
statements, deferred inflows and deferred outflows of
resources are amortized over the life of the debt. The net activity
in the deferred outflow for the current year is:

In  governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities s
recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in
the period that it is incurred.

369,490,924

81,604,209

(41,996,636)

(1,461,679)

(280,845,000)

23,897,074

60,740,000

137,799

(15,369,022)

(5,678,561)

(4,779,622)

(Continued)

21.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for
which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost recovery

basis. The change in net position for the Self-Insurance Fund
was: $ (518,651)

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when
employer  contributions are made. In the statement of
activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.
This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension
costs and actual employer contributions was (Notes 8 and 9): 32,550,157

In the statement of activities, expenses related to compensated
absences are measured by the amounts earned during the
year. In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured
by the amount of financial resources used (Notes 6). (449,657)

In the statement of activities, expenses related to net OPEB
liability are measured by the amounts earned during the year.
In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured by the
amount of financial resources used (Notes 6 and 10). 82,703,901

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 300,025,236

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury
Cash in banks
Cash with fiscal agent

Receivables

Due from other funds

Total current assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses
Total current liabilities

NET POSITION

Unrestricted

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Cafeteria Self
Enterprise Insurance

Fund Fund
$ 36,034 $ 11,140,961
- 2,422
- 250,000
9 228,091
549 1,077,746
36,592 12,699,220
1,016 67,015
10,529 2,626
- 300,701
11,545 370,342
$ 25,047 $ 12,328,878

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN
NET POSITION — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Cafeteria Self
Enterprise Insurance
Fund Fund
Operating revenues:
Self insurance premiums $ - 3 13,952,848
Other state revenue - 156
Other local revenue 44,450 -
Total operating revenues 44,450 13,953,004
Operating expenses:
Classified salaries 12,335 397,237
Employee benefits 1,775 240,715
Books and supplies 11,045 36,169
Contract services - 580,392
Provision for claims and claim adjustment expenses - 13,545,833
Total operating expenses 25,155 14,800,346
Net operating income (loss) 19,295 (847,342)
Non-operating income:
Interest income - 328,691
Change in net position 19,295 (518,651)
Total net position, July 1, 2022 5,752 12,847,529
Total net position, June 30, 2023 $ 25,047 $ 12,328,878

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS — PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Cafeteria Self
Enterprise Insurance
Fund Fund
Cash flows provided by operating activities:

Cash received from self-insurance premiums and other revenue $ 44441 $ 13,770,520

Cash paid for employee benefits (14,110) (637,952)

Cash paid for claims - (13,575,405)

Cash paid for other expenses (214) 936,786

Net cash provided by operating activities 30,117 493,949
Cash flows provided by investing activities:

Interest income received - 328,691
Change in cash and investments 30,117 822,640
Cash and investments, July 1, 2022 5,917 10,570,743
Cash and investments, June 30, 2023 $ 36,034 $ 11,393,383

Reconciliation of net operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Net operating income (loss) $ 19,295 $ (847,342)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in:

Receivables (9) (182,484)
Due from other funds (549) 1,491,288
(Decrease) increase in:
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses - (29,572)
Accounts payable 851 64,278
Due to other funds 10,529 (2,219)
Total adjustments 10,822 1,341,291
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 30,117 $ 493,949

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
TRUST FUND
June 30, 2023

Scholarship
Trust
ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 2)
Cash on hand and in banks $ 431,600
NET POSITION
Restricted for scholarships $ 431,600

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Scholarship
Trust
Additions:
Other local sources $ 45,256
Deduction:
Contract services and operating
expenditures 68,112
Change in net position (22,856)
Net position, July 1, 2022 454,456
Net position, June 30, 2023 $ 431,600

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sacramento City Unified School District (the "District") accounts for its financial transactions in accordance
with the policies and procedures of the California Department of Education's California School Accounting
Manual. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The following
is a summary of the more significant policies:

Reporting Entity: The Board of Education is the level of government which has governance responsibilities
over all activities related to public school education in the District. The Board is not included in any other
governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board since Board
members have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters.

The District, Sacramento County Schools Education Facilities Financing Corporation (the "Corporation")
and Sacramento City Schools Joint Powers Financing Authority (the "Authority") have a financial and
operational relationship which meet the reporting entity definition criteria of the Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, for inclusion of the
Corporation and Authority as a component unit of the District. Therefore, the financial activities of the
Corporation and the Authority have been included in the basic financial statements of the District as a
blended component unit.

The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District, the Corporation and the Authority
which satisfy Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100,
criteria:

A - Manifestations of Oversight

1. The Corporation's and the Authority's Boards of Directors were appointed by the District's Board of
Education.

2. The Corporation and the Authority have no employees. The District's Superintendent and Chief Business
& Operations Officer function as agents of the Corporation and the Authority. Neither individual received
additional compensation for work performed in this capacity.

3. The District exercises significant influence over operations of the Corporation and the Authority as it is
anticipated that the District will be the sole lessee of all facilities owned by the Corporation and the
Authority.

B - Accounting for Fiscal Matters

1. All major financing arrangements, contracts, and other transactions of the Corporation and the Authority
must have the consent of the District.

2. Any deficits incurred by the Corporation and the Authority will be reflected in the lease payments of the
District. Any surpluses of the Corporation and the Authority revert to the District at the end of the lease
period.

3. Itis anticipated that the District's lease payments will be the sole revenue source of the Corporation and
the Authority.

4. The District has assumed a "moral obligation," and potentially a legal obligation, for any debt incurred
by the Corporation and the Authority.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C - Scope of Public Service and Financial Presentation

1. The Corporation and the Authority were created for the sole purpose of financially assisting the District.

2. The Corporation is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of
California and recorded by the Secretary of State. The Authority was created pursuant to a joint powers
agreement between the District and the California Statewide Communities Development Authority,
pursuant to the California Government Code, commencing with Section 6500. The Corporation and the
Authority were formed to provide financing assistance to the District for construction and acquisition of
major capital facilities. Upon completion the District intends to occupy all Corporation and Authority
facilities. When the Authority's Lease Revenue Bonds have been paid with state reimbursements and
the District's developer fees, title of all Corporation and Authority property will pass to the District for no
additional consideration.

3. The Corporation's and the Authority's financial activity is presented in the financial statements in the
Building Fund. Lease Revenue Bonds issued by the Authority are included in the government-wide
financial statements. There are currently no outstanding Certificates of Participation under the
Corporation as of June 30, 2023.

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities displays information about the reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are
not included in the government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net Position at the fund
financial statement level.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes
place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions
are recognized in accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Codification Section (GASB Cod. Sec.) N50.118-.121.

Program revenues: Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the
program itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the District's general revenues.

Allocation of indirect expenses: The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of
Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense is
specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of the respective function. Interest
on general long-term liabilities is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the
Statement of Activities.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting: The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds,
each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues,
and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A - Major Funds:

1. General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and accounts for all
revenues and expenditures of the District not encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues
and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures and the capital improvement costs that are
not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

2. Building Fund: The Building Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for resources used for the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities by the District.

3. Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is a debt service fund
used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest, and related costs. All records relating to the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund are
maintained by the Sacramento County Auditor-Controller. The revenue for this fund is raised by school
district taxes which are levied, collected, and administered by County officials. The Education Code
stipulates that the tax rate levied shall be sufficient to provide monies for the payment of principal and
interest as they become due on outstanding school district bonds.

B - Other Funds:

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. This classification includes the Student Activity,
Charter Schools, Adult Education, Child Development and Cafeteria Funds.

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for resources used for the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities by the District. This classification includes the Developer Fees, County School Facilities
and Community Facilities Funds.

The Self-Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for services rendered on a cost-
reimbursement basis within the District. The Self-Insurance Fund is used to provide workers' compensation,
dental and vision benefits to employees of the District.

The Cafeteria Enterprise Fund is an enterprise fund within the District to operate a food service program
including non-student related catering programs and other local food programs.

The Scholarship Fund is a trust fund used to account for amounts held by the District as Trustee, to be
used to provide scholarships to students of the District.

Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to
the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual: The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary and
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

(Continued)
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Modified Accrual: The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within
60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and
interest on general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: By state law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by
July 1. A public hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The Board of Education
complied with these requirements.

Receivables: Receivables are made up principally of amounts due from the State of California and
Categorical programs. The District has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts was required
as of June 30, 2023.

Stores Inventory: Inventories in the General, Student Activity and Cafeteria Funds are valued at average
cost. Inventory recorded in the General, Student Activity and Cafeteria Funds consists mainly of school
supplies and consumable supplies. Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the time the individual
inventory items are transferred from the warehouse to schools and offices.

Capital Assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value for the
contributed asset. Additions, improvements and other capital outlay that significantly extend the useful life
of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over 3 - 30 years depending on asset types.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as
such will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The District has
recognized a deferred loss on refunding reported in the Statement of Net Position. A deferred loss on
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter life of the refunded or refunding debt. Additionally, the
District has recognized a deferred outflow of resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability
and net OPEB liability reported in the Statement of Net Position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. A deferred gain on refunding results from the difference in the
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the
shorter life of the refunded or refunding debt. Additionally, the District has recognized a deferred inflow of
resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability and net OPEB liability reported in the
Statement of Net Position.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) and Public Employers Retirement Fund B (PERF B) and
additions to/deductions from STRP’s and PERF B’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by STRP and PERF B. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Certain investments are reported at fair value.

STRP PERF B Total
Deferred outflows of resources $ 70,560,877 $ 49,595,057 $ 120,155,934
Deferred inflows of resources $ 63,873,000 $ 12,886,000 $ 76,759,000
Net pension liability $ 241,143,000 $ 152,425,000 $ 393,568,000
Pension expense $ 31,591,980 $ 13,885,003 $ 45,476,983

Compensated Absences: Compensated absences totaling $5,974,989 are recorded as a long-term liability
of the District. The liability is for the earned but unused benefits.

Accumulated Sick Leave: Sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's
policy is to record sick leave as an operating expenditure or expense in the period taken since such benefits
do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period
for calculation of retirement benefits for certain STRP and PERF B employees, when the employee retires.

Unearned Revenue: Revenue from federal, state, and local special projects and programs is recognized
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are recorded as unearned
revenue until earned.

Net Position: Net position is displayed in three components:

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent bond proceeds)
of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted Net Position - Restrictions of the ending net position indicate the portions of net position not
appropriable for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restriction for
legally restricted programs represents the portion of net position restricted to specific program
expenditures. The restriction for debt service repayments represents the portion of net position which
the District plans to expend on debt repayment in the ensuing year. The restriction for capital projects
represents the portion of net position restricted for capital projects. The restriction for scholarships
represents the portion of net position to be used to provide financial assistance to students of the District.
It is the District's policy to first use restricted net position when allowable expenditures are incurred.

3. Unrestricted Net Position — All other net position that does not meet the definitions of "restricted" or "net
investment in capital assets".

Fund Balance Classifications: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300 and
1800, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800)
implements a five-tier fund balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a government
is bound by spending constraints imposed on the use of its resources. The five classifications, discussed
in more detail below, are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.
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A - Nonspendable Fund Balance: The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are
not in spendable form, such as revolving fund cash, store’s inventory and prepaid expenditures.

B - Restricted Fund Balance: The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to
externally imposed and legally enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. These are the same restrictions used to determine
restricted net position as reported in the government-wide and fiduciary trust fund statements.

C - Committed Fund Balance: The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal
constraints self-imposed by formal action of the Board of Education. The constraints giving rise to
committed fund balance must be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts
may be determined subsequent to that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. Formal
action by the Board of Education is required to remove any commitment from any fund balance.

D - Assigned Fund Balance: The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the District's
Board of Education has approved to be used for specific purposes, based on the District's intent related to
those specific purposes. The Board of Education can designate personnel with the authority to assign fund
balances, however, as of June 30, 2023, no such designation has occurred.

E - Unassigned Fund Balance: In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects
the residual balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes.

In any fund other than the General Fund, a positive unassigned fund balance is never reported because
amounts in any other fund are assumed to have been assigned, at least, to the purpose of that fund.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund, that cannot be eliminated by reducing or
eliminating amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

Fund Balance Policy: The District has an expenditure policy relating to fund balances. For purposes of fund
balance classifications, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balances first, followed in order
by committed fund balances (if any), assigned fund balances and lastly unassigned fund balances.

While GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do not require Districts to establish a minimum fund balance policy
or a stabilization arrangement, GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do require the disclosure of a minimum
fund balance policy and stabilization arrangements, if they have been adopted by the Board of Education.
At June 30, 2023, the District has not established a minimum fund balance policy nor has it established a
stabilization arrangement.

Property Taxes: Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1.
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are
due in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Sacramento bills and collects taxes for the
District. Tax revenues are recognized by the District when received.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments when they are written. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.
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Eliminations and Reclassifications: In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing
up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column.

Estimates: The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In May 2020, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements. GASB Statement No. 96 defines a subscription-based
information technology arrangement and requires the recognition of a right to use subscription asset and
corresponding subscription liability. This statement was effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2022. There was no impact to the District’s July 1, 2022 net position as a result of the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 96.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments at June 30, 2023 are reported at fair value and consisted of the following:
Governmental Activities

Governmental Proprietary Business-Type Fiduciary
Funds Fund Total Activities Activities

Pooled Funds:
Cash in County Treasury $ 554,944,236 $ 11,140,961 $ 566,085,197 $ 36,034 $ -

Deposits:
Cash on hand and in banks 3,498,651 2,422 3,501,073 - 431,600
Cash in revolving fund 227,000 - 227,000 - -
Cash awaiting deposit 1,518,951 - 1,518,951 - -
Total deposits 5,244,602 2,422 5,247,024 - 431,600
Investments:
Cash with fiscal agent 233,899,242 250,000 234,149,242 - -

Total cash and
investments $ 794,088,080 $ 11,393,383 $ 805,481,463 $ 36,034 $ 431,600

Pooled Funds: In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of
its cash in the interest-bearing Sacramento County Treasurer's Pooled Investment Fund. The District is
considered to be an involuntary participant in the financial statements at the amounts based upon the
District's pro-rate share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation
to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

(Continued)

34.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk: The District limits custodial credit risk by ensuring uninsured balances are
collateralized by the respective financial institution. Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized by the respective financial
institution. At June 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the District's accounts was $5,247,024 and the bank
balance was $3,781,399. $1,026,149 of the bank balance was FDIC insured and $2,755,250 remained
uninsured.

Cash with Fiscal Agent: Cash with Fiscal Agent in the Governmental Funds represents funds held by Fiscal
Agents restricted for capital projects and repayment of General Obligation Bonds. The District holds their
funds with the Sacramento County Treasurer. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.
Cash with Fiscal Agent held in the Proprietary Fund represents funds held as required by the District's third-
party administrator, Schools’ Insurance Authority, for the District's self-insurance activities.

Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
At June 30, 2023, the District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and investments held.

Credit Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices other
than the limitations of state law.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one
issuer. At June 30, 2023, the District had no concentration of credit risk.

NOTE 3 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Activity: Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as transfers, except for the Self-
Insurance Fund activity which is recorded as income and expenditures of the Self-Insurance Fund and the
funds which incur payroll costs, respectively. The unpaid balances at year end, as a result of such
transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds.

Interfund Receivables/Payables: Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2023
were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Major Funds:
General $ 7,955,468 $ 3,106,038
Building Fund - 399
Non-Major Funds:
Charter Schools 2,004,397 3,405,767
Adult Education 676 1,178,771
Child Development 1,096 2,581,084
Cafeteria 28,464 699,630
Developer Fees - 83,552
Proprietary Fund:
Self-Insurance 1,077,746 2,626
Cafeteria Enterprise 549 10,529
Totals $ 11,068,396 $ 11,068,396
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Transfers: Transfers consist of transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which the resources
are to be expended.

Transfers for the 2022-2023 fiscal year were as follows:

Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to the General Fund for
Charter fees. $ 2,078,863

Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to the General Fund for
indirect costs. 40,351

Transfer from the Adult Education Fund to the General Fund for
indirect costs. 66,305

Transfer from the Child Development Fund to the General Fund for

indirect costs. 436,427
Transfer from the Cafeteria Fund to the General Fund for
indirect costs. 657,964
Transfer from the County School Facilities Fund to the Building
Fund for interest earned. 4,945
$ 3,284,855
(Continued)
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A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023 is shown below:

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
July 1, and and June 30,
2022 Additions Deductions 2023
Governmental Activities
Non-depreciable:
Land $ 21,223,495 $ -3 26,455 $ 21,197,040
Work-in-process 19,419,987 51,723,095 16,575,155 54,567,927
Depreciable:
Buildings 1,018,848,175 23,485,267 3,076,000 1,039,257,442
Site improvements 195,022,686 21,854,060 1,968,498 214,908,248
Equipment 68,610,122 1,116,942 5,709,297 64,017,767
Totals, at cost 1,323,124,465 98,179,364 27,355,405 1,393,948,424
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (515,831,927) (28,941,651) (1,599,047) (543,174,531)
Site improvements (124,468,994) (9,104,392) (2,010,227) (131,563,159)
Equipment (56,367,940) (3,950,593) (5,709,297) (54,609,236)
Total accumulated
depreciation (696,668,861) (41,996,636) (9,318,571) (729,346,926)
Capital assets, net $ 626,455,604 $ 56,182,728 $ 18,036,834 $ 664,601,498

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

Instruction

Food services

All other pupil services
Community services

All other general administration

Plant services

Total depreciation expense

$ 35,940,984
2,143,863
1,322,339

103,384
1,920,820
565,246

$ 41,996,636
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NOTE 5 — SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS

The District has established a Self-Insurance Fund to account for employee vision benefits, employee
dental benefits and workers' compensation plans. The employee vision and dental plans are self insured
and contract with a third party administrator for benefits processing. Until July 31, 1998 and from July 1,
2001 through June 30, 2005, the workers' compensation plan provided coverage up to $250,000 and
purchased excess insurance for claims over the retained coverage limit. Between August 1, 1998 and
June 30, 2001, and after July 1, 2005, the District purchased insurance for the workers' compensation
coverage.

The liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses represents the ultimate cost of claims that
have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. These claims
will be paid in future years. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

District management recomputes the liability annually using available updated claims data. Annually, the
District obtains an actuarial study using a variety of statistical techniques to produce current estimates that
consider claim frequency and other economic factors. The liability for workers compensation is based on
an actuarial study dated June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30,
2022, respectively.

The liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2022 2023

Unpaid claim and claim adjustment expenses,

beginning of year $ 458,433 $ 330,273
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment

expenses 13,431,429 13,545,833
Total payments (13,559,589) (13,575,405)
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment

expenses at end of year $ 330,273 $ 300,701
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General Obligation Bonds: A summary of General Obligation Bonds payable as of June 30, 2023 follows:

The Series 2007, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 Serial Bonds are authorized
pursuant to the Election of 2002 and Election of 2012, and are payable from property taxes levied by the
County of Sacramento.

Current
Balance Current Year Balance
Interest Original July 1, Year Refunded & June 30,

Series Rate Maturity 2022 Issuance Matured 2023

2007 -CA 4.6-4.8% 2032 $ 26,077,966 $ - $ 2,507,074.00 $ 23,570,892
2012 2.0-53% 2031 60,740,000 - 60,740,000 -

2013-A 2.0-5.0% 2038 10,840,000 - 420,000 10,420,000
2013-B 5.7% 2038 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
2014 2.0-5.0% 2027 24,860,000 - 4,110,000 20,750,000
2015 2.0-5.0% 2030 18,580,000 - 1,965,000 16,615,000
2015¢C1 2.0-5.0% 2041 59,010,000 - - 59,010,000
2016 2.0-4.0% 2041 11,675,000 - 415,000 11,260,000
2017 -E 3.0-5.0% 2047 89,705,000 - 1,910,000 87,795,000
2017-C 3.0-5.0% 2047 9,420,000 - 200,000 9,220,000
2018 -F 2.46% 2025 1,300,000 - 150,000 1,150,000
2019-D 2.375-5.0% 2049 22,800,000 - 480,000 22,320,000
2021-G 0.32% - 4.00% 2050 65,905,000 - - 65,905,000
2021 Refunding 4.00% 2030 28,350,000 - 5,180,000 23,170,000
2022 4.0-5.0% 2053 - 225,000,000 - 225,000,000
2022 Refunding 5.00% 2031 - 55,845,000 3,590,000 52,255,000
$ 469,262,966 $ 280,845,000 $ 81,667,074 $ 668,440,892

The annual requirements to amortize the General Obligation Bonds payable and outstanding as of June
30, 2023 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2024 43,475,453 $ 32,719,425 § 76,194,878
2025 37,566,992 31,203,940 68,770,932
2026 24,185,759 30,138,854 54,324,613
2027 24,872,433 29,570,573 54,443,006
2028 20,157,362 28,810,301 48,967,663
2029-2033 101,622,893 130,363,669 231,986,562
2034-2038 70,005,000 92,036,375 162,041,375
2039-2043 129,320,000 64,391,450 193,711,450
2044-2048 111,210,000 42,309,537 153,519,537
2049-2053 106,025,000 14,343,800 120,368,800
668,440,892 $ 495,887,924 $ 1,164,328,816
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On October 25, 2007, the District issued 2007 General Obligation Bonds totaling $64,997,966. Bond
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On June 30, 2011, the District issued 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $79,585,000. Bond
proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, and General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001. The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On June 14, 2012, the District issued 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $113,245,000.
Bond proceeds were used to advance refund all of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001, and the 2002 Series A. Proceeds were also used to advance
refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series D Bonds. The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On June 27, 2013, the District issued 2013 Series A and Series B General Obligation Bonds totaling
$70,000,000. Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On January 15, 2014, the District issued 2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $44,535,000.
Bond proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 2002 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005.
The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On January 8, 2015, the District issued 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $32,740,000.
Bond proceeds were used to refund the District's 2002, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 and 2007.
The refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On May 24, 2016, the District issued 2016 Series D General Obligation Bonds totaling $14,000,000. Bond
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On May 25, 2017, the District issued 2017 Series C and Series E General Obligation Bonds totaling
$122,000,000. Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On July 1, 2018, the District issued 2018 Series F General Obligation Bonds totaling $10,000,000. Bond
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On November 21, 2019, the District issued 2019 Series D General Obligation Bonds totaling $30,900,000.
Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On July 8, 2021, the District issued 2021 Series G General Obligation Bonds totaling $77,100,000. Bond
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects.

On July 8, 2021, the District issued 2021 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $33,355,000. Bond
proceeds were used to refund the remaining portion of the District's 2011 GO Refunding Bonds. The
refunded bonds have been fully repaid.

On July 21, 2022, the District issued 2022 General Obligation Bonds totaling $225,000,000. Bond proceeds
are to be used for construction related projects.

On July 21, 2022, the District issued 2022 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $55,845,000. Bond
proceeds were used to refund the remaining portion of the District's 2012 GO Refunding Bonds. The
refunded bonds have been fully repaid.
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Although the current refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting gain of $5,317,304 for the year
ended June 30, 2023, the District in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $4,765,875 over
the next 8 years and obtained an economic gain of $3,873,267.

Calculation of difference in cash flow requirements and economic gain are as follows:

Calculation of Cash Flow Savings:

Old debt service cash flows $ 76,631,250

Less: New debt service cash flows 71,865,375

Total cash flow savings $ 4,765,875
Calculation of Economic Gain:

PV of old debt service cash flows $ 62,409,888

PV of new debt service cash flows 58,536,621

Total economic gain $ 3,873,267

Lease Revenue Bonds: On February 4, 2014, the District issued Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014
Series A and Series B, totaling $44,825,000 and $29,460,000, respectively. Bond proceeds were used to
make lease payments to the District pursuant to the Facility Lease and additionally, advance refund all of
the District's 2002 Variable Rate Certificates of Participation (2002 COP). The Series A and Series B Bonds
are secured by certain revenues, which consist of rental payments to be made by the District out of its
general fund under a facility sublease as well as interest earning on funds held under a trust agreement.

The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series A bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.0% to
5.0% and are scheduled to mature through 2040 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 2,915,000 $ 1,220,000 $ 4,135,000
2025 3,025,000 1,074,250 4,099,250
2026 235,000 923,000 1,158,000
2027 - 911,250 911,250
2028 - 911,250 911,250
2029-2033 - 4,556,250 4,556,250
2034-2038 12,370,000 3,379,250 15,749,250
2039-2040 5,855,000 442,750 6,297,750
$ 24,400,000 $ 13,418,000 $ 37,818,000
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The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series B bonds bear an interest rate of 4.09% and are
scheduled to mature through 2033 as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 200,000 $ 1,131,294 § 1,331,294
2025 240,000 1,123,114 1,363,114
2026 3,215,000 1,113,298 4,328,298
2027 3,635,000 981,805 4,616,805
2028 3,785,000 833,133 4,618,133

2029-2033 16,585,000 1,810,031 18,395,031

$ 27,660,000 $ 6,992,675 $§ 34,652,675

Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities: A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year
ended June 30, 2023 is shown below:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023 One Year
Debt:
General Obligation Bonds $ 469,262,966 $ 280,845,000 $ 81,667,074 $ 668,440,892 $ 41,015,000
Accreted interest 25,182,150 2,420,127 2,557,926 25,044,351 2,420,126
Lease Revenue Bonds 55,030,000 - 2,970,000 52,060,000 3,115,000
Premium on issuance 40,016,725 23,325,583 7,956,561 55,385,747 3,812,675
Other Long-Term Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability
(Notes 8 & 9) 247,054,000 146,514,000 - 393,568,000 -
Net OPEB liability (Note 10) 308,233,515 - 40,767,503 267,466,012 -
Compensated absences 5,525,332 449,657 - 5,974,989 5,974,989

$ 1,150,304,688 §$ 453,554,367 $ 135919064 $ 1467939991 § 56,337,790

Payments on the General Obligation Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.
Principal and interest payments on the Lease Revenue Bonds are made from the Developer Fees Fund.
Payments on the Net Pension Liability, Net OPEB liability and compensated absences are made from the
fund for which the related employee worked.
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Fund balances, by category, at June 30, 2023 consisted of the following:

Nonspendable:
Revolving cash fund
Stores inventory
Prepaid expenditures

Subtotal nonspendable

Restricted:

Legally restricted programs:
Grants (unspent categorical revenues)
Student body activities
Adult education operations
Child development
Cafeteria operations
Charter schools

Capital projects

Debt service

Subtotal restricted
Committed:
Unsettled Labor Negotiations Projected
Multi-Year Cost
Subtotal committed
Assigned:
Supplemental and Concentration
Carryover Funds
Subtotal assigned
Unassigned:
Designated for economic
uncertainty
Unassigned

Subtotal unassigned

Total fund balances

Bond
Interest and All
General Building Redemption Non-Major

Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 225,000 $ - $ -3 2,000 $ 227,000
104,391 - - 2,390,583 2,494,974
8,235 - - - 8,235
337,626 - - 2,392,583 2,730,209
122,284,326 - - - 122,284,326
- - - 1,564,099 1,564,099
- - - 1,061,008 1,061,008
- - - 1,239,859 1,239,859
- - - 16,001,693 16,001,693
- - - 15,520,269 15,520,269
- 277,090,337 - 28,727,896 305,818,233
- - 71,570,589 - 71,570,589
122,284,326 277,090,337 71,570,589 64,114,824 535,060,076
85,832,540 - - - 85,832,540
85,832,540 - - - 85,832,540
2,949,890 - - - 2,949,890
2,949,890 - - - 2,949,890
13,039,261 - - - 13,039,261
33,489,092 - - - 33,489,092
46,528,353 - - - 46,528,353
$ 257,932,735 $ 277,090,337 $ 71,570,589 $ 66,507,407 $ 673,101,068
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NOTE 8 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN
General Information about the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan

Plan Description: Teaching-certified employees of the District are provided with pensions through the State
Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) — a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). The Teachers' Retirement
Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq.), as enacted and amended by the California
Legislature, established this plan and CalSTRS as the administrator. The benefit terms of the plans may
be amended through legislation. CalSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained
at http://www.calstrs.com/comprehensive-annual-financial-report.

Benefits Provided: The STRP Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas:

* CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could
be creditable to CalSTRS.

+ CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS.

The Defined Benefit (DB) Program provides retirement benefits based on members' final compensation,
age and years of service credit. In addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon
disability and to survivors/beneficiaries upon the death of eligible members. There are several differences
between the two benefit formulas which are noted below.

CalSTRS 2% at 60 - CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for
retirements after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members
who have 30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the
age factor, up to the 2.4 percent maximum.

CalSTRS calculates retirement benefits based on a one-year final compensation for members who retired
on or after January 1, 2001, with 25 or more years of credited service, or for classroom teachers with less
than 25 years of credited service if the employer elected to pay the additional benefit cost prior to January 1,
2014. One-year final compensation means a member’s highest average annual compensation earnable for
12 consecutive months calculated by taking the creditable compensation that a member could earn in a
school year while employed on a fulltime basis, for a position in which the person worked. For members
with less than 25 years of credited service, final compensation is the highest average annual compensation
earnable for any 36 consecutive months of credited service.

CalSTRS 2% at 62 - CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age
factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

All CalSTRS 2% at 62 members have their final compensation based on their highest average annual
compensation earnable for any 36 consecutive months of credited service.
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Contributions: Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature
and Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. Current contribution rates were established by
California Assembly Bill 1469 (CalSTRS Funding Plan), which was passed into law in June 2014, and
various subsequent legislation.

The CalSTRS Funding Plan established a schedule of contribution rate increases shared among members,
employers, and the State of California to bring CalSTRS toward full funding by fiscal year 2046. California
Senate Bill 90 and California Assembly Bill 84 (collectively the “Special Legislation”), were signed into law
in June 2019 and June 2020, respectively, and provided supplemental contributions to the DB Program
along with supplemental contribution rate relief to employers through fiscal year 2021-22.

A summary of statutory contribution rates and other sources of contributions to the DB Program pursuant
to the CalSTRS Funding Plan, SB 90 and SB84, are as follows:

Members - Under CalSTRS 2% at 60, the member contribution rate was 10.250 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2022. Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, members contribute 50 percent of the
normal cost of their retirement plan, which resulted in a contribution rate of 10.205 percent of applicable
member earnings for fiscal year 2022.

Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, members pay 9% toward the normal cost and an additional 1.205 percent as
per the CalSTRS Funding Plan for a total member contribution rate of 10.205 percent. The contribution rate
for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members is adjusted if the normal cost increases or decreases by more than 1%
since the last time the member contribution rate was set. Based on the June 30, 2021, valuation adopted
by the CalSTRS board in May 2022, the increase in normal cost was less than 1 percent. Therefore, the
contribution rate for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members did not change effective July 1, 2022.

Employers — Employers are required to contribute a base contribution rate set in statute at 8.25%. Pursuant
to the CalSTRS Funding Plan, employers also have a supplemental contribution rate to eliminate their share
of the CalSTRS unfunded actuarial obligation by 2046.

Beginning in fiscal year 2021-22, the CalSTRS Funding Plan authorized the CalSTRS board to adjust the
employer supplemental contribution rate up or down by a maximum of 1% for a total rate of no higher than
20.25% and no lower than 8.25%. In May 2022, the CalSTRS board voted to keep the employer
supplemental contribution rate at 10.85% for fiscal year 2022—23 for a total employer contribution rate of
19.10%.

The CalSTRS employer contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2022 through fiscal year 2046-47 are
summarized in the table below:
Supplemental

Rate Per
Effective Base CalSTRS
Date Rate Funding Plan Total
July 1, 2022 8.250% 10.850% 19.100%
July 1, 2023 to
June 30, 2046 8.250% ) Q)
July 1, 2046 8.250% Increase from AB 1469 rate ends in 2046-47

(1) The CalSTRS Funding Plan authorizes the board to adjust the employer contribution rate up or down
by up to 1% each year, but no higher than 20.250% total and no lower than 8.250%.
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The District contributed $42,543,877 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

State — 10.828 percent of the members’ calculated based on creditable compensation from two fiscal years
prior.

The state is required to contribute a base contribution rate set in statute at 2.017%. Pursuant to the CalSTRS
Funding Plan, the state also has a supplemental contribution rate, which the board can increase by up to
0.5% each fiscal year to help eliminate the state’s share of the CalSTRS unfunded actuarial obligation by
2046. In May 2022, the CalSTRS board voted to keep the state supplemental contribution rate at 6.311%
for fiscal year 2022-23 for a total contribution rate of 10.828%.

Special legislation appropriated supplemental state contributions to reduce the state’s portion of the
unfunded actuarial obligation of the DB Program in fiscal years 2019-20 through 2022-23. These
contributions are funded from future excess General Fund revenues, pursuant to the requirements of
California Proposition 2, the “Rainy-Day Budget Stabilization Fund Act”, which passed in 2014. Accordingly,
the contribution amounts are subject to change each year based on the availability of funding. For fiscal
year 2021-22, CalSTRS received $410.0 million in supplemental state contributions from Proposition 2
funds. Additionally, CalSTRS received a one-time supplemental payment of $173.7 million from the General
Fund in fiscal year 2021-22 to offset forgone contributions due to the suspension of the 0.5% increase to
the state supplemental contribution rate in fiscal year 2020-21.

The CalSTRS state contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2022-2023 and beyond are summarized in
the table below.
Supplemental

Rate Per
Effective Base CalSTRS SBMA
Date Rate Funding Plan Funding® Total
July 01, 2022 2.017% 6.311% 2.50% 10.828%
July 01, 2023 to
June 30, 2046 2.017% @ 2.50% @
July 01, 2046 2.017% @ 2.50% ®

(1) The SBMA contribution rate excludes the $72 million that is reduced from the required contribution in
accordance with Education Code section 22954.

(2) The CalSTRS board has limited authority to adjust the state contribution rate annually through June 2046 in
order to eliminate the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation. The board cannot increase the supplemental
rate by more than 0.5% in a fiscal year, and if there is no unfunded actuarial obligation, the supplemental
contribution rate imposed would be reduced to 0%.

(3) From July 1, 2046, and thereafter, the rates in effect prior to July 1, 2014, are reinstated, if necessary, to
address any remaining unfunded actuarial obligation.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the
District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion
of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 241,143,000
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
associated with the District 136,300,000

$ 377,443,000

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The District's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District’s share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the contributions of all participating school districts and the State. At June 30, 2022, the District’s
proportion was 0.347 percent, which was an increase of 0.010 percent from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $31,591,980 and revenue
of $21,868,206 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 198,000 $ 18,081,000
Changes of assumptions 11,959,000 -
Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on investments - 11,792,000
Changes in proportion and differences between
District contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 15,860,000 34,000,000
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 42,543,877 -
Total $ 70,560,877 $ 63,873,000
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$42,543,877 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in
the year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2024 $ (3,062,400)
2025 $ (16,260,400)
2026 $ (22,348,400)
2027 $ 11,764,600
2028 $ (6,268,900)
2029 $ 319,500

Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions are amortized over a
closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 7 years as of the
June 30, 2022 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected
and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the STRP was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, and rolling forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2022 . The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, used
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Experience Study July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 7.10%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%

Wage Growth 3.50%

Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB, maintain 85%

Purchasing power level for DB, not
applicable for DBS/CBB

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent, which was
unchanged from the prior fiscal year. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at statutory contribution rates
in accordance with the rate increase per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings were
calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that
contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions,
the STRP’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Mortality: CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality
table and projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in
increases in life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom
tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The projection scale was set equal
to 110 percent of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2019) table,
issued by the Society of Actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best
estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS investment staff and
investment consultants as inputs to the process.

The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the CalSTRS board in January 2020 in
conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, CalSTRS
consulting actuary reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital
market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometric real rates of return and the assumed asset
allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate of return are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term*
Assumed Asset Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Public Equity 42% 4.8%
Real Estate 15 3.6
Private Equity 13 6.3
Fixed Income 12 1.3
Risk Mitigating

Strategies 10 1.8
Inflation Sensitive 6 3.3
Cash / Liquidity 2 (0.4)

* 20-year geometric average

Sensitivity of the District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)
District’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 409,550,000 $ 241,143,000 $ 101,314,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalSTRS financial report.

(Continued)

49.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 9 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B
General Information about the Public Employer’s Retirement Fund B

Plan Description: The schools cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan Public
Employer’s Retirement Fund B (PERF B) is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS). Plan membership consists of non-teaching and non-certified employees of public
schools (K-12), community college districts, offices of education, charter and private schools (elective) in
the State of California.

The Plan was established to provide retirement, death and disability benefits to non-teaching and non- certified
employees in schools. The benefit provisions for Plan employees are established by statute. CalPERS issues
a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at: https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-
publications/acfr- 2022.pdf.

Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members’ years of service, age,
final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible
members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after
five years (10 years for State Second Tier members) of credited service.

Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from members
and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a percentage of
applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law and depend on the
respective employer’s benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are determined by periodic actuarial
valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on the benefit formulas and employee groups
of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump sum contributions made when districts first join
PERF B, are credited with a market value adjustment in determining contribution rates.

The required contribution rates of most active plan members are based on a percentage of salary in excess
of a base compensation amount ranging from zero dollars to $863 monthly.

Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for the year
ended June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Members - The member contribution rate was 7.0 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year
2022-2023.

Employers - The employer contribution rate was 25.37 percent of applicable member earnings.
The District contributed $19,633,057 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability of $152,425,000 or its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating school districts. At
June 30, 2022, the District's proportion was 0.443 percent, which was a decrease of 0.018 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.
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For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $13,885,003. At June 30,
2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 689,000 $ 3,793,000

Changes of assumptions 11,276,000 -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on investments 17,997,000 -
Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 9,093,000

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 19,633,057 -

Total $ 49,595,057 $ 12,886,000

$19,633,057 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ending June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2024 $ 529,000
2025 $ 2,906,000
2026 $ 2,667,500
2027 $ 10,973,500

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions and changes in proportion
and differences between District contributions and proportionate share of contributions are amortized over
a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 3.9 years as of the
June 30, 2022 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected
and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by applying
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 and rolling forward the
total pension liability June 30, 2022. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, used
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Experience Study June 30, 2000 through June 30, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal

Investment Rate of Return 6.90%

Consumer Price Inflation 2.30%

Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service
Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% until Purchasing Power Protection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power
Applies, 2.30% thereafter

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 80% of scale MP2020. For more details on this table,
please refer to the 2021 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from 2000 to 2019, including updates to salary increase, mortality and
retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS’ website.

During the 2021-22 measurement period, the financial reporting discount rate for PERF B was lowered from
7.15 percent to 6.90 percent. In addition, the inflation assumption was reduced from 2.50 percent to 2.30
percent. Lastly, demographic assumptions for mortality rates were updated.

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.

Assumed Expected Real

Asset Rates of Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 (1, 2)
Global Equity — cap-weighted 30.00% 4.45%
Global Equity non-cap-weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.00% .50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.00% 1.56%
High Yield 5.00% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5.00% 2.48%
Private Debt 5.00% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.00% 3.21%
Leverage (5.00%) (0.59%)

(1) An expected inflation rate of 2.30% used for this period
(2) Figures are based on the 2021-22 CalPERS Asset Liability Management Study

(Continued)
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NOTE 9 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued)

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90 percent. A projection
of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out.
The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability for the Plan. The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are presented in a detailed report that
can be obtained at CalPERS’ website.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account long-term market return
expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are
estimated and combined with risk estimates, are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the
long term. The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio
return.

Sensitivity of the District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.90 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (7.90 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.90%) Rate (6.90%) (7.90%)
District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 220,186,000 $ 152,425,000 $ 96,423,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report.

NOTE 10 — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
General Information - Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB)
Plan Description: In addition to the pension benefits described in Notes 8 and 9, the District provides

postemployment health care benefits to eligible employees and their dependents under a single employer
defined benefit OPEB plan. The plan does not issue separate financial statements.

The District established an irrevocable trust under the California Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust Program
(CERBT) to prefund the costs of other postemployment benefits. The funds in the CERBT are held in trust
and will be administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) as an agent
multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by District labor
agreements which are approved by the Board of Education. The District’s contributions to the irrevocable
trust is included in the CERBT, which is included in the CalPERS ACFR. Copies of the CalPERS’ ACFR
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office — 400 P Street — Sacramento, CA 95814.

(Continued)
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NOTE 10 — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

The CERBT fund, which is an Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 115 Trust, is set up for the purpose of
(i) receiving employer contributions to prefund health and other post-employment benefits for retirees and
their beneficiaries, (ii) invest contributed amounts and income therein, and (iii) disburse contributed
amounts and income therein, if any, to pay for costs of administration of the fund and to pay for health care
costs or other post-employment benefits in accordance with the terms of the District’'s OPEB plan.

Benefits Provided: Sacramento City Unified School District's Retired Employees Healthcare Plan (REHP),
is a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the Sacramento City Unified School
District. The plan does not issue separate financial statements. REHP provides medical insurance benefits
to eligible retirees. Benefits are a negotiated component of each bargaining unit agreement. Currently,
eligible retirees receive health care benefits that are paid 100% by the District. District teachers qualify for
these benefits after attaining age 55 with at least five years of consecutive service to the District, age 50
with 30 years of service (if a member prior to January 1, 2013), or approved disability retirement with 5
years of service. CalPERS employees qualify for benefits after attaining age 50 (age 52, if a new CalPERS
member on or after January 1, 2013) with 5 years of State or public agency service or approved disability
and meeting the requirements outlined in their respective bargaining agreements.

The District's Governing Board has the authority to establish or amend the benefit terms offered by the
Plan. The District's Governing Board also retains the authority to establish the requirements for paying the
Plan benefits as they come due.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: The following is a table of plan participants as of the June 30, 2023
valuation:

Number of
Participants

Inactive Plan members, covered spouses, or

beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3,199
Active employees 3,903
7,102

Contributions: California Government Code specifies that the District’'s contribution requirements for
covered employees are established and may be amended by the Governing Board. Contributions to the
Plan are voluntary. Contributions to the Plan from the District were $28,080,859 for the year ended June
30, 2023.

OPEB Plan Investments: The plan discount rate of 6.10% was determined using the following asset
allocation and assumed rate of return blended with the 20-year high grade municipal bond rate as of
June 30, 2022:

Long-Term* Expected Real Expected Real
Assumed Asset Rate of Return Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation Year1-5 Years 6+
Global Equity 49% 6.80% 6.80%
Fixed Income 23 0.90 2.70
Treasury Inflation-Protected
Securities 5 0.60 2.80
Real Estate Investment Trusts 20 5.40 6.00
Commodities 3 3.20 3.40
*Geometric average
(Continued)
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Rolling periods of time for all asset classes in combination we used to appropriately reflect correlation
between asset classes. This means that the average returns for any asset class do not necessarily reflect
the averages over time individually, but reflect the return for the asset class for the portfolio average.
Additionally, the historic 30-year real rates of return for each asset class along with the assumed long-term
inflation assumption was used to set the discount rate. The investment return was offset by assumed
investment expenses of 25 basis points. It was further assumed that contributions to the plan would be
sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years.

Money-weighted rate of return on OPEB plan investments 6.15%

The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of OPEB plan investment
expenses, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Valuation date June 30, 2022

Measurement date June 30, 2022

Funding Method Entry age normal, level percent of pay
General Inflation Rate 2.50%

Long Term Return on Assets 6.15% as of June 30, 2022, net of

plan investment expenses
and including inflation

Discount rate 6.10% as of June 30, 2022, determined
by the blending of the asset returns and the
20-year high grade municipal bond rate as
of June 30, 2022 less 0.1% for trust
administration fees.

Salary increase 3.0% per year, used only to allocate the
cost of benefits between service years

Assumed Wage inflation 3.0% per year; used as a component of
assumed salary increases

Health care cost trend rate 15% for Kaiser Certificated plans, 9% for
Kaiser Classified and Management plans,
6.8% for all others.

Mortality For certificated employees the 2019
CalSTRS mortality tables were used
For classified employees the 2017 CalPERS
active mortality for miscellaneous
employees were used

(Continued)
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Participants Valued

Participation Rate

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability:

Balance, June 30, 2022

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Actuarial experience
Assumption changes
Employer contributions
Interest income
Administrative expense
Benefit payments

Net change

Balance, June 30, 2023

$ 442,140,012 §

Only current active employees and retired
participants and covered dependents are
valued. No future entrants are considered
in this valuation

Active Employees: 90% of active benefits-
eligible employees who qualify for District
paid retiree premiums are assumed to
elect to continue their current plan
coverage in retirement. Those not
currently covered are assumed to elect as
follows: 1) Waiving SCTA Actives - SCTA
Opt-Out Subsidy; 2) Waiving Non-SCTA
Actives - Kaiser HMO (Mgmt/Class)

25% of active employees who qualify
access to coverage in retirement, but not
for District paid premiums are assumed to
continue medical coverage in retirement.

Retired Participants: Existing medical plan
elections are assumed to be continued
until age 65 (Medicare eligibility)

Total OPEB Total Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

133,906,497 § 308,233,515

9,390,965 - 9,390,965
30,032,848 - 30,032,848
(73,787,272) (27,603,324) (46,183,948)
4,093,581 - 4,093,581

- 28,457,590 (28,457,590)
- 9,677,281 (9,677,281)
- (33,922) 33,922
(19,742,892) (19,742,892) -
(50,012,770) (9,245,267) (40,767,503)

392,127,242 $§ 124,661,230 $ 267,466,012
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The changes in assumptions include a change in the discount rate from 6.80 percent in the prior valuation,
to 6.10 percent in the current valuation.

There were no changes between the measurement date and the year ended June 30, 2023, which had a
significant effect on the District’s total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Assumptions: The following presents the net OPEB liability
calculated using the discount rate of 6.10 percent. The schedule also shows what the net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percent lower (5.10 percent) and 1 percent
higher (7.10 percent):

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.10%) Rate (6.10%) (7.10%)
Net OPEB liability $ 321,797,704 $ 267,466,012 $ 222,697,600

The following table presents the net OPEB liability calculated using the heath care cost trend rate. The
schedule also shows what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a health care cost
trend rate that is 1 percent lower and 1 percent higher:

1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
(-1.0%) Rate* (1.0%)
Net OPEB liability $ 217,940,533 $ 267,466,012 $ 329,174,876

* Healthcare Cost Trend Rate was assumed to start at 15% for Kaiser Certificated plans, 9% for Kaiser Classified and Management
plans, and 6.8% for all others (increases effective January 1, 2024) and grade down to 3.9% for years 2076 and later.

OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB - For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense of $54,623,042. At June
30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 1,504,841 $ 161,410,584
Changes of assumptions 27,527,514 135,889,197
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on investments 11,809,753 -
Benefits paid subsequent to measurement date 28,080,859 -
Total $ 68,922967 $ 297,299,781
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$28,080,859 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to benefits paid subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30,
2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2024 $ (79,468,145)
2025 $ (70,980,901)
2026 $ (44,217,042)
2027 $ (40,541,608)
2028 $ (13,704,228)
Thereafter $ (7,545,749)

Differences between projected and actual earnings on investment are amortized over a closed period of 5
years as of the June 30, 2024 measurement date. Changes in assumptions and differences between
expected and actual experience are amortized over a closed period of 6.75 years as of the June 30, 2022
measurement date.

NOTE 11 — JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

Schools Insurance Authority: The District is a member with other school districts of a Joint Powers Authority,
Schools Insurance Authority (SIA), for the operation of a common risk management and insurance program
for property and liability coverage. The joint powers agency is to be self-sustaining through member
premiums. SIA enters into insurance agreements for coverage above self-insured retention layers, whereby
it cedes various amounts of risk to other insurance companies or joint power authorities. SIA's Property,
Liability and Workers' Compensation Programs provide self-insured retention of $100,000, $750,000 and
$1,000,000 per incident, respectively. The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other
risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. The following is a summary
of financial information for SIA at June 30, 2022 (most recent information available):

Total assets $ 211,771,868
Deferred outflows $ 1,751,462
Total liabilities $ 86,615,462
Deferred inflows $ 3,674,124
Total net position $ 123,233,744
Total revenues $ 59,357,945
Total expenses $ 66,482,201
Change in net position $ (7,124,256)

The relationship between the District and the Joint Powers Authority is such that the Joint Powers Authority
is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTE 12 — CONTINGENCIES

The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In the
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect
the financial position or results of operations of the District.

The District has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowances under terms of the
grants, it is management's opinion that any required reimbursements of future revenue offsets subsequently
determined will not have a material effect on the District's financial position or results of operations.

At June 30, 2023, the District had approximately $54.8 million in outstanding construction contract
commitments.

NOTE 13 — MANAGMENT'S PLANS

Since September 2018, following the disapproval of the District's adopted General Fund budget for the
2018-19 fiscal year by the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE), the Board of Education,
Superintendent, management, staff, and labor partners have engaged in collaborative efforts. The focus
has been on identifying constructive solutions to address the structural deficit evident in both current and
future fiscal years' financial projections. This ongoing collaboration underscores a steadfast commitment to
fostering a positive and proactive approach towards financial sustainability and effective governance, with
a dedication to continuing the collaborative culture in pursuit of shared goals.

Due to Education Code provisions, the District's financial standing prompted a sequence of measures,
including the implementation of a Fiscal Health Risk Analysis conducted by the Fiscal Crisis and
Management Assistance Team (FCMAT) and an audit conducted by the California State Auditor. Moreover,
the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) appointed a fiscal advisor to collaborate with the
District, undertaking a thorough review of the budget for accuracy and providing assistance to District staff.
This comprehensive approach reflects an ongoing commitment to the process, ensuring a thorough
evaluation and continued support to address any financial challenges effectively. The fiscal advisor actively
supports District processes, emphasizing efficiency and adherence to district policies to further enhance
financial management practices.

In December 2018, FCMAT issued the results of its analysis that concluded, unless changes are made, the
District is at risk of insolvency, which leads to a state loan and an appointed administrator. The analysis
focused on identifying district systems and processes where improvements can be made. Immediately, the
District began taking steps to implement business process changes and adopt FCMAT’s recommendations.
Additionally, in December of 2019, the State Auditor issued its independent performance audit report on
the fiscal condition of the District. The report includes several recommendations to assist the District in
moving towards fiscal solvency.

Uncertainty surrounds ongoing State funding for K-12 Districts, with potential future impacts stemming from
a recessionary economy, including possible adjustments to funding rates, enroliment, declining average
daily attendance, and the expiration of one-time funding sources. However, the District anticipates improved
fiscal stability due to increased ongoing State funding and funding mechanisms implemented by the State
to mitigate the decline in ADA. The 2023-24 First Interim report and multi-year projections, report the District
expects a positive cash balance through June 2026. The District will continue to be closely monitored to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash reserves to meet its current and future obligations.
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NOTE 14 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 7, 2024, the 2024 General Obligation Refunding Bonds were issued in total of $75,825,000.
The bonds were issued to refund a certain portion of the 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The
bonds range in maturity date with a final payoff on August 1, 2048 with interest rates ranging from 4.00%

to 5.25%.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Budget Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

LCFF:

State apportionment $ 349,505,330 $ 368,144,805 $ 363,362,821 (4,781,984)
Local sources 106,818,372 115,925,859 119,980,714 4,054,855
Total LCFF 456,323,702 484,070,664 483,343,535 (727,129)

Federal sources 91,620,567 152,870,074 102,737,272 (50,132,802)

Other state sources 133,686,719 188,637,720 191,809,507 3,171,787

Other local sources 8,258,946 10,478,096 20,073,799 9,595,703
Total revenues 689,889,933 836,056,554 797,964,113 (38,092,441)

Expenditures:

Current:

Certificated salaries 242,978,512 239,363,630 229,980,325 9,383,305
Classified salaries 70,677,912 69,800,201 67,457,009 2,343,192
Employee benefits 215,767,200 203,444,790 189,601,959 13,842,831
Books and supplies 29,337,531 54,287,681 20,898,836 33,388,845
Contract services and operating

expenditures 85,526,262 159,973,038 118,465,566 41,507,472
Other outgo 348,442 1,544,214 1,420,167 124,047

Capital outlay 5,429,251 39,936,801 25,340,223 14,596,578
Total expenditures 650,065,110 768,350,355 653,164,085 115,186,270
Excess of revenues

over expenditures 39,824,823 67,706,199 144,800,028 77,093,829
Other financing sources:

Transfers in 2,342,426 3,467,968 3,279,910 (188,058)
Total other financing sources 2,342,426 3,467,968 3,279,910 (188,058)
Change in fund balance 42,167,249 71,174,167 148,079,938 76,905,771

Fund balance, July 1, 2022 109,852,797 109,852,797 109,852,797 -
Fund balance, June 30, 2023 $ 152,020,046 $ 181,026,964 $ 257,932,735 $ 76,905,771

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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Last 10 Fiscal Years

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
Service cost $ 33,273,763 $ 28429909 $ 20,002,277 $ 22,361,924 $ 8,647,600 $ 9,390,965
Interest on total OPEB liability 24,982,078 28,454,100 25,888,179 26,023,049 28,912,863 30,032,848
Differences between expected and
actual experience - (135,537,910) - (98,105,689) - (73,787,272)
Changes of assumptions (89,783,252) (83,559,205) 29,041,398  (170,763,789) 10,859,088 4,093,581
Benefit payments (20,462,037) (19,351,654) (19,644,632) (18,690,251) (21,345,655) (19,742,892)
Net change in total OPEB liability (51,989,448) (181,564,760) 55,287,222  (239,174,756) 27,073,896 (50,012,770)
Total OPEB liability - beginning of year (a) 832,507,858 780,518,410 598,953,650 654,240,872 415,066,116 442,140,012
Total OPEB liability - end of year (b) $ 780,518,410 § 598,953,650 § 654,240,872 §$ 415,066,116 $ 442,140,012 § 392,127,242
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer $ 48,000,844 $ 33,078,830 $ 28,640,257 $ 26,713,074 $ 31,199,420 $ 28,457,590
Net investment income 3,951,473 4,395,048 4,575,947 3,013,601 26,761,724 (17,926,043)
Administrative expenses (19,446) (29,756) (15,667) (42,420) (36,839) (33,922)
Other expenses - (72,482) - - - -
Benefit payments (20,462,037) (19,351,654) (19,644,632) (18,690,251) (21,345,655) (19,742,892)
Change in plan fiduciary net position 31,470,834 18,019,986 13,555,905 10,994,004 36,578,650 (9,245,267)
Fiduciary trust net position - beginning of year (c) 23,287,118 54,757,952 72,777,938 86,333,843 97,327,847 133,906,497
Fiduciary trust net position - end of year (d) $ 54,757,952 $ 72,777,938 $ 86,333,843 $ 97,327,847 $ 133,906,497 $ 124,661,230
Net OPEB liability - beginning (a) - (c) $ 809,220,740 § 725,760,458 §$ 526,175,712 $ 567,907,029 $ 317,738,269 $ 308,233,515
Net OPEB liability - ending (b) - (d) $ 725,760,458 $ 526,175,712 §$ 567,907,029 §$ 317,738,269 $ 308,233,515 $ 267,466,012
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB liability 7% 12% 13% 23% 30% 32%
Covered employee payroll $ 263,777,849 $ 284,495904 $ 271,833,894 §$ 279,376,002 $ 302,034,133 $ 343,087,661
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered employee payroll 275% 185% 209% 114% 102% 78%

This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’'S CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

Other Postemployment Benefits
Last 10 Fiscal Years

201 201 2020 2021 2022 2023

$ 41,766,451 $ 29,997,546 $ 30,861,105 $ 31,958,000 $ 28427,786 $ 29,218,878

(33,078,830)  (28,640,257)  (26,713074)  (31,199420)  (28457,590)  (28,080,859)

$ 8687621 § 1,357,289 $ 4,148,031 $ 758,580 § (29,804) $ 1,138,019

$ 284,495904 $ 271,833,894 §$ 279,376,002 $ 302,034,133 $ 343,087,662 $ 326,710,014

11.63% 10.54% 9.56% 10.33% 8.29% 8.60%

*The ADC for the District's fiscal year end June 30, 2020 was determined as part of the June 30, 2019 valuation using a 3.90% discount

rate.

This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
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State Teachers' Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 201 2020 2021 2022 2023
District's proportion of
the net pension liability 0.382% 0.375% 0.371% 0.372% 0.385% 0.396% 0.376% 0.337% 0.347%
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 233,056,000 $ 252,331,000 $ 299,780,000 $ 344,390,000 $ 353,827,000 $ 357,334,000 $ 364,571,000 $ 153,342,000 $ 241,143,000
State's proportionate share of
the net pension pension liability
associated with the District 134,692,000 133,455,000 170,676,000 203,739,000 202,583,000 194,951,000 199,236,000 91,235,000 136,300,000
Total net pension liability $ 367,748,000 $ 385,786,000 $ 470,456,000 $ 548,129,000 $ 556,410,000 $ 552,285,000 $ 563,807,000 $ 244,577,000 §$ 377,443,000
District's covered payroll $ 170,012,000 $ 173,962,000 $ 184,718,000 $ 197,366,000 $ 202,167,000 $ 220,584,000 $ 212,770,000 $ 213,026,000 $ 238,060,000
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll 137.08% 145.05% 162.29% 174.49% 175.02% 161.99% 171.35% 71.98% 101.30%
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 76.52% 74.02% 70.04% 69.46% 70.99% 72.56% 71.82% 87.21% 81.20%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

(Continued)
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Public Employer's Retirement Fund B
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 201 2020 2021 2022 2023
District's proportion of
the net pension liability 0.541% 0.534% 0.533% 0.518% 0.541% 0.527% 0.475% 0.461% 0.443%
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 61,440,000 $ 78,659,000 $ 105,299,000 $ 123,753,000 $ 144,170,000 $ 153,723,000 $ 145,701,000 $ 93,712,000 $ 152,425,000
District's covered payroll $ 56,813,000 $ 59,079,000 $ 63,963,000 $ 66,095000 $ 72476000 $ 73410000 $ 68,605,000 $ 66,484,000 $ 70,550,000
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered payroll 108.14% 133.14% 164.62% 187.24% 198.92% 209.40% 212.38% 140.95% 216.05%
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 83.38% 79.43% 73.89% 71.87% 70.85% 70.05% 70.00% 80.97% 69.76%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’'S CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

State Teachers' Retirement Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 201 2020 2021 2022 2023

Contractually required contribution $ 15447858 $ 19,820,280 $ 24,828,643 $ 29,172,733 $ 35911088 $ 36,383,635 $ 34,403,690 $ 40,279,774 $ 42543877
Contributions in relation to the

contactually required contribution (15,447,858) (19,820,280) (24,828,643) (29,172,733) (35,911,088) (36,383,635) (34,403,690) (40,279,774) (42,543,877)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - % - $ -
District's covered payroll $ 173,962,000 $ 184,718,000 $ 197,366,000 $ 202,167,000 $ 220,584,000 $ 212,770,000 $ 213,026,000 $ 238,060,000 $ 222,743,000
Contributions as a

percentage of covered payroll 8.88% 10.73% 12.58% 14.43% 16.28% 17.10%* 16.15%** 16.92%*** 19.10%

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

* This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 18.13 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 1.03 percentage points to be paid on behalf of
employers pursuant to SB 90.

** This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 19.10 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 2.95 percentage points to be paid on behalf of
employers pursuant to SB 90.

*** This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 19.10 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 2.18 percentage points to be paid on behalf of
employers pursuant to SB 90.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’'S CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Public Employer's Retirement Fund B
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 201 2020 2021 2022 2023

Contractually required contribution $ 6954207 $ 7577683 $§ 9,180,596 $ 11,256,216 $ 13,259,325 §$ 13,529,537 $ 13,762,087 $ 16,163,003 $ 19,633,057
Contributions in relation to the

contactually required contribution (6,954,207) (7,577,683) (9,180,596) (11,256,216) (13,259,325) (13,529,537) (13,762,087) (16,163,003) (19,633,057)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -
District's covered payroll $ 59,079,000 $ 63,963,000 $ 66,095000 $ 72,476,000 $ 73,410,000 $ 68605000 $ 66,484,000 $ 70,550,000 $ 77,387,000
Contributions as a

percentage of covered payroll 11.77% 11.85% 13.89% 15.53% 18.06% 19.72% 20.70% 22.91% 25.37%

All years prior to 2015 are not available.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule: The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual
appropriation accounts. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of
Education to provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major
object code. The originally adopted and final revised budgets for the General Fund are presented as
Required Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP.

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios: The Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB
Liability presents multi-year information which illustrates the changes in the net OPEB liability for each year
presented.

Schedule of the District's Contributions — OPEB: The Schedule of District Contributions is presented to
illustrate the District's required contributions relating to the OPEB. There is a requirement to show
information for 10 years. However, until a full 10- year trend is compiled, governments should present
information for those years for which information is available.

Schedule of the District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability: The Schedule of the District’'s
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability is presented to illustrate the elements of the District's Net
Pension Liability. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is
available.

Schedule of the District's Contributions: The Schedule of District Contributions is presented to illustrate the
District’s required contributions relating to the pensions. There is a requirement to show information for 10
years. However, until a full 10- year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those
years for which information is available.

Changes of Benefit Terms: There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required Supplementary
Information.

Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate for the Net OPEB liability was 2.92, 3.56, 4.25, 3.90, 7.00, 6.80
and 6.10 percent in the June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 actuarial reports,
respectively.

The discount rate used for the Public Employer's Retirement Fund B (PERF B) plan was 7.50, 7.65, 7.65,
7.15,7.15, 7.15, 7.15, 7.15 and 6.90 percent in the June 30, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019,
2020, and 2021 actuarial reports, respectively.

The inflation rate used for the PERF B plan was 2.50, 2.50, 2.50, 2.50, 2.50, 2.50, 2.50, 2.50, and 2.30
percent in the June 30, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, and 2021 actuarial reports,
respectively.

The following are the assumptions for State Teachers' Retirement Plan:

Measurement Period

As of As of As of As of As of As of As of As of
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

Assumption 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Consumer price inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.00% 3.00%
Investment rate of return 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.60% 7.60%
Wage growth 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.75% 3.75%
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS

June 30, 2023

Student Charter Adult Child Developer County Community
Activity Schools Education Development Cafeteria Fees School Facilities Facilities
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash in County Treasury $ - $ 18,691,327 $ 674,652 $ 1,075321 $ 7,699,332 $ 26,310,331 $ - $ 1,772,982 $ 56,223,945
Cash in banks 1,564,099 10 533,598 41,775 433,675 550,463 - 6,543 3,130,163
Cash in revolving account - - - - 2,000 - - - 2,000
Collections Awaiting Deposit - - - - 1,343,431 - - - 1,343,431
Receivables - 429,401 26,016 33,357 8,803,165 550,927 - 22,957 9,865,823
Due from grantor government - 1,525,009 1,333,073 4,666,820 - - - - 7,524,902
Due from other funds - 2,004,397 676 1,096 28,464 - - - 2,034,633
Stores inventory 5,934 - - - 2,384,649 - - - 2,390,583
Total assets $ 1,570,033 $ 22,650,144 $ 2,568,015 $ 5,818,369 $ 20,694,716 $ 27,411,721 § - $§ 1,802,482 $ 82,515,480
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 1052997 $ 307,759 §$ 842,241 $§ 1,513,993 $§ 395,061 § - $ 7694 $ 4,119,745
Due to grantor government - 2,291,524 - - - - - - 2,291,524
Unearned revenue - 379,587 20,477 1,155,185 92,751 - - - 1,648,000
Due to other funds - 3,405,767 1,178,771 2,581,084 699,630 83,552 - - 7,948,804
Total liabilities - 7,129,875 1,507,007 4,578,510 2,306,374 478,613 - 7,694 16,008,073
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 5,934 - - - 2,386,649 - - - 2,392,583
Restricted 1,564,099 15,520,269 1,061,008 1,239,859 16,001,693 26,933,108 - 1,794,788 64,114,824
Total fund balance 1,570,033 15,520,269 1,061,008 1,239,859 18,388,342 26,933,108 - 1,794,788 66,507,407
Total liabilities and fund
balances $ 1,570,033 $ 22650144 $ 2,568,015 $ 5,818,369 $ 20,694,716 $ 27,411,721 $ - $ 1,802,482 $ 82,515,480
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues:
LCFF
Federal sources
Other state sources
Other local sources
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies
Contract services and
operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other financing uses:
Transfers out

Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1, 2022

Fund balances, June 30, 2023

Student Charter Adult Child Developer County Community
Activity Schools Education Development Cafeteria Fees School Facilities Facilities

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - $ 17,369,989 $ -9 -3 -3 -3 - - $ 17,369,989
- 465,011 1,325,129 6,544,180 27,496,826 - - - 35,831,146
- 8,980,902 3,318,775 7,501,200 7,509,178 - - - 27,310,055
1,306,501 523,671 2,313,033 736,860 729,269 7,940,610 54 2,055,451 15,605,449
1,306,501 27,339,573 6,956,937 14,782,240 35,735,273 7,940,610 54 2,055,451 96,116,639
- 8,158,370 2,038,386 3,920,056 - - - - 14,116,812
- 1,079,097 1,316,221 2,609,604 9,725,802 - - - 14,730,724
- 5,745,084 2,147,289 5,124,941 6,773,622 - - - 19,790,936
1,184,409 1,018,091 236,414 884,510 13,641,609 - - - 16,965,033
- 2,975,618 1,475,651 168,666 979,391 108,304 - 15,349 5,722,979
- 71,276 - 1,278,839 149,931 516,346 - - 2,016,392
- - - - - 2,970,000 - - 2,970,000
- - - - - 1,139,474 - 1,358,500 2,497,974
1,184,409 19,047,536 7,213,961 13,986,616 31,270,355 4,734,124 - 1,373,849 78,810,850
122,092 8,292,037 (257,024) 795,624 4,464,918 3,206,486 54 681,602 17,305,789
- (2,119,214) (66,305) (436,427) (657,964) - (4,945) - (3,284,855)
- (2,119,214) (66,305) (436,427) (657,964) - (4,945) - (3,284,855)
122,092 6,172,823 (323,329) 359,197 3,806,954 3,206,486 (4,891) 681,602 14,020,934
1,447,941 9,347,446 1,384,337 880,662 14,581,388 23,726,622 4,891 1,113,186 52,486,473
$ 1,570,033 $ 15520269 $ 1,061,008 $§ 1,239,859 $ 18,388,342 $ 26,933,108 $ - 1,794,788 $ 66,507,407
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION
June 30, 2023

Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of California, was established
onJuly 7, 1936. The territory covered by the District does not include certain areas of the City of Sacramento
but does include some contiguous territory located outside city boundaries, but within Sacramento County
boundaries. There were no changes in the District boundaries in the current year under audit. The District
operated forty-two elementary schools (grades K-6), seven elementary/middle schools (grades K-8), six
middle schools (grades 7-8), two middle/high schools (grades 7-12), seven high schools (grades 9-12),
three alternative schools, two adult education centers, two special education centers and forty-two
children's centers and preschools, serving infants through age 12. Fifteen charter schools also operated in
the District serving kindergarten through grade twelve, five of which were governed by the District Board of
Education.
GOVERNING BOARD

Name Office Term Expires
Chinua Rhodes President December 2024
Lavinia Grace Phillips Vice President December 2024
Jasijit Singh Second Vice President December 2026
Tara Jeane Member December 2026
Christina Pritchett Member December 2024
Jamee Villa Member December 2024
Taylor Kayatta Member December 2026
Liam McGurk* Student Member June 2023

ADMINISTRATION

Lisa Allen**
Interim Superintendent

Mary Hardin Young***
Interim Deputy Superintendent

Brian Heap
Chief Communications Officer
Timothy Rocco****
Chief Information Officer

Cancy McArn
Chief Human Resources Officer

Janea Markingt
Chief Business and Operations Officer

Yvonne Wright
Chief Academic Officer

*Blaze McGhee was voted into office as the new Student Board Member in June 2023 for the 2023-24 school year.
Member McGhee resigned August 15, 2023. Gracie Miller Segura was selected to serve for the 2023-24 school year.
**Jorge A. Aguilar resigned June 30, 2023. Lisa Allen was assigned Interim Superintendent July 1, 2023.

***Mary Hardin Young assigned Interim Deputy Superintendent July 1, 2023.

****Robert Lyons retired September 30, 2023. Timothy Rocco hired January 8, 2024.

tRose F. Ramos retired July 31, 2023. Janea Marking hired October 4, 2023.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

June 30, 2023

Certificate Number:
Elementary:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third
Fourth through Sixth
Seventh and Eighth
Special Education
Community Day School

Secondary:
Ninth through Twelfth
Special Education

Total Secondary

District ADA Totals
Charter Schools

Certificate Number:

Bowling Green Elementary - Classroom-Based:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third
Fourth through Sixth

Total Bowling Green Elementary Charter

Certificate Number:
George Washington Carver School of Arts and

Science - Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth

Certificate Number:

New Joseph Bonnheim - Classroom-Based:
Transitional Kindergarten through Third
Fourth through Sixth

Total New Joseph Bonnheim Charter

Certificate Number:

New Technology High - Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth

Certificate Number:
The Met Sacramento High School -

Non-Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth

Total Charter Schools

Original Audited
Second Second
Period Period
Report Report
2FF8E46A 29751200
10,142 10,142
7,936 7,936
5,473 5,473
135 135
9 9
23,695 23,695
9,952 9,952
80 80
10,032 10,032
33,727 33,727
89F9526 89F9526**
375 375
295 295
670 670
57A38E3A 57A38E3A**
190 190
3F2F0B7C 3F2F0B7C**
118 118
94 94
212 212
D9977F51 D9977F51**
138 138
5E1727FB 5E1727FB**
201 201
1,411 1,411

* Second Period Report was revised to address finding 2023-001 noted in the Findings

and Recommendations section.
** Second Period Report was not revised.

Audited
Annual

Report
5BD4DA7D

10,193
7,940
5,454

133
12

23,732

9,869
78

9,947

33,679

4FE673E1

378
296
674

1E0B6644

182

ECAB5210

120
96
216

6120FCD8

137

B0C201CB

200

1,409

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Credited Number
Statutory 2022-23 Credited Minutes 2022-23 2022-23 Days per of days
Minutes Actual Minutes  per Approved Total Reported Actual Days Approved Traditional
Grade Level Requirement Offered Form J-13A Minutes Offered Form J-13A Calendar Status
District*
Kindergarten 36,000 35,600 400 36,000 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 1 50,400 49,898 594 50,492 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 2 50,400 49,898 594 50,492 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 3 50,400 49,898 594 50,492 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 4 54,000 53,374 634 54,008 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 5 54,000 53,374 634 54,008 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 6 54,000 53,374 634 54,008 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 7 54,000 57,530 678 58,208 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 8 54,000 57,530 678 58,208 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 9 64,800 64,038 762 64,800 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 10 64,800 64,038 762 64,800 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 11 64,800 64,038 762 64,800 178 2 180 In compliance
Grade 12 64,800 64,038 762 64,800 178 2 180 In compliance
Bowling Green Charter School - Classroom Based**
Kindergarten 36,000 42,950 255 43,205 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 1 50,400 50,195 297 50,492 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 2 50,400 50,195 297 50,492 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 3 50,400 50,195 297 50,492 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 4 54,000 53,691 317 54,008 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 5 54,000 53,691 317 54,008 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 6 54,000 53,691 317 54,008 179 1 180 In compliance
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Credited Number
Statutory 2022-23 Credited Minutes 2022-23 2022-23 Days per of days
Minutes Actual Minutes  per Approved Total Reported Actual Days Approved Traditional
Grade Level Requirement Offered Form J-13A Minutes Offered Form J-13A Calendar Status
George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science - Classroom Based***
Grade 9 64,800 64,420 380 64,800 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 10 64,800 64,420 380 64,800 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 11 64,800 64,420 380 64,800 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 12 64,800 64,420 380 64,800 179 1 180 In compliance
New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School - Classroom Based****
Kindergarten 36,000 35,800 200 36,000 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 1 50,400 50,255 297 50,552 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 2 50,400 50,255 297 50,552 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 3 50,400 50,255 297 50,552 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 4 54,000 53,751 317 54,068 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 5 54,000 53,751 317 54,068 179 1 180 In compliance
Grade 6 54,000 53,751 317 54,068 179 1 180 In compliance
New Technology High School - Classroom Based
Grade 9 64,800 64,943 0 64,943 175 0 175 In compliance
Grade 10 64,800 64,943 0 64,943 175 0 175 In compliance
Grade 11 64,800 64,943 0 64,943 175 0 175 In compliance
Grade 12 64,800 64,943 0 64,943 175 0 175 In compliance
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

*Sacramento City Unified School District had the following instructional minutes for fiscal year 2022-23:

For the following sites, Grade Span Kindergarten had total minutes of 36,000 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 200 minutes and 1 day
which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 1-3 had total minutes of 50,492 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 297 minutes
and 1 day which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 4-6 had total minutes of 54,008 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 317
minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 7-8 had total minutes of 58,207 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver
of 339 minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 9-12 had total minutes of 64,800 and 180 days which included a J-
13A Waiver of 381 minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 6, 2023.

A.M. Winn Waldorf-Inspired
Abraham Lincoln Elementary

Albert Einstein Middle

Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Professions High

Bret Harte Elementary
C.K. McClatchy High

Caleb Greenwood Elementary

California Middle
Camelia Elementary

Caroline Wenzel Elementary

Community Day

Crocker/Riverside Elementary
David Lubin Elementary

Earl Warren Elementary
Elder Creek Elementary

Ethel |. Baker Elementary
Ethel Phillips Elementary

Father Keith B Kenny
Fern Bacon Middle

Genevieve Didion

Golden Empire Elementary

H. W. Harkness Elementary
Hiram W. Johnson High
Hollywood Park Elementary
Hubert H. Bancroft Elementary
Isador Cohen Elementary
James Marshall Elementary
John Bidwell Elementary

John Cabrillo Elementary

John D. Sloat Elementary
John F. Kennedy High

John H. Still

Kit Carson International Academy
Leataata Floyd Elementary
Leonardo Da Vinci

Mark Twain Elementary
Martin Luther King Jr.
Matsuyama Elementary
Nicholas Elementary

O. W. Erlewine Elementary
Oak Ridge Elementary
Pacific Elementary

Parkway Elementary

Peter Burnett Elementary
Phoebe A. Hearst Elementary
Rosemont High

Sam Brannan Middle

School of Engineering & Sciences
Sequoia Elementary

Susan B. Anthony Elementary
Sutter Middle

Tahoe Elementary

Theodore Judah Elementary
Washington Elementary

West Campus

Will C. Wood Middle

William Land Elementary
Woodbine Elementary

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

For the following sites, Grade Span Kindergarten had total minutes of 36,000 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 400 minutes and 2 days
which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 1-3 had total minutes of 50,492 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 594 minutes
and 2 days which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 4-6 had total minutes of 54,008 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 634
minutes and 2 days which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 7-8 had total minutes of 58,208 and 180 days which included a J-13A
Waiver of 678 minutes and 2 days which was approved on December 6, 2023. Grade Span 9-12 had total minutes of 64,806 and 180 days which
included a J-13A Waiver of 762 minutes and 2 days which was approved on December 6, 2023.

Luther Burbank High School
Sutterville Elementary

Success Academy

Pony Express Elementary
Rosa Parks K-8

John Morse Therapeutic Center
Cesar Chavez Elementary
Edward Kemble Elementary

**Bowling Green Charter School Grade Span Kindergarten had total minutes of 43,205 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 255 minutes and
1 day which was approved on December 5, 2023. Bowling Green Charter School Grade Span 1-3 had total minutes of 50,492 and 180 days which
included a J-13A Waiver of 297 minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 5, 2023. Bowling Green Charter School Grade Span 4-6 had total
minutes of 54,008 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 317 minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 5, 2023.

***George Washington Carver School of Arts & Science School Grade Span 9-12 had total minutes of 64,800 and 180 days which included a J-13A
Waiver of 380 minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 6, 2023.

****New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School Grade Span K had total minutes of 36,000 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 200 minutes and 1
day which was approved on December 11, 2023. New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School Grade Span 1-3 had total minutes of 50,552 and 180 days
which included a J-13A Waiver of 297 minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 11, 2023. New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School Grade
Span 4-6 had total minutes of 54,068 and 180 days which included a J-13A Waiver of 317 minutes and 1 day which was approved on December 11,
2023.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Assistance
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department
of Education

Special Education Cluster:

84.027 IDEA: Basic and Local Assistance
Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611
84.027 IDEA: Private School ISP
84.027 Special Ed: ARP IDEA Part B, Sec. 611,
Local Assistance Entitlement
84.027 Special Ed: ARP IDEA Part B, Sec.611, Local
Assistance Private School Individual Service Plans (ISPs)
84.173 Special Ed: ARP IDEA Part B, Sec. 619, Preschool Grants
84.173 IDEA Preschool Grants, Part B,
Section 619 (Age 3-5)
84.027A Special Ed: IDEA Mental Health Average Daily Attendance
(ADA) Allocation, Part B, Sec 611
84.173A IDEA: Preschool Staff Development, Part B, Sec 619
84.027A IDEA: Quality Assurance & Focused
Monitoring
84.173A Alternative Dispute Resolution,
Part B, Sec 611
Subtotal Special Education Cluster
Adult Education Program:
84.002A Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ESL
Section 231
84.002 Adult Education: Adult Basic Secondary Education
Section 231
84.002A Adult Education: English Literacy and Civics
Education Local Grant
Subtotal Adult Education Program
84.048 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education:
Secondary, Sec 131 (Vocational Education)
Title | Program:
84.010 ESEA (ESSA): Title |, Part Basic Grants Low-Income
and Neglected
84.010 ESEA: School Improvement Funding for LEAs

Subtotal Title | Program

Pass-
Through
Entity
Identifying
Number

13379
10115

15638

10169
15639

13430

15197
13431

13693

13007

14508
13978

14109

14894

14329
15438

Federal
Expend-
itures

9,498,837
124,666

1,869,226

25,140
162,317

272,117

477,100
4,150

57,250

5,993

12,496,796

104,312

12,062

15,554

131,928

774,992

13,560,279

1,244,838

14,805,117

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Pass-
Through
Assistance Entity
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number
U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department
of Education (Continued)
Title Il Program:
84.365 ESEA (ESSA): Title lll, English Learner Student
Program 14346
84.365 ESEA (ESSA): Title lll, Immigrant Student Program 15146
Subtotal Title Il Program
84.126 Department of Rehabilitation: Workability Il, Transitions
Partnership Program 10006
84.181 Special Education: Early Intervention Grants, Part C 23761
84.196 ESSA: Title IX, Part A, McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Grants 14332
84.060 Indian Education (From Federal Government) 10011
84.063 Financial Aid Pell Grant *
84.287 ESEA: Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community
Learning Centers Program 14349
84.336 Sacramento STEM Power *
84.367 ESEA: Title Il, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 14341
84.424 ESEA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and
Academic Enrichment 15396
COVID-19: Education Stabilization Fund (ESF) Programs:
84.425 COVID-19: Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief (ESSER) Fund 1 15536
84.425 COVID-19: ESSER California Community Schools
Partnership Program 15537
84.425 COVID-19: ESSER Il Fund 15547
84.425 COVID-19: ESSER Ill Fund 15559
84.425U COVID-19: ESSER Il Fund: Learning Loss 10155
84.425C COVID-19: Governor's Emergency Education Relief Fund
(GEER): Learning Loss Mitigation 15517
84.425 COVID-19: Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant:
ESSER Il State Reserve 15618
84.425C COVID-19: ELO Grant: GEER Il 15619
84.425 COVID-19: ELO Grant: ESSER Il State Reserve
Emergency Needs 15620
84.425U COVID-19: ELO Grant: ESSER Il State Reserve
Learning Loss 15621
84.425 COVID-19:After School Education and Safety (ASES) Rate
Increase: ESSER Il State Reserve Afterschool Programs 15649
84.425 COVID-19: 21st Century Community Learning Centers (CCLC)
Rate Increase ESSER Il State Reserve Afterschool Programs 15651
84.425F Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) Program P425F204408

Subtotal ESF Programs - COVID-19

Total U.S. Department of Education

Federal
Expend-
itures

1,158,676
21,446

1,180,122

198,942
139,420
68,948
25,916
240,462

2,429,848

51,163
1,595,473

1,419,077

231,277
421,484
5,840,656
48,376,629
10,312,354
75,902

658,661
548,430

361,792

34,576

1,833,688

30,548
239,176

68,965,173

104,523,377

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Pass-
Through
Assistance Entity
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Passed through
California Department of Health Care Services
Child Development Coronavirus Response Programs:
93.575 Child Development: Coronavirus Response and Relief
Supplemental Appropriations (CRRSA) Act -
One-time Stipend - COVID - 19 15555
93.596 Child Development: Federal California State
Preschool Program (13-14) 13609
Subtotal Child Development Coronavirus Response
93.674 Chafee Foster Care Independent Living *
93.600 Head Start - Head Start Cluster 10016
93.566 Refugee Cash and Medical Assistance Program *
Total U.S. Department Health and Human Services
U.S. Department of Agriculture - Passed through
California Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster:
10.555 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch, School
Breakfast, Milk, Pregnant & Lactating Students) 13396
10.555 Supply Chain Assistance (SCA) Funds 15655
10.555 SNP COVID-19 Emergency Operational Costs Reimbursement (EC} 15637
10.559 Child Nutrition: Summer Food Service Program
Operations 13004
Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster
10.582 Child Nutrition: Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 14968
Child and Adult Care Food Programs (CACFP):
10.558 Child Care Food Program - COVID-19 Emergency Operational
Operational Costs Reimbursement (ECR) 15577
10.558 Child Care Food Program (CCFP) Claims-Centers and Family
Day Care Homes (Meal Reimbursements) 13666
Subtotal CACFP Programs
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. Department of Defense
12.357 ROTC Language and Culture Training Grants *
U.S. Department of Labor - Passed through
California Department of Education
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster:
17.259 Workforce Investment Act, Youth Activities 10055

Total Federal Programs
* District is unable to provide PCA numbers.

Federal
Expend-
itures

190,338

97,601

287,939

86,404
5,927,007

290,043

6,591,393

20,778,751
815,027
357,117

1,178,230

23,129,125

6,258

427,642

2,805,579
3,233,221
26,368,604

265,154

172,658

137,921,186

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.

79.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Bond Interest

and
Redemption
Fund
June 30, 2023 Unaudited Actual Financial Reporting
Ending Fund Balance $ 41,979,247
To correct debt issuance premiums recorded by
the Sacramento County Treasurer 15,518,216
To record debt issuance premiums for 2022 General Obligation
Bonds not recorded by the Sacramento County Treasurer 14,073,126
June 30, 2023 Audited Financial Statements Ending
Fund Balance $ 71,570,589

There were no adjustments proposed to any other funds of the District.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

(UNAUDITED)
(Budget)
2024 2023 2022 2021

General Fund
Revenues and other

financing sources 720,405,510 801,244,023 626,008,259 §$§ 629,933,392
Expenditures 698,964,175 653,164,085 639,401,977 591,568,014
Other uses and transfers out - - 2,660,202 5,507,272
Total outgo 698,964,175 653,164,085 642,062,179 597,075,286
Change in fund balance $ 21,441,335 $ 148,079,938 $ (16,053,920) $ 32,858,106
Ending fund balance $ 279,374,070 $§ 257,932,735 $ 109,852,797 $ 125,906,717
Available reserves $ 36125453 $ 46,528,353 $ 48,796,417 $ 45,401,679
Designated for economic

uncertainties $ 13,929,776 $ 13,039,261 $ 12,763,716  $ 11,907,405
Undesignated fund balance $ 22195677 $§ 33,489,092 $ 36,032,701 $ 33,494,274
Available reserves as

percentages of total

outgo 5.2% 7.1% 7.6% 7.6%
All Funds

Total long-term liabilities

Average daily attendance
at P-2, excluding Adult
and Charter School

$ 1,411,602,201

$ 1,467,939,991

$ 1,150,304,688 $ 1,380,986,742

33,586

33,727

32,673 38,220

The General Fund fund balance has increased by $164,884,124 over the past three years. The District has
incurred operating deficits in one of the past three years, and anticipates incurring an operating surplus during
the 2023-2024 fiscal year. The fiscal year 2023-2024 budget projects an increase of $21,441,335. For a district
this size, the state recommends available reserves of at least 2% of total General Fund expenditures, transfers
out, and other uses. For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District has met this requirement.

Total long-term liabilities have increased by $89,460,323 over the past two years.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 4,493 over the past two years. The District anticipates a decrease
of 141 ADA for the 2023-2024 fiscal year.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Charter
No.

0598
0018
0775
1273
0588
1848
0640
0586
1690
0585
0596
1948
0552
0491
1186

Charter Schools Chartered by District

Aspire Capitol Heights Academy

Bowling Green Charter Elementary

California Montessori Project Capitol Campus

Capitol Collegiate Academy

George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science
Growth Public Schools

Language Academy of Sacramento

The Met Sacramento High School

New Joseph Bonnheim (NJB) Community Charter School
New Technology High School

Sacramento Charter High School

Sacramento Academic and Vocational Academy (SAVA)
Sol Aureus College Preparatory

St. HOPE Public School 7

Yav Pem Suab Academy

Included in District
Financial Statements, or

Separate Report

Separate Report
Included as Charter Schools Fund
Separate Report
Separate Report
Included as Charter Schools Fund
Separate Report
Separate Report
Included as Charter Schools Fund
Included as Charter Schools Fund
Included as Charter Schools Fund
Separate Report
Separate Report
Separate Report
Separate Report
Separate Report

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FIRST 5 REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues
Other local sources

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries
Classified salaries
Employee benefits
Books and supplies

Contract services and operating

expenditures
Indirect costs

Total expenditures

Academic
and Support Child
Services* Care*
$ 173,916 $ 343,758
96,689 140,466
620 52,174
65,723 129,893
10,638 2,510
246 1,113
- 17,603
173,916 343,759

Change in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1, 2022

Fund balance, June 30, 2023 $

$

* Revenues and expenditures for the First 5 Grant are reflected in the District's Child Development Fund.
See pages 69 to 70 of the financial statements for a complete presentation of the Child Development Fund.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance: Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils
attending classes of the District. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide
the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides
information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time: The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time
as provided by the Incentives for Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the
amount of instructional time offered by the District, and whether the District complied with the provisions of
Education Code Sections 46201 through 46206.

Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards: The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards includes the
federal award activity of Sacramento City Unified School District, and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Expenditures are recognized following the
cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable
or are limited as to reimbursement. The District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect
cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. The District had no subrecipients.

Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements: This schedule
provides the information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited
financial statements.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis — Unaudited: This schedule provides information on the District's
financial condition over the past three years and its anticipated condition for the 2023-2024 fiscal year, as
required by the State Controller's Office.

Schedule of Charter Schools: This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education
to monitor financial reporting by Charter Schools.

Schedule of First 5 Revenues and Expenditures: This schedule provides information about the First 5
Sacramento County Program.

NOTE 2 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Education Code Section 14502 requires certain disclosure in the financial statements of districts which
adopt Early Retirement Incentive Programs pursuant to Education Code Sections 22714 and 44929. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District did not adopt this program.
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Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on Compliance
Qualified Opinion on State Compliance

We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District’s (the District) compliance with the requirements
specified in the State of California 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies
and State Compliance Reporting applicable to the District’s state program requirements identified below for
the year ended June 30, 2023.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements that are applicable
to the laws and regulations of the state programs noted in the table below for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on State Compliance

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards), and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting. Our responsibilities under those standards and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting are further described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide
a legal determination of the District’'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Matters Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on State Compliance

As described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2023-001, 2023-
002, 2023-003, 2023-004, 2023-005 and 2023-006, the District did not comply with requirements regarding
Attendance, Instructional Materials, Comprehensive School Safety Plan, Immunizations, After/Before
School Education and Safety Program and Transitional Kindergarten. Compliance with such requirements
is necessary, in our opinion, for the District to comply with the requirements applicable to those programs.

(Continued)
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District’s
state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards, and the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting will always detect a material noncompliance when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material,
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with the requirements of
the state programs as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 2022-2023
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’'s internal controls over compliance.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion; and

e Select and test transactions and records to determine the District's compliance with the state laws
and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures
2022-23 K-12 Audit Guide Procedures Performed
Local Education Agencies Other than Charter Schools:
A. Attendance Yes
B. Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
C. Kindergarten Continuance Yes
D. Independent Study Yes
E. Continuation Education Yes
F. Instructional Time Yes
G. Instructional Materials Yes
H. Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
I. Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
J. Early Retirement Incentive N/A, see below
K. Gann Limit Calculation Yes
L. School Accountability Report Card Yes
M. Juvenile Court Schools N/A, see below
N. Middle or Early College High Schools N/A, see below
0. K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes

(Continued)
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P. Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes

Q. Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Yes

R. Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes

S. District of Choice N/A, see below
TT. Home to School Transportation Reimbursement Yes
UU.Independent Study Certification for ADA Loss Mitigation Yes
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:

T. California Clean Energy Jobs Act N/A, see below
U. After/Before School Education and Safety Program Yes

V. Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes

W. Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes

X. Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes

Y. Independent Study — Course-Based N/A, see below
Z. Immunizations Yes

AZ. Educator Effectiveness Yes

BZ. Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) Yes

CZ. Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Yes

EZ. Transitional Kindergarten Yes
Charter Schools:

AA. Attendance Yes

BB. Mode of Instruction Yes
CC.Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study Yes
DD.Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction Yes

EE. Annual Instructional Minutes-Classroom Based Yes

FF. Charter School Facility Grant Program N/A, see below

The District does not offer an Early Retirement Incentive Program; therefore, we did not perform any testing
of the Early Retirement Incentive Program.

The District does not have any Juvenile Court Schools; therefore, we did not perform any testing of Juvenile
Court Schools.

The District does not have any Middle or Early College High Schools; therefore, we did not perform any
testing of Middle or Early College High Schools.

The District is not reported as a District of Choice per the California Department of Education, therefore we
did not perform any procedures related to District of Choice.

The District did not receive or expend California Clean Energy Jobs Act funds; therefore, we did not perform
any procedures related to California Clean Energy Jobs Act.

The District did not report any ADA related to Independent Study - Course Based; therefore, we did not
perform any testing of Independent Study - Course Based ADA.

The District does not have a Charter School Facility Program; therefore, we did not perform any testing of
Charter School Facility Program.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District's
responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District's responses were not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

(Continued)
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with compliance
requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as items 2023-005 and 2023-006 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the District's
response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The District’s response was not subjected to
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

P

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
February 27, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Sacramento City Unified School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Sacramento City Unified School District’'s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 27, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sacramento City Unified
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento
City Unified School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

(Continued)
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sacramento City Unified School District 's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Creue P

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
February 27, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
THE FIRST 5 SACRAMENTO COUNTY PROGRAM

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on Compliance on First 5 Sacramento County Program
Opinion on Compliance on First 5 Sacramento County Program

We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Program Guidelines for the First 5 Sacramento County Program that could
have a direct and material effect on the First 5 Sacramento County Program for the year ended June 30,
2023.

In our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its First 5
Sacramento County Program for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance on Sacramento City Unified School District's
First 5 Sacramento County Program based on our audit of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on First 5
Sacramento County Program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the District’'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for the compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its First 5 Sacramento County Program.

(Continued)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide will always detect material noncompliance when it
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with
the requirements of the government program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide,
we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

(Continued)
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing over compliance and

results of that testing based on requirements of the First 5 Sacramento County Program. Accordingly, this
report is not suitable of any other purposes.

Crene P

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
February 27, 2024
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Crowe Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Education
Sacramento City Unified School District
Sacramento, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District 's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Sacramento City Unified School District 's major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2023. Sacramento City Unified School District 's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Sacramento City Unified School District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sacramento
City Unified School District 's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Sacramento
City Unified School District ’s federal programs.

(Continued)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material nhoncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on Sacramento City Unified School District 's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report
on compliance about Sacramento City Unified School District 's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we,

e exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding Sacramento City Unified School District 's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

e obtain an understanding of Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control over compliance
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento City Unified School District
’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Croue P

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California
February 27, 2024
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements

noted? Yes X No
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

AL Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster Type of Opinion
COVID-19: Education Stabilization
84.425, 84.425C, 84.425F, 84.425U Fund (ESF) Programs Unmodified
84.027, 84.027A, 84.173, 84.173A Special Education Cluster Unmodified
93.600 Head Start Unmodified
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program Unmodified
10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

AL Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
COVID-19: Education Stabilization
84.425, 84.425C, 84.425F, 84.425U Fund (ESF) Programs
84.027, 84.027A, 84.173, 84.173A Special Education Cluster
93.600 Head Start
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program
10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A

and Type B programs: $3,000,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
STATE AWARDS
Type of auditor's' report issued on compliance for
state programs: Qualified
(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No matters were reported.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION Ill - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2023-001 DEFICIENCY — STATE COMPLIANCE — ATTENDANCE (10000)

Criteria: Education Code Section 41601. For purposes of this chapter, the governing board of each school
district shall report to the Superintendent during each fiscal year the average daily attendance of the school
district for all full school months during (1) the period between July 1 and December 31, inclusive, to be
known as the “first period” report for the first principal apportionment, and (2) the period between July 1 and
April 15, inclusive, to be known as the “second period” report for the second principal apportionment. Each
county superintendent of schools shall report the average daily attendance for the schools and classes
maintained by the county superintendent of schools and the average daily attendance for the county school
tuition fund. Each report shall be prepared in accordance with instructions on forms prescribed and
furnished by the Superintendent.

Condition: The District excluded Continuation Education ADA from the “B-6" line item in the “Other” section
of the District-wide Second Period Report for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2022-23 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding
described above.

Effect: The District is not in compliance with Education Code section 41601.

Cause: This was caused by a clerical error.

Fiscal impact: There is no calculated fiscal impact as total ADA is unchanged.

Recommendation: The District should ensure ADA is reported on the proper line items in the Second Period
Report.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The District has identified the error and made
the necessary correction by submitting a revised 2022-23 P-2 report to the California Department of
Education. The district has also restructured its attendance reporting process to allow for an additional layer
of review by the budget team.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

2023-002 DEFICIENCY — STATE COMPLIANCE - INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS (70000)

Criteria: Determine whether the school district governing board or county board of education, prior to
making a determination through a resolution as to the sufficiency of textbooks or other instructional
materials, held the public hearing or hearings required by Education Code section 60119 on or before the
end of the eighth week from the first day pupils attended school for that year, or, in a school district or COE
having schools that operate on a multitrack, year-round calendar, on or before the end of the eighth week
from the first day pupils attended school for that year on any track that began in August or September.

Condition: The District did not hold the required public hearing regarding instructional materials within the
first 8 weeks of school.

Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2022-23 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding
described above.

Effect: The District is out of compliance with state requirements.

Cause: The District’'s Governing Board did not make a determination as to the sufficiency of instructional
materials or textbooks within the 8-week time from the first day pupils attended school for that year.

Fiscal impact: There is no calculated fiscal impact.

Recommendation: The District should implement procedures to ensure a public hearing regarding
instructional materials is held within the first 8 weeks of school.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The district will ensure that the public hearing
is held within the first eight weeks of school in compliance with the Pupil Textbook and Instructional
Materials Incentive Act (Ed Code 60119). Furthermore, the District will ensure that the notice of public
hearing will be posted in at least three locations throughout the district for at least ten days prior to the
public hearing. In order to be compliant with these timelines, at the earliest possible date, all sites will be
provided with a textbook inventory list and surveyed for textbooks/instructional materials needs. Surplus
textbooks and instructional materials will be redistributed, additional textbooks and instructional materials
will be ordered and distributed to sites. All preparations for SCOE site visits will be completed and
communicated to sites. Insufficiencies will be remedied via collaboration between site and Library Textbook
Services. All of these actions will be completed well in advance of the public hearing, which will be within
the first 8 weeks of school.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

2023-003 DEFICIENCY — STATE COMPLIANCE — COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN
(40000)

Criteria: Each school should adopt its comprehensive school safety plan as described in Education Code
Section 32282 and reviewed and updated its plan by March 1 of the fiscal year.

Condition: 1 of the 14 comprehensive school safety plans inspected was reviewed and approved after
March 1, 2023.

Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2022-23 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding
described above.

Effect: The District is out of compliance with state requirements.

Cause: The District completed review of the school safety plan after the designated March 1, 2023 date.

Fiscal impact: There is no calculated fiscal impact.

Recommendation: The District should implement procedures to ensure they meet the deadlines set forth in
the State Audit Guide.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The District will continue to establish a
deadline for review of the comprehensive school safety plans before March. The District will continue to
establish a clear plan and process to reach timelines among District administration. Further, training forums
for new and transitioning principals and staff will be provided in addition to technical support including
increased notifications and updates for plans not submitted leading up to the deadline. We will pay
particular attention to those who have historically struggled to have plans completed on time. The District
will increase notifications and updates for plans that need to be edited leading up to the deadline.

(Continued)

102.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

2023-004 DEFICIENCY — STATE COMPLIANCE — IMMUNIZATIONS (40000)

Criteria: Verify that each pupil had two doses of a varicella vaccine and two doses of a measles vaccine as
required by Title 17, California Code of Regulations section 6025 prior to admission, or has a current
medical exemption from varicella and measles immunization on file. If the pupil had only one dose of either
vaccine prior to admission, verify the second dose was received within four calendar months after the first
dose.

Condition: Immunization records evidencing a second dose of varicella and measles vaccine were not
obtained for four students, however, the students were admitted and attendance was claimed for the
disallowed period.

Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2022-23 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding
described above.

Effect: The District is not in compliance with the Title 17, California Code of Regulations section 6025 due
to the inconsistency noted.

Cause: The District improperly admitted the student and claimed average daily attendance in the period in
which the second dose had not yet been received.

Fiscal impact: The impact of this error is a loss of 0.189 ADA in the Grade Span of K-3 for a total of $2,102.

Recommendation: This is a repeat finding. The District should ensure the Title 17, California Code of
Regulations section 6025 requirements are properly followed prior to admission.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The District has established deadlines for
immunization compliance, as well as a number of guides and reports to use in monitoring immunization,
that is communicated at the beginning of the school year to school sites and the centralized enroliment
center. The District also provides a free SCUSD Immunization Clinic for qualified students that runs before
school starts and on a bi-weekly basis throughout the school year. In addition to this resources, the District
Student Support and Health Services Department will provide a monthly report to each school site with the
list of students who are not compliant for immunizations. The reports will be accompanied by a list of action
steps to schools must take to ensure all students are compliant. To ensure accountability, the District
Student Support and Health Services Department will follow-up directly with school sites who do not take
action. The District will increase notifications and updates throughout the year to ensure new staff are up
to date on immunization resources and required action steps. In the summer months, the District will send
families personalized notices about missing immunizations.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

2023-005 MATERIAL WEAKNESS — STATE COMPLIANCE — AFTER AND BEFORE SCHOOL
EDUCATION AND SAFETY PROGRAM (40000)

Criteria: Attendance Accounting and Reporting in California Public Schools, Title 5, CCR, Section 401 and
421 (b) and Education Code Section 44809 - Each LEA must develop and maintain accurate and adequate
records to support the attendance reported to the State.

Condition: Of the 5 sites selected for testing for the After School Program, one site did not have the
supporting sign-in sheets for the reported attendance from 9/1/2023 to 9/23/2023.

Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2022-23 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding
described above.

Effect: The effect of this finding is an overstatement of 42 students served for the District's ASES program.
Cause: The District terminated service with the after school service provider at this site after September 23,
2023. Sign-in sheets supporting reported attendance were inadvertently misplaced by the prior service
provider and the District did not maintain copies.

Fiscal impact: There is no fiscal impact noted.

Recommendation: The District should implement procedures to ensure proper written records are
maintained at the District office as well as the service providers.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Systems have been planned, implemented,
and will be reassessed at the end of the academic year. This includes requiring that attendance is updated
daily, per contractual guidelines; student sign-in sheets will be provided by agency providers monthly; and
ongoing trainings will be provided during monthly professional development meetings. In addition, an exit
list has been established for providers when services are terminated. Prior to final payment the following
will be provided to the District: submitted student registration forms; attendance sign in sheets; completed
supper forms; incident reports; and behavior plans and contracts.

(Continued)
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

2023-006 MATERIAL WEAKNESS — STATE COMPLIANCE — TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN
(40000)

Criteria: Education Code Section 48000 paragraph (2) of subdivision (g) states that Commencing with the
2022-23 school year, maintain an average of at least one adult for every 12 pupils for transitional
kindergarten classrooms at each school site.

Condition: Hubert Bancroft Elementary School did not maintain an adult to pupil average ratio pursuant to
paragraph (2) of subdivision (g) of Education Code Section 48000.

Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2022-23 Guide for
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding
described above.

Effect: The District is out of compliance with state requirements.

Cause: The District did not maintain proper supporting documentation to provide evidence of an additional
adult presence to meet the adult to pupil average ratio for the site tested.

Fiscal impact: The school site had deficit of 0.79 adult-to-pupil ratio. The impact of this error is a total of
$53,261.

Recommendation: The District should implement procedures to ensure schools maintain the required adult
to pupil average ratio.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The District has developed a ratio monitoring
process to improve tracking of TK staff to student ratios and meet the required adult to pupil ratios.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

2022-001 DEFICIENCY - SEGREGATION OF DUTIES IN JOURNAL ENTRY PROCESSING (30000)

Condition: Three individuals in the Accounting Services department have the ability to prepare and post
journal entries into the financial system. This is a repeat finding of 2021-001.

Recommendation: We recommend that the District implement an internal control generating a log of journal
entries prepared and posted by the same individual and require an independent individual to review and
verify on a periodic basis.

Current Status: Implemented.

District Explanation if Not Implemented: Not applicable.

2022-002 DEFICIENCY - STATE COMPLIANCE -INSTRUCTIONAL TIME (40000)

Condition: In the Spring of 2021-2022 fiscal year, the District had a teacher strike in where 8 days of
instructional time were not provided. As a result of these lost instructional days, the District's total
instructional days fell below the requirement of 180 days at 172 days. Relatively, the number of instructional
minutes by grade level fell below the minimums instructional minutes required by Education Code 46207 .

EC 46207

Grade Statutory Actual

Level Requirement Minutes
Kindergarten 36,000 34,400
Grade 1 50,400 48,144
Grade 2 50,400 48,144
Grade 3 50,400 48,144
Grade 4 54,000 51,584
Grade 5 54,000 51,584
Grade 6 54,000 51,584
Grade 7 54,000 51,408
Grade 8 54,000 51,408
Grade 9 64,800 61,872
Grade 10 64,800 61,872
Grade 11 64,800 61,872
Grade 12 64,800 61,872

Recommendation: The District should ensure minimum number of days and minutes are met for the school
year.

Current Status: Implemented.

District Explanation if Not Implemented: Not Applicable.
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SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

2022-003 DEFICIENCY - STATE COMPLIANCE - IMMUNIZATIONS (40000)

Condition: Immunization records evidencing a second dose of varicella and measles vaccine were not
obtained for one student, however, the student was admitted and attendance was claimed for the disallowed
period.

Recommendation: The District should ensure the Title 17, California Code of Regulations section 6025
requirements are properly followed prior to admission.

Current Status: Not implemented.

District Explanation if Not Implemented: See current year finding 2023-004.

2022-004 DEFICIENCY - STATE COMPLIANCE —CHARTER SCHOOL ATTENDANCE (10000)

Condition: In the Spring of 2021-2022 fiscal year, the District’'s Charter Schools had a teacher strike in
where 8 days of instructional time were not provided. As a result of these lost instructional days, the Bowling
Green, George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science, and New Joseph Bonnheim Charter
Schools’ total instructional days fell below the requirement of 175 days at 172 days. New Technology High
Charter fell below the requirement of 175 days at 167 days.

Recommendation: The District should ensure minimum number of days and minutes are met for the school
year.

Current Status: Implemented.

District Explanation if Not Implemented: Not Applicable.

2022-005 DEFICIENCY — STATE COMPLIANCE —CHARTER SCHOOL ATTENDANCE (10000)

Condition: The District reported The Met Sacramento High School ADA as Classroom-Based ADA in the
Second Period Report and Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Met Sacramento High
School is a Nonclassroom-based program and the ADA should therefore, have been reported as
Nonclassroom-based ADA.

Recommendation: The District should ensure ADA is reported on the proper line items in the Second Period
Report as well as the Period Annual report.

Current Status: Implemented.

District Explanation if Not Implemented: Not Applicable.

(Continued)

107.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Year Ended June 30, 2023

2022-006 DEFICIENCY - STATE COMPLIANCE —CHARTER SCHOOL — ANNUAL INSTRUCTIONAL
MINUTES - CLASSROOM BASED (40000)

Condition: In the Spring of 2021-2022 fiscal year, the District’'s Charter Schools had a teacher strike in
where 8 days of instructional time were not provided. As a result of these lost instructional days, the Bowling
Green, George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science, and New Joseph Bonnheim Charter
Schools’ total instructional days fell below the requirement of 175 days at 172 days. New Technology High
Charter fell below the requirement of 175 days at 167 days. Relatively, the number of instructional minutes
by grade level fell below the minimums instructional minutes required by Education Code 47612.5.

EC 47612.5

Grade Statutory Actual
Level Requirement  Minutes
Kindergarten 36,000 34,400
Grade 1 50,400 48,144
Grade 2 50,400 48,144
Grade 3 50,400 48,144
Grade 4 54,000 51,584
Grade 5 54,000 51,584
Grade 6 54,000 51,584
Grade 9 64,800 61,872
Grade 10 64,800 61,872
Grade 11 64,800 61,872
Grade 12 64,800 61,872

Recommendation: The District should ensure minimum number of days and minutes are met for the school
year.

Current Status: Implemented.

District Explanation if Not Implemented: Not Applicable.
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Division: Business Services

Recommendation: Approve the 2023-24 Second Interim Financial Report with a Qualified
Certification.

Background/Rationale: Education Code Section 42130 requires school districts to prepare
Interim Financial Reports each year. The intent of these reports is to provide an "early warning"
system to indicate whether a district can meet its current or future year financial obligations. This
is the second of two interim financial reports presented to the Board of Education for the 2023-24
fiscal year. The report provides financial information as of January 31, 2024 and projections for
the remaining 2023-24 fiscal year and multi-year projections for 2024-25 and 2025-26 fiscal years.

Financial Considerations: The District is projected to satisfy the 2% required reserve for
economic uncertainties and maintain a positive cash flow for the current year and first subsequent
year. For the second subsequent year, the district is projected to have a negative fund balance.
The District projects an unrestricted deficit of ($46.4M) for 2023-24, ($51.5M) for 2024-25 and
($77.5M) in 2025-26. Additionally, the district projects an unrestricted fund balance of $89.3M for
2023-24, $37.8M for 2024-25, and ($39.7M) for 2025-26.

The District is projecting to be able to meet its financial obligations for the current and first second
subsequent year, however, it may not meet its financial obligations for the second subsequent
year; therefore, the District self certifies with a qualified certification.

LCAP Goal(s): Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence

Documents Attached:
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2. 2023-24 Second Interim Financial Report

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes
Submitted by: Janea Marking, Chief Business and Operations Officer
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Board of Education Executive Summary Sacramento

Business Services (Sjcl:l{) t[)Jlnll)iiisi(:ict
2023-24 Second Interim Financial Report
March 7, 2024

I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY

Interim financial reports provide information on district’s financial condition for the fiscal year
and two subsequent years. The Governing Board of a school district certifies the district’s
financial condition to the county office of education through these reports. The Second Interim
Report reflects actual financial activity for the period of July 1st through January 31, 2024 and
projects financial activity through June 30", 2024. The Second Interim Report contains
summarized and detailed budget information, multi-year projections, and estimated cash flow
reports. The State budget and budget guidelines provided by the California Department of
Education, Department of Finance, county offices of education, School Services of California,
and other professional organizations provide the guidance for districts to develop and modify
their budgets. This is the second of the interim financial reports presented to the Governing
Board for the 2023-24 fiscal year.

I1. Driving Governance

e Education Code Section 42130 requires school districts to prepare interim financial
reports each fiscal year. The requirement includes filing two interim financial reports.
The First Interim Report, as of October 31st, requires Board approval by December 15th.
The Second Interim Report, as of January 31st, requires Board approval by March 15th.
If the District is in qualified or negative status, a third financial report is required as of
April 30, and requires Board approval by June 1st. All reports required shall be in a
format or on forms prescribed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction.

e Education Code section 42131 requires the Board of Education to certify, in writing,
whether the district is able to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal
year and, based on current projections, for the subsequent two fiscal years. Certifications
shall be based on the Board’s assessment of the district budget. The certifications
provided with the first and second interim reports are classified as positive, qualified, or
negative. A “positive” certification indicates that the district will meet its financial
obligations for the current fiscal year as well as the two subsequent fiscal years. A
“qualified” certification means that the district may not meet its financial obligations for
the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years. A “negative” certification means
that the district is unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current
fiscal year or the future fiscal year. This education code section also outlines the role of
the County Office of Education.
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I11. Goals, Objectives and Major Initiatives

e Update budget and actual trend data within financial projections, follow the budget
timeline, and take action on all necessary budget adjustments.

e Use the Second Interim Financial Report to guide preparation for the 2023-24 Unaudited
Actuals

e Use the Second Interim Financial Report information to guide budget development for
FY 2024-25

e Continued analysis of information from the State and its impact on the District’s budget

V. Results
Budget development for 2024-25 will follow the calendar and timeline approved by the Board.
Required Board actions will take place in a timely manner to ensure an Adopted Budget is in

place on or before July 1, 2024.

V. Lessons Learned/Next Steps

e Follow the approved calendar with adjustments made as necessary.

e Continue to monitor the state budget and its impact on the district finances.

e Continue to engage stakeholders in the budget development process through community
budget meetings.

e Meet and communicate with bargaining unit partners.

e Ensure compliance with all LCFF and LCAP requirements.

2023-24 Second Interim Financial Report

School district budgets are not static, but instead are constantly being revised to respond to
decisions at the State and Federal levels, as well as to the expenditure needs of the district.
District staff closely monitor enrollment, average daily attendance, State and Federal revenue
and other areas that could impact the budget in the current or outlying years. The District’s 2023-
24 Second Interim financial report is budgeted assuming an 8.22% COLA for 2023-24, .76% for
2024-25, and 2.73% for 2025-26.

The Second Interim Financial Report includes assumptions and projections made with the best
information available for the reporting period, and the documents attached are primarily State-
required reports but also include District documents that provide additional related financial
details. Key information includes the budget assumptions, multi-year projections, and cash flow
reports.
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Local Control Funding Formula Factors

Illustrated below is a comparison of projected statutory COLAs for the budget year and two
subsequent years:

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
LCFF COLAs (23-24 Enacted Budget) 8.22% 3.94% 3.29%
LCFF COLAs (23-24 First Interim) 8.22% 3.94% 3.29%
LCFF COLAs (23-24 Second Interim) 8.22% 0.76% 2.73%

2024-25 Governor’s Proposed Budget Factors

Attendance Recovery & Instructional Continuity

The Governor’s Budget proposes to provide attendance recovery opportunities to classroom-based
students to make up for lost instructional time for school districts and classroom-based charter
schools. The proposal is made in order to help mitigate student learning loss relating to students
being absent and allow school districts and eligible charter schools to recapture Average Daily
Attendance (ADA) for students whose regular classroom-based program is temporarily
interrupted. Illustrated below are the primary components of the Governor’s proposal:

e The program may be initiated any time during the year and must have a signed agreement.

e The program is capped at 15 days per school year unless it is medically necessary, an
emergency situation exists, or the student experiences significant personal difficulties that
directly affect their ability to attend school (e.g., homelessness or family illness).

e The instructional content must be comparable to what a student would receive in their
regular classroom-based instructional program, but may be delivered remotely.

e ADA is capped at 15 days and is credited to a student in full-day increments once the
student has exceeded the minimum daily instructional minute requirement for their grade
span.

0 Attendance generated through these attendance recovery provisions could be used
to make up lost attendance for apportionment, as well as to reduce a local
educational agency’s chronic absenteeism rate.

o0 Attendance recovery may be offered before or after school, on weekends, or during
intersessional periods, and it must be credited to the school year in which the
attendance recovery program is operated.

0 Expanded Learning Opportunity Program funds may be used if substantially
equivalent to regular classroom-based instructional program.

e [For emergencies lasting longer than 5 days, LEAs would be required to offer remote
instruction, or support to enroll in a neighboring LEA
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Arts and Music Education Funding (Proposition 28)

On November 8, 2022, California voters approved Proposition 28: The Arts and Music in Schools
Funding Guarantee and Accountability Act. The measure requires the state to establish a new,
ongoing program supporting arts instruction in schools beginning in 2023-24. The amount of
funding available each fiscal year for the Arts and Music in Schools (AMS) program will be one
percent of the K-12 portion of the Proposition 98 funding guarantee provided in the prior fiscal
year, excluding funding appropriated for the AMS program. The funding for 2024-25 is expected
to decrease from $938 million in 2023-24 to $931 million in 2024-25, based on the reduction in
the overall size of the Proposition 98 guarantee. Illustrated below are the various reporting
requirements:
e School Site Expenditure Plan
e Board approved annual report that is posted on the district’s website and submitted to the
California Department of Education that contains staffing, pupil, and site information
relating to the program.
e Annual certifications and three-year expenditure reports

Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant (LREBG)

Per the 2023-24 enacted state budget, the LREBG was reduced by approximately 14%. Please
note that the estimated reduction was captured in the district’s 2022-23 unaudited actuals by
recording an estimated payable to the state. The difference between the estimated
reduction/payable and the actual reduction was accounted for in the First Interim. While the
legislature intends to restore $378.7 million beginning in the 2025-26 fiscal year through the 2027-
28 fiscal year, the district has not included those revenues in its multi-year projection. In addition,
the Governor’s 2024-25 Budget proposal includes new restrictions on unencumbered LREBG
funds as follows:
e Expenditures paid for with LREBG funds will need to be evidence-based as defined in
federal law
e Planned expenditures must be based on a formal needs assessment that identifies the
students most in need of learning recovery and targets services toward those students.
e Funds “not encumbered as of July 1, 2024, shall be included in the Local Control and
Accountability Plan for the period of July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2028.”

Other Proposed Governor’s Budget Components

Illustrated below is a summary of other major budget components contained in the enacted state
budget.
e Transitional kindergarten eligibility is expanded to all four-year-olds who turn five
from September 2 through June 2.
e Requiring schools to give students access to remote instruction or support to enroll
in a neighboring LEA for emergencies lasting five days or more.
e The budget includes $2.1 billion to:
o Maintain funding for the 118,000 subsidized childcare slots added since the
2021 Budget Act slot expansion plan was initiated
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o Fund 28,000 additional slots expected to be filled in 2024-25.

e No COLA is provided for the California State Preschool Program. Instead, the
budget maintains funding to implement the current memorandum of understanding
between the state and Childcare Providers United — California on rates paid to
preschool and child care providers. These rates will be renegotiated for 2024-25.

e The budget maintains $500 million in one-time funds for 2024-25 for green school
bus fleets.

e The budget includes $25 million ongoing, through the Mandate Block Grant, to help
train educators to administer literacy screenings.

e The budget proposes up to $35 million in revenues from new taxes on retail sales of
ammunition and firearms to be available in 2025-26 for professional development
to equip school staff with the tools needed to recognize and offer appropriate mental
health supports for students.

e The cap on special education local plan area administrative costs included in the
2024 Budget Act was one-time and is not proposed to be extended into 2024-25.

e The budget proposes a decrease of $500 million in planned support for the School
Facility Program, reducing the planned allocation in 2024-25 from $875 million to
$375 million.

e The budget proposes to delay to 2025-26 the $550 million that was planned for the
California Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten and Full-Day Kindergarten
Facilities Grant Program in 2024-25.

Routine Restricted Maintenance Account

Per Education Code Section 17070.75, school districts are required to deposit into the account a
minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent (3%) of the total General Fund
expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year. Illustrated below are the primary
compliance components:

e The 3% contribution is calculated on total General Fund expenditures, including other

financing uses (i.e. transfers out, debt issuances relating to the General Fund)

e The final 3% contribution is based on year-end actual data; therefore, while it is developed
based on budget, it must be trued up using actual expenditures
The actual contribution will be audited as part of the School Facility Program Bond Audit
Based on enacted bills from 2019-20 through 2021-22, total general fund expenditures for
RRMA purposes do not include STRS on-behalf (Resource 7690) expenditures, and one-
time funding sources to address COVID-19 challenges (Resources 3210, 3212, 3213,
3214, 3215, 3216, 3218, 3219, 3225-3228, 5316, 5632-5634 and 7027).

The District will update its Routine Restricted Maintenance Account contribution during its fiscal
year end closing process.
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Education Protection Account

Proposition 30 provides that a portion of K-14 general purpose funds must be utilized for
instructional purposes. Revenues generated from Proposition 30 are deposited into an account
called the Education Protection Account (EPA). The District receives funds from the EPA based
on its proportionate share of statewide general purpose funds. A corresponding reduction is
made to its state aid funds. Illustrated below is how the District’s EPA funds are appropriated for
2023-24. The amounts will be revised throughout the year based on information received from
the State.

Education Protection Account (EPA)
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

Estimated EPA Revenues:

Estimated EPA Funds $ 114,092,723
Estimated EPA Expenditures:

Certificated Instructional Salaries $114,092,723
Balance $ -

Planning Factors for 2023-24 and beyond include the following:

[llustrated in the following table are the latest factors from the 2023-24 Enacted Budget that
districts are expected to utilize as planning factors:

Planning Factor 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 | 2025-26
Dept of Finance Statutory COLA 6.56% | 8.22% | 0.76% | 2.73%
Additional LCFF Investment 6.70% N/A N/A N/A
STRS Employer Rates 19.10% | 19.10% | 19.10% | 19.10%
PERS Employer Rates 25.37% @ 26.68% @ 27.80% | 28.50%
SUI Employer Rates 0.50% | 0.05% 0.05% 0.05%
Lottery — Unrestricted per ADA $204 $177 $177 $177
Lottery — Prop. 20 per ADA $100 $72 $72 $72
Universal Transitional Kindergarten/ADA $2,813  $3,044 | $3,067 | $3,151

Mandate Block Grant for Districts: K-8 per ADA | $34.94 | $37.63 @ $38.10 | $39.14

’Ig\/lg’r&date Block Grant for Districts: 9-12 per $67.31  $72.49  $73.39 | $75.39
gﬂgz\date Block Grant for Charters: K-8 per $18.34  $19.76 @ $20.00 | $20.55
Mandate Block Grant for Charters: 9-12 per

ADA $50.98 = $54.91  $55.59 | $57.11
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Comparison of the 2023-24 Second Interim Report to the First Interim Report:

First Interim Budget Second Interim Budget . . .
202324 202324 Changes since 2023-24 First Interim Budget §
Unrestricted ~ Restricted ~ Combined Unrestricted ~ Restricted ~ Combined || Unrestricted  Restricted Combined

Revenue
General Purpose 500,312,508 2,478,216 | 502,790,724 | | 500,355,264 2,478,216 | 502,833,480 42,756 - 42,756 | 1
Federal Revenue - 141,267,968 | 141,267,968 - 148,230,947 | 148,230,947 - 6,962,979 6,962,979 | 2
State Revenue 12144270 | 111,594,017 | 123,738,287 12,144,270 | 115,349,693 | 127,493,963 - 3,755,676 3,755,676 | 3
Local Revenue 4,365,410 3,852,936 8,218,346 7,588,879 4,064,125 | 11,653,004 3,223,469 211,189 3,434,658 | 4
Total Revenue 516,822,188 | 259,193,137 | 776,015,325| | 520,088,413 | 270,122,981 | 790,211,395 3,266,225 10,929,844 | 14,196,069

Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 213,630,890 | 88,604,422 | 302,235,312 | | 218,797,664 | 91,290,982 | 310,088,646 5,166,774 2,686,560 7,853,334 | 5
Classified Salaries 51,334,360 | 38,920,725 | 90,255,085 52,646,090 | 36,636,048 | 89,282,138 1,311,730 (2,284,677) (972,947)| 6
Benefits 137,484,805 | 91,229,242 | 228,714,048 | | 139,273,776 | 88,493,691 | 227,767,467 1,788,971 (2,735,551) (946,581)| 7
Books and Supplies 8,706,896 | 50,939,113 | 59,646,009 8,116,981 | 46,803,994 | 54,920,975 (589,915) (4,135119)]  (4,725,034)| 8
Other Services & Oper. 9
Expenses 33,261,622 | 102,908,464 | 136,170,086 33,534,652 | 112,606,894 | 146,141,546 273,030 9,698,430 9,971,460
Capital Outlay 1527,015| 14,660,255 | 16,187,269 1547177 22,969,217 | 24,516,394 20,162 8,308,962 8,329,124 (10
Other Outgo 7300 1,510,300 - 1,510,300 1,510,300 - 1,510,300 - - - |1
Transfer of Indirect 73xx (8411792)] 7243324  (1,168,468) (8,610,122)  7,218308| (1,391,814) (198,330) (25,016) (223,346)| 12
Total Expenditures 439,044,097 | 394,505,544 | 833,549,641 | | 446,816,518 | 406,019,133 | 852,835,651 7,772,421 115513590 | 19,286,011
Deficit/Surplus 77,778,091 | (135,312,407)| (57,534,315) 73,271,895 | (135,896,152)| (62,624,257)||  (4,506,196)|  (583,745.46)|  (5,089,942)
Other Sources/(uses) - - - - - - - - -
Transfers in/(out) 2,475,399 - 2,475,399 2,368,261 - 2,368,261 (107,138) - (107,138)| 13
Contributions to Restricted | (122,013,844)] 122,013,844 - (122,013,844)| 122,013,844 0) 0) - 0)
Net increase (decrease) in
Fund Balance (41,760,354)[ (13,298,563)| (55,058,916)( | (46,373,688) (13,882,308) (60,255,996)(|  (4,613,334) (583,745)]  (5,197,080)
Beginning Balance 135,640,173 | 122,292561 | 257,932,734 | | 135640,173 | 122,292,561 | 257,932,735 0 0 1
Ending Balance 93,879,819 | 108,993,998 | 202,873,818 89,266,486 | 108,410,253 | 197,676,739 (4,613,334) (583,745)  (5,197,079)
Revolving/Stores/Prepaids 325,000 325,000 325,000 325,000
Reserve for Econ Uncertainty
(2%) 16,621,485 16,621,485 17,009,348 17,009,348 387,863 - 387,863
Restricted Programs - 108,993,998 | 108,993,998 - 108,410,253 | 108,410,253 - (583,745) (583,745)
Commitments 10,000,000 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) - (10,000,000)
Other Assignments - - 848,577 848,577 848,577 848,577
Unappropriated Fund [ [ [
Balance 66,933,334 - 66,933,334 71,083,561 - 71,083,561 4,150,226 (0)  4150,226

Unappropriated Percent 8.03% 8.33% 0.31%
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Changes from 2023-24 Second Interim Report to the First Interim Report

Notes: Explanation of Changes

1.LCFF Change based on updated unduplicated pupil count resulting in a slight increase in supplemental and
concentration grant funding.

2. Restricted Federal revenues increase of 56.9M due to budgeting of remaining ESSER carryover funds and additional
revenue received for Title IV funds.

3. Restricted State revenues increase of $3.75M due to budgeting of additional carryover and grant awards for the
California Community Schools Partnership Implementation grant, Partnership Academies Program, High Road
Training Partnership grant, and Teacher implementation and residency funds.

4. Unrestricted local revenues increase due to an increase in interest earned. Restricted local revenues increase due
to budgeting of local carryover funds.

5. Unrestricted certificated salaries increase due to settlement agreements reached with certificated and non
represented employee groups including one-time retroactive costs. Additional unrestricted adjustments include
recognizing estimated vacancy savings. Restricted certificated salaries increase due to settlement agreement
projected costs, increases in Expanded Learning Opportunities Program expenditures, and budgeting additional grant
awards.

6. Unrestricted classified salaries increase due to settlement agreements reached with classified and non represented
employee groups including one-time retroactive costs. Restricted classified salaries decrease due to budget
adjustments to ESSER funds and reductions to Special Education classified salaries.

7. Unrestricted and restricted benefits changes due to the adjustments described above and an adjustment to
recognize estimated benefits savings related to vacancies.

8. Unrestricted books and supplies decrease due to one-time savings in supplies. Restricted books and supplies
decreases due to adjustments to Title program budgets, reductions in special education materials and supplies, and
adjustments to budgeted expenditures under the Arts Music Instructional Materials grant.

9. Unrestricted services and operating expenses increase due to increases in legal costs and information technology
services. Restricted services and operating expenses adjustments due to increases in special education contracted
services, adjustments to the ELOG grant, and Title programs.

10. Unrestricted capital outlay increase due to the one-time purchase of equipment. Restricted capital outlay
adjustments include additional budgeting of ESSER funded capital outlay projects.

11. Other outgo remains constant.
12. Transfers of indirects adjustments based on programmatic changes described above.
13. Transfers in remain constant and transfers out increase due to an estimated contribution to the Adult Education
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2023-24 Sacramento City Unified School District Primary Budget Components

District enrollment is estimated at 36,879, or 36,762 excluding COE enrollment of 117.
Average Daily Attendance (ADA) is estimated at 33,928.45 or 33,821.04 excluding COE ADA
of 107.41. Due to the utilization of the 3 prior year average ADA as described in the State
Enacted budget, the projected funded ADA is 36,016.40 or 35,909 excluding county ADA for

2023-24.

The District’s unduplicated pupil percentage (UPP) for supplemental and concentration funding
is 70.40%. The UPP for supplemental and concentration funding is based on a three year rolling

average which is projected at 69.83%.

Enrollment & ADA Trend
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The District receives funding for its general operations from various sources. A summary of the

major funding sources is illustrated below:

COMBINED
DESCRIPTION UNRESTRICTED AMOUNT
General Purpose (LCFF) Revenue $500,355,264 $502,833,480
Federal $0 $148,230,947
State Revenue $12,144,270 $127,493,963
Local Revenue $7,588,879 $11,653,004
TOTAL $520,088,413 $790,211,395

Sacramento
City Unified
School District
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Total General Fund Revenue 2023-24 Second Interim
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General Fund Operating Expenditure Components

The General Fund is used for the majority of the functions within the District. As illustrated
below, salaries and benefits comprise approximately 91% of the District’s unrestricted budget,
and approximately 74% of the total General Fund budget.

DESCRIPTION UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED COMBINED
Certificated Salaries 218,797,664 91,290,982 $310,088,646
Classified Salaries 52,646,090 36,636,048 $89,282,138
Benefits 139,273,776 88,493,691 $227,767,467
Books and Supplies 8,116,981 46,803,994 $54,920,975
Other Services & Oper. 33,534,652 112,606,894 $146,141,546
Capital Outlay 1,547,177 22,969,217 $24,516,394
Other Outgo/Transfer 1,510,300 - $1,510,300
Transfers Out (2,368,261) - (2,368,261)

TOTAL 453,058,379 398,800,825 $851,859,204
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Graphical representation of total general fund expenditures by percentage:

Total General Fund Expenditures 2023-24 Second Interim
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General Fund Contributions to Restricted Programs

Contribution of unrestricted resources to restricted programs are necessary to cover restricted
program expenditures in excess of revenue. For the 2023-24 Second Interim budget, the
contribution to the Adult Education Fund below reflects the estimated increased salary and
benefit costs including one-time retroactive costs.

2023-24 First Interim | 2023-24 Second Interim
A Budget Budget
Special Education $103,520,644 $103,520,644
Routine Restricted Maintenance Account $18,493,200 $18,493,200
Total $122,013,844 $122,013,844
Other Eunds 2023-24 First Interim 2023-24 Second Interim
Budget Budget
Adult Education $0 $107,138

General Fund Summary

The District’s 2023-24 General Fund projects a total operating deficit of ($60.3) million resulting
in an estimated ending fund balance of $197.7 million. The components of the District’s fund
balance are as follows: revolving cash & other nonspendables - $325K; restricted programs -
$108M; committed — $0M; assigned — $850K; unassigned — $71M. economic uncertainty -
$17M; In accordance with SB 858 a detail description of assigned & unassigned balances is
illustrated in the following table.

2023-24 Second Interim Fund Balance Component Summary

L 2023-24 Second Interim Budget
Description - - -
Unrestricted Restricted Combined
TOTAL - NONSPENDABLE $325,000 $0 $325,000
RESTRICTED
Restricted Categorical Balances $108,410,253| $108,410,253
TOTAL - RESTRICTED $0| $108,410,253| $108,410,253
TOTAL - COMMITTED $0 $0
ASSIGNED
Estimated Cost of SCTA Agreement for 2023-24 Offset by
Reduction in OPEB contribution $848,577 $848,577
TOTAL - ASSIGNED $848,577 $0 $848,577
RESERVE FOR ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES
Economic Uncertainty (REU-2%) $17,009,348 $17,009,348
TOTAL - RESERVE FOR ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES $17,009,348 $0| $17,009,348
UNASSIGNED/UNAPPROPRIATED $71,083,561 $71,083,561
TOTAL - FUND BALANCE $89,266,486| $108,410,253| $197,676,739

The Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA) recommends a prudent reserve of 17%,
representing two months’ average payroll — for the District two months” average payroll is
approximately $104.5M.
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Multi-Year Revenue and Expenditure Projections

Unrestricted Multi-Year Revenue Projections:
Fiscal Year 2024-25

» LCFF COLA of .76%. Enrollment of 36,320 and funded ADA of 34,481

» Federal Revenues projected to remain constant.

> State revenues projected to increase due to estimated increase in transportation
reimbursement funding

> Local Revenue is projected to decrease due to the removal of one-time revenues received
in 2023-24

> Net increase in contributions to Special Education of $4.3M based off of historical trends,
increases in salaries and benefits related to settlement agreements, and one-time
adjustments for special education

Fiscal Year 2025-26

LCFF COLA of 2.73%. Enrollment of 36,136 and funded ADA of 33,644

Federal and State Revenues projected to remain constant

Local Revenue is projected to remain constant

Contributions to Special Ed were increased by approximately $9.8M for increased
Special Education expenditures per historical trends and increases in salaries and benefits
related to bargaining agreement settlements

VVVY

Restricted Multi-Year Revenue Projections:
Fiscal Year 2024-25

> Federal Revenue was reduced by $109M to remove carryover of $90.1M in ESSER
funds, $8.8M in Title programs, $1.8M in federal special education funds, and one time
FEMA revenue of $7.2M received in 23-24.

» State Revenue was reduced by $14.2M to remove carryover funds of $2M in In Person
Instruction/ELOG, $1.8M in ASES, $2M in UPK, $2.4 in Community Schools grant
funds, $3.1M in CTE, $660K in Learning Communities carryover, $544K in partnership
academies and $875K in teacher implementation and residency funds.

» Local Revenue was reduced by $2M to remove carryover and one-time funds

> Net increase of contributions to Special Ed of $4.3M based off of historical trends,
increases in salaries and benefits related to settlement agreements, and one-time
adjustments for special education

Fiscal Year 2025-26

> Federal and state revenue projected to remain constant.

> Local revenue projected to remain constant.

» Contributions to Special Ed were increased by approximately $9.8M for increased
Special Education expenditures per historical trends and increases in salaries and benefits
related to bargaining agreement settlements

Business Services 13



ay?

Board of Education Executive Summary Sacramento

Business Services (Sjcl:l{) t[)Jlnll)iiisi(:ict
2023-24 Second Interim Financial Report
March 7, 2024

Expenditure Assumptions:
Unrestricted Multi-Year Expenditure Projections:

Fiscal Year 2024-25

» Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year

» Other certificated salary adjustments include aligning FTE to enroliment decline, removal
of one-time retroactive settlement costs in 2023-24, adding back one-time vacancy
savings of $4.8M recognized in the 2023-24 First Interim report, additional salary and
benefit costs related to the bargaining agreement settlement for 2023-24 and 2025-26,
budgeting of ongoing vacancy savings, and the use of one-time restricted funding sources
to offset a portion of estimated unrestricted certificated cost increases.

> Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year.

» Other classified adjustments include the implementation of minimum wage of $20
effective 7/1/2024, the removal of one-time retroactive settlement costs realized in 2023-
24, and the use of one-time restricted funding sources to offset a portion of estimated
unrestricted classified cost increases.

» STRS contribution to remain flat and PERS contribution projected increase of 1.12%

» Adjustments to benefits include adding back one-time savings of $3.5M recognized in the
2023-24 First Interim report offset by the removal of $5.6M in one-time retroactive costs
realized in 2023-24 and an estimated healthcare cost increase of $5.4M. Other
adjustments include increased statutory benefits costs and a reduction of $3.5M of OPEB
contributions related to the bargaining settlement agreement for 2023-24 and 2024-25.
Additionally, one-time restricted funding sources were used to offset a portion of
estimated unrestricted benefits increases.

> Books and Supplies are projected to increase slightly to restore a $620K one-time
reduction in supplies as of the 2023-24 Second Interim report.

» Services have been decreased by $1.8M to account for the removal of one-time district
contract costs in 23-24.

> Capital outlay projected decrease of $1.46M to remove one-time bus purchase and safe
schools vehicle purchase.

» Transfers out remains constant.

> Indirect costs adjusted based on projected changes in restricted programs.

Fiscal Year 2025-26

> Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year.

» Other certificated salary adjustments include aligning FTE to enrollment decline and a
$2.7M increase related to one-time restricted funded expenses shifted to ongoing
unrestricted funds.

> Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year. Additional classified
adjustments include a $1M increase related to one-time restricted funded expenses shifted
to ongoing unrestricted funds.

» STRS to remain constant and PERS to increase from 27.8% to 28.50%.

Business Services 14
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Y

Adjustments to benefits reflect the effects of salary changes noted above, an increase of
$4.5M related to one-time restricted funded expenses shifted to ongoing unrestricted
funds and the projected increase in healthcare costs of $5.8M.

Books and Supplies remain constant.

Services remain constant.

Transfers out remain constant.

Indirect costs adjusted based on projected changes in restricted programs.

YV VY

Restricted Multi-Year Expenditure Projections:
Fiscal Year 2024-25

» Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year.

» Other certificated salary adjustments include removing one-time expenditures related to
carryover funds and a transition of ESSER funded positions to Learning Recovery
Emergency Block grant and FEMA funds for a one year extension. Additional
adjustments include the removal of one-time retroactive costs realized in 2023-24,
increases related to the bargaining agreement settlement for 2023-24 and 2024-25, and
the use of one-time funds to offset increases in unrestricted salaries and benefits costs.

> Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year.

» Other classified salary adjustments include a transition from ESSER funded positions to
the Learning Recovery Emergency Block grant and FEMA funds for a one year
extension. Additional adjustments include the removal of carryover funds and one-time
retroactive costs realized in the 23-24 year, the estimated cost of minimum wage of $20
effective 7/1/2024, and increases related to the bargaining agreement settlement for 2023-
24 and 2024-25. Other adjustments include the use of one-time funds to offset increases
in unrestricted salaries and benefit costs, and the use of one-time FEMA funds to offset a
portion of estimated increases in special education costs.

> Increase to benefits of $12.7M to reflect the effects of salary changes noted above,
projected increases in health benefits costs, the use of one-time FEMA funds to offset a
portion of estimated increases in special education costs, and the additional benefits cost
related to the bargaining agreement settlement for 2023-24 and 2024-25.

> Books and Supplies have been decreased by $33.1M to account for one-time
expenditures related to carryover funds including $4.2M in Title programs, $7.5M
ESSER funds, $2M Lottery, $1.4M UPK, $2.2M CTE, $1.8M in Arts Music Instructional
Materials grant, $1.1M in local carryover grants and a reduction of $3.8M to offset the
estimated increase in salaries and benefits related to bargaining agreements.

> Services have been reduced by $28M to account for one-time expenditures related to
carryover funds including ESSER, Title programs, federal special education, ASES, and
ELOP. Additional adjustments include $13.1M in Special Education contracted services
shifted to certificated, classified and benefits budgets and a reduction of $3.8M to offset
the estimated increase in salaries and benefits related to bargaining agreement
settlements.

> Capital outlay decreased by $21.2M for the removal of one-time carryover expenditures

for ESSER funds.
Business Services 15
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> Indirect costs are expected to decrease due to program adjustments
Fiscal Year 2025-26

» Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year

» Other certificated salary adjustments include the removal of $21.7M of one-time
Learning Recover Emergency Grant fund and FEMA expenditures and the removal of
one-time restricted funds used in 2024-25 to mitigate the unrestricted increase in salaries
and benefits. Additional adjustments include an estimated increase in Special Education
salary costs.

» Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year and adjustments have
been made for the removal of $8.7M in Learning Recovery Emergency grant
expenditures and the removal of one-time restricted funds used in 2024-25 to mitigate the
unrestricted increase in salaries and benefits. Additional adjustments include an estimated
increase in Special Education salary costs.

» Reduction to benefits of $16.5M reflect the effects of salary changes noted above,

program adjustments, and removal of LREBG Funds. Additional adjustments include an

estimated increase in Special Education benefits costs.

Materials and supplies increase of $109K for special education supplies.

Services have been increased by $3.3M due to additional special education services.

» Indirect costs are expected to increase due to the program adjustments above.

Y VY

Multi-Year Projections
Estimated Ending Fund Balances

The District estimates that the General Fund projected unrestricted deficit for 2023-24 is ($46.4)
million resulting in an unrestricted ending General Fund balance of $89.3 million. The projected
unrestricted deficit for 2024-25 is ($51.5) million resulting in an unrestricted ending General
Fund balance of $37.8 million. The projected unrestricted deficit for 2025-26 is ($77.5) million
resulting in an unrestricted General Fund balance of ($39.7) million.

Table of Unrestricted General Fund Ending Balance as of 2023-24 Second Interim

Description 2023-24 Second Projected Projected
P Interim Budget 2024-25 2025-26
Total Revenues 520,088,413 506,916,607 508,096,602
Total Expenditures 446,816,518 434,440,082 451,878,470

Other Sources/Uses

(119,645,583)

(123,931,044)

(133,757,448)

Net Increase/(Decrease)

(46,373,688)

(51,454,519)

(77,539,315)

Add: Beginning Fund Balance 135,640,173 89,266,486 37,811,966
Ending Fund Balance 89,266,486 37,811,966 (39,727,349)
Components of Ending Fund Balance 18,182,925 16,522,470 15,907,799

Unassigned/Unappropriated 71,083,561 21,289,496 (55,635,148)

Business Services
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Table of Combined Unrestricted and Restricted Ending Fund Balance
SesErETEn 2023-_24 Second Projected Projected
Interim Budget 2024-25 2025-26
Total Revenues 790,211,395 651,657,815 652,837,810
Total Expenditures 852,835,651 769,812,908 739,079,367
Net Increase/(Decrease) (60,255,996) (115,786,832) (83,873,296)
Beginning Fund Balance 257,932,735 197,676,739 81,889,907
Ending Fund Balance 197,676,739 81,889,907 (1,983,389)
Components of Ending Fund Balance 126,593,178 60,600,410 53,651,759
Nonspendable 325,000 325,000 325,000
Restricted 108,410,253 44,077,940 37,743,960
Assigned 848,577 848,577 848,577
2% REU 17,009,348 15,348,893 14,734,222
Unassigned/Unappropriated 71,083,561 21,289,496 (55,635,148)

Cash Flow

The 2023-24 Second Interim report and multi-year projections show that the District projects a
positive cash balance through June 2026, however cash balances continue to decline and the
district will continue to closely monitor cash flow in order to ensure the District has sufficient cash

reserves to satisfy its obligations.

2023-24 Second Interim Multi Year Cash Flow

400,000,000
375,000,000
350,000,000
325.000.000
300,000,000
275,000.000
250,000,000
225,000,000
200,000.000
175,000,000
150,000,000
125,000,000
100,000.000

75,000,000

50,000,000

25,000,000

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

BJuly ®August ®September ®October MNovember ®December MJanuary BFebruary ®March ®WApil ®May ®June

Business Services

17




ay?

Board of Education Executive Summary Sacramento
Business Services géh’;ﬁ"ﬁ?;‘:w t
2023-24 Second Interim Financial Report
March 7, 2024
2023-24 Second Interim Multi-Year Projections
Second Interim Budget Projection Projection
Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
Unrestricted ~ Restricted ~ Combined | Unrestricted  Restricted ~ Combined Unrestricted ~ Restricted ~ Combined
Revenue
General Purpose 500,355,264 2,478,216 502,833,480 | 486,482,344 2478216 488,960,560 487,662,339 2478216 490,140,555
Federal Revenue 148,230,947 148,230,947 - 39,039,779 39,039,779 - 39,039,779 39,039,779
State Revenue 12144270 115,349,693 127493963 | 16,034,263 101,127,408 117,161,671 16,034,263 101,127,408 117,161,671
Local Revenue 7,588,879 4,064,125 11,653,004 4,400,000 2,095,805 6,495,805 4,400,000 2,095,805 6,495,805
Total Revenue 520,088,413 270,122,981 790,211,395 | 506,916,607 144,741,208 651,657,815 508,096,602 144,741,208 652,837,810
Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 218,797,664 91,290,982 310,088,646 | 214917922 93315306 308,233,228 220,153,439 69,675,203 289,828,643
Classified Salaries 52,646,090 36,636,048 89,282,138 | 47,894,889 38,029,669 85,924,558 49268,708 28,199,674 77,468,382
Benefits 130,273,776 88,493,691 227,767,467 | 136,334,882 101,200,145 237,535,028 147474160 84687334 232,161,495
Books and Supplies 8,116,981 46,803,994 54,920,975 8736981 13706132 22443113 8,736,981 13,815,356 22,552,331
Eig‘:r:si:mes & Oper. 3565 112606804 146141546 | 31711263  B4STET0  116288052|  3L71L263  878TT0L5 119588278
Capital Outlay 1547177 22,969,217 24,516,394 86,235 1,768,330 1,854,565 86,235 1,768,330 1,854,565
Other Outgo 7xxx 1,510,300 1,510,300 1,510,300 - 1,510,300 1,510,300 - 1,510,300
Transfer of Indirect 73xx (8610122) 7218308  (1391814)  (67523%0) 5360576  (L39L814)  (7062617) 5670803  (1,2391814)
Budget Reductions - - - - (2,584123) (2,584,123 - (4492819)  (4492,819)
Total Expenditures 446,816,518 406,019,133 852,835,651 | 434,440,082 335,372,826 769,312,908 451878470 287,200,897 739,079,367
Deficit/Surplus 73271895 (135896,152) (62,624,257)| 72476525 (190,631,618) (118,155,094) 56,218,132  (142,459,689)  (86,241,557)
Other Sources/(uses) - - - - - -
Transfers in/(out) 2,368,261 2,368,261 2,368,261 2,368,261 2,368,261 2,368,261
Contributions to Restricted | (122,013,844) 122,013,844 (126,299,305) 126,299,305 (136,125700) 136,125,709
F'\:flg"éc;;f;(de”ease) " | 4e373688) (13862308) (60255.996) (5LASA519) (64332313) (11578683  (77539315)  (6333980)  (83873.296)
Beginning Balance 135,640,173 | 122,292561  257932,735| 89,266,486 108,410,253 197,676,739 37,811,966 44,077,940 81,889,907
Ending Balance 89,266,486 108410253 197,676,739 | 37,811,966 44,077,940 81,889,907 (39,727,349) 37,743,960 (1,983,389)
Revolving/Stores/Prepaids 325,000 325,000 325,000 325,000 325,000 325,000
Reserve for Econ Uncertainty| 17,009,348 17,009,348 | 15,348,893 15,348,893 14,734,222 14,734,222
Restricted Programs 108,410,253 108,410,253 - 44,077,940 44,077,940 - 377143960 37,743,960
Committed - - - - - -
Other Assignments 848,577 848,577 848,577 848,577 848,577 848,577
iﬂ;ﬂg"pmd Fund 71,083561 71083561 | 21,289,496 2120949 | (55,635,149) (55,635,148)
Unappropriated Percent 8.33% 2.17% -7.53%
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Summary of All Funds

Fund 2023-24 Beginning Budgeted 2023-24 Second Interim

Fund Balance Net Change Budget Ending Fund Balance
01|General (Unrestricted and Restricted) $257,932,735 ($60,255,996) $197,676,739
08 [Student Activity Fund $1,570,033 $0 $1,570,033
09|Charter Schools $15,520,269 ($3,486,807) $12,033,462
11| Adult $1,061,008 ($495,484) $565,524
12|Child Development $1,239,859 $859,760 $2,099,619
13|Cafeteria $18,388,342 ($2,532,041) $15,856,301
21|Building Fund $277,090,337 ($173,330,588) $103,759,750
25|Capital Facilities $26,933,108 ($454,254) $26,478,854
35|County School Facilities Fund $0 $0 $0
49 |Capital Projects for Blended Components $1,794,788 $791,739 $2,586,527
51(Bond Interest and Redemption $41,979,247 $649,823 $42,629,069
61|Cafeteria Enterprise Fund $25,047 $0 $25,047
67 |Self-Insurance Fund $12,328,878 ($1,330,171) $10,998,707

Conclusion

The District is projected to satisfy the 2% required reserve for economic uncertainties in 2023-24
and 2024-25, but projects a negative fund balance in 2025-26 as of the Second Interim report.
Additionally, cash flow projections indicate positive cash flow through June 2026 but are
projected to steadily decline and the District will continue to closer monitor cash flow. The
District projects an unrestricted deficit of ($46.4M) for 2023-24, ($51.5M) for 2024-25 and
($77.5M) in 2025-26. The primary changes since the District’s 2023-24 First Interim report are
the inclusion of costs related to bargaining agreement settlements reached since the First Interim
report that are retroactive to the 2022-23 fiscal year, the inclusion of the projected costs of the
certificated bargaining agreement reached for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 years, and a significant
reduction to LCFF funding in the 2024-25 and 2025-26 years. The Second Interim budget and
multiyear projections support that the District is projected to be able to meet its financial
obligations for the current and first subsequent year, but may be unable to meet its financial
obligations for the 2025-26 year; therefore, the District self certifies with a qualified

certification.
Risks:

Uncertainty regarding on-going State funding for K12 Districts, the potential future impact of a
recessionary economy including potential adjustments to funding rates, enrollment, and projected
deficit spending, decreases in fund balance, and declining cash flow.

Opportunities:

Improved State Budget and funding for K12 Districts, stable/increased enrollment, potential to
make up the instructional days lost during the 2021-22 school year through the State waiver
process, and continued District strategic planning to achieve a balanced budget.

Business Services
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Sacramento City Unified DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT Form CI
Sacramento County For the Fiscal Year 2023-24 E82GDNF 3X6(2023-24)

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the state-adopted Criteria and Standards. (Pursuant to Education Code (EC)
sections 33129 and 42130)

Signed: Date:

District Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special meeting of the gov erning board.

To the County Superintendent of Schools:

This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the governing board of the school district. (Pursuant to EC Section 42131)

Meeting Date: March 07, 2024 Signed:

President of the Gov erning Board

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

POSITIVE CERTIFICATION

As President of the Gov erning Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this district will meet its financial obligations
for the current fiscal y ear and subsequent two fiscal years.

X QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION

As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this district may not meet its financial
obligations for the current fiscal y ear or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION

As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this district will be unable to meet its financial
obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Name: Jesse Castillo Telephone: 916-526-7616

Title: Assistant Superintendent, Business Services E-mail: jesse-m-castillo@scusd.edu

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review form (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met,"
and supplemental information and additional fiscal indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification, and
should be carefully reviewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met Not Met
1 Average Daily Attendance Funded ADA for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than two X
percent since first interim.
CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met Not Met
2 Enroliment Projected enrolliment for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal y ears has not changed by more X
than two percent since first interim.
3 ADA to Enrollment Projected second period (P-2) ADA to enroliment ratio for the current and two subsequent fiscal years is X
consistent with historical ratios.
4 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal y ears has not changed by X
Revenue more than two percent since first interim.
5 Salaries and Benefits Projected ratio of total unrestricted salaries and benefits to total unrestricted general fund
expenditures has not changed by more than the standard for the current and two subsequent fiscal X
years.
6a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the current and two subsequent x
fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since first interim.
6b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and other expenditures) for the current X
and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more than five percent since first interim.
7 Ongoing and Major Maintenance If applicable, changes occurring since first interim meet the required contribution to the ongoing and X
Account major maintenance account (i.e., restricted maintenance account).
8 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard in any of the current or two x
subsequent fiscal y ears.
9a Fund Balance Projected general fund balance will be positive at the end of the current and two subsequent fiscal X
years.
9b Cash Balance Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year. X
10 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties, unassigned/unappropriated amounts) x
meet minimum requirements for the current and two subsequent fiscal y ears.
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes
S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation, state compliance X
reviews) occurred since first interim that may impact the budget?

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V8 Page 1 of 137
File: Cl_District, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 2/28/2024 11:19 AM
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Sacramento City Unified DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT Form CI
Sacramento County For the Fiscal Year 2023-24 E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
S2 Using One-time Revenues to Fund Are there ongoing general fund expenditures funded with one-time revenues that have changed since X

Ongoing Expenditures first interim by more than five percent?
S3 Temporary Interfund Borrowings Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds? X
S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal y ears contingent on
reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, X
forest reserves)?
S5 Contributions Hav e contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or transfers to or from the general fund
to cover operating deficits, changed since first interim by more than $20,000 and more than 5% for X
any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the district have long-term (multiy ear) commitments or debt agreements? X
. If yes, have annual pay ments for the current or two subsequent fiscal y ears increased over X
prior y ear's (2022-23) annual pay ment?
. If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to X
the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?
S7a Postemploy ment Benefits Other than Does the district provide postemploy ment benefits other than pensions (OPEB)? X
Pensions
. If yes, have there been changes since first interim in OPEB liabilities? X
S7b Other Self-insurance Benefits Does the district operate any self-insurance programs (e.g., workers' compensation)? X
. If yes, have there been changes since first interim in self-insurance liabilities? X
S8 Status of Labor Agreements As of second interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled for:
. Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X
. Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b)
. Management/superv isor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b)
S8 Labor Agreement Budget Revisions For negotiations settled since first interim, per Government Code Section 3547.5(c), are budget
revisions still needed to meet the costs of the collective bargaining agreement(s) for:
. Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 3) X
. Classified? (Section S8B, Line 3) n/a
S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the general fund projected to have a negative fund balance at the end of X
the current fiscal y ear?
ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the district will end the current fiscal y ear with a negative cash X
balance in the general fund?
A2 Independent Position Control Is personnel position control independent from the payroll sy stem? X
A3 Declining Enrolliment Is enroliment decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal y ears? X
A4 New Charter Schools Impacting Are any new charter schools operating in district boundaries that are impacting the district's X
District Enrollment enrollment, either in the prior or current fiscal y ear?
A5 Salary Increases Exceed COLA Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current or subsequent fiscal
years of the agreement would result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected X
state funded cost-of -living adjustment?
AB Uncapped Health Benefits Does the district provide uncapped (100% employ er paid) health benefits for current or retired X
employ ees?
A7 Independent Financial Sy stem Is the district’s financial sy stem independent from the county office sy stem? X
A8 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the district have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? If yes, provide copies to the COE, X
pursuant to EC 42127.6(a).
A9 Change of CBO or Superintendent Hav e there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business official (CBO) positions X
within the last 12 months?
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSI
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enroliment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiy ear

commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments).

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Funded average daily attendance (ADA) for any of the current fiscal y ear or two subsequent fiscal y ears has not changed by more than two percent since first interim
projections.

District's ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the District's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted into the first column, otherwise, enter data for all fiscal years. Second Interim Projected Y ear Totals data that exist for the current y ear will
be extracted; otherwise, enter data for all fiscal y ears. Enter district regular ADA and charter school ADA corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all fiscal y ears.

Estimated Funded ADA

First Interim Second Interim
Projected Y ear Totals Projected Y ear Totals
Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 1A) (Form Al, Lines A4 and C4) Percent Change Status
Current Year (2023-24)
District Regular 35,919.00 35,908.99
Charter School 0.00 0.00
Total ADA 35,919.00 35,908.99 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25)
District Regular 34,492.10 34,481.17
Charter School
Total ADA 34,492.10 34,481.17 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26)
District Regular 33,645.12 33,644.20
Charter School
Total ADA 33,645.12 33,644.20 0.0% Met
1B. Comparison of District ADA to the Standard
DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.
1a. STANDARD MET - Funded ADA has not changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
2. CRITERION: Enroliment

STANDARD: Projected enrollment for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal y ears has not changed by more than two percent since first interim projections

District's Enrollment Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the District's Enrollment Variances

DATA ENTRY : First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. Enter data in the second column for all fiscal years. Enter district regular
enroliment and charter school enrollment corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all fiscal y ears.

Enroliment
First Interim Second Interim
Fiscal Year (Form 01CSl, Item 2A) CBEDS/Projected Percent Change Status
Current Year (2023-24)
District Regular 36,765.00 36,762.00
Charter School
Total Enrollment 36,765.00 36,762.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25)
District Regular 36,320.00 36,320.00
Charter School
Total Enroliment 36,320.00 36,320.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26)
District Regular 36,135.00 36,135.00
Charter School
Total Enroliment 36,135.00 36,135.00 0.0% Met
2B. Comparison of District Enrollment to the Standard
DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.
1a. STANDARD MET - Enrollment projections have not changed since first interim projections by more than two percent for the current y ear and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
3. CRITERION: ADA to Enroliment

STANDARD: Projected second period (P-2) average daily attendance (ADA) to enrollment ratio for any of the current fiscal y ear or two subsequent fiscal y ears has not increased from the
historical average ratio from the three prior fiscal y ears by more than one half of one percent (0.5%).

3A. Calculating the District's ADA to Enrollment Standard

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist will be extracted into the P-2 ADA column for the First Prior Y ear; otherwise, enter First Prior Year data. P-2 ADA for the second and third prior y ears
are preloaded. First Interim data that exist will be extracted into the Enrollment column; otherwise, enter Enroliment data for all fiscal y ears. Data should reflect district regular and charter school
ADA/enrollment corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all fiscal years.

P-2 ADA Enrollment
Unaudited Actuals CBEDS Actual Historical Ratio
Fiscal Year (Form A, Lines A4 and C4) f::e?;msg; csl, of ADA to Enrollment
Third Prior Year (2020-21)
District Regular 38,220 39,003
Charter School
Total ADA/Enrollment 38,220 39,003 98.0%
Second Prior Year (2021-22)
District Regular 32,673 38,045
Charter School
Total ADA/Enroliment 32,673 38,045 85.9%
First Prior Y ear (2022-23)
District Regular 33,727 37,289
Charter School
Total ADA/Enroliment 33,727 37,289 90.4%
Historical Average Ratio: 91.4%
District's ADA to Enroliment Standard (historical average ratio plus 0.5%): 91.9%

3B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of ADA to Enrollment

DATA ENTRY: Estimated P-2 ADA will be extracted into the first column for the Current Y ear; enter data in the first column for the subsequent fiscal y ears. Data should reflect district regular and
charter school ADA/enrollment corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all fiscal years. All other data are extracted.

Estimated P-2 ADA Enrollment
CBEDS/Projected
Fiscal Year (Form Al, Lines A4 and C4) (Criterion 2, Item 2A) Ratio of ADA to Enroliment Status
Current Year (2023-24)
District Regular 33,821 36,762
Charter School 0
Total ADA/Enrollment 33,821 36,762 92.0% Not Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25)
District Regular 33,414 36,320
Charter School
Total ADA/Enrollment 33,414 36,320 92.0% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26)
District Regular 33,244 36,135
Charter School
Total ADA/Enrollment 33,244 36,135 92.0% Not Met
3C. Comparison of District ADA to Enroliment Ratio to the Standard
DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.
1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected P-2 ADA to enrollment ratio exceeds the standard in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons why the projected ratio
exceeds the district's historical average ratio by more than 0.5%.
Explanation: ADA is projected to increase as the district returns to pre-pandemic attendance trends.

(required if NOT met)
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSlI
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
4. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD: Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal y ears has not changed by more than two percent since first interim projections.

District's LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

4A. Calculating the District's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Y ear data are extracted; enter data for the two
subsequent years.

LCFF Revenue
(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)

First Interim Second Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CSI, Item 4A) Projected Y ear Totals Percent Change Status
Current Y ear (2023-24) 514,694,369.00 514,737,125.00 0.0% Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 501,672,557.00 486,482,344.00 (3.0%) Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2025-26) 505,297,188.00 487,662,339.00 (3.5%) Not Met
4B. Comparison of District LCFF Revenue to the Standard
DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected LCFF revenue has changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide

reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue.

xplanation: e -25 an -26 y ears have decreased from first interim based on the revise s of . o for -25 and 2. o for -
Expl ti The 2024-25 and 2025-26 h: d d f first based h d COLAs of .76% for 2024-25 and 2.73% for 2025
(required if NOT met) 26 per the Gov ernor's 2024-25 Budget proposal.
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSlI
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

5. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected ratio of total unrestricted salaries and benefits to total unrestricted general fund expenditures for any of the current fiscal y ear or two subsequent fiscal years has
not changed from the historical average ratio from the three prior fiscal y ears by more than the greater of three percent or the district's required reserves percentage.

5A. Calculating the District's Historical Average Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist for the First Prior Year will be extracted; otherwise, enter data for the First Prior Y ear. Unaudited Actuals data for the second and third prior y ears are
preloaded.

Unaudited Actuals - Unrestricted

(Resources 0000-1999) Ratio
Salaries and Benefits Total Expenditures of Unrestricted §a|arles and
Benefits
Fiscal Year (Form 01, Objects 1000- (Form 01, Objects 1000- to Total Unrestricted
3999) 7499) Expenditures
Third Prior Y ear (2020-21) 301,601,587.00 327,117,964.02 92.2%
Second Prior Y ear (2021-22) 330,431,834.82 355,668,555.40 92.9%
First Prior Year (2022-23) 0.0%
Historical Average Ratio: 61.7%
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Y ear
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
District's Reserve Standard Percentage
2% 2% 2%
(Criterion 10B, Line 4)
District's Salaries and Benefits Standard
(historical average ratio, plus/minus the
58.7% to 64.7% 58.7% to 64.7% 58.7% to 64.7%

greater of 3% or the district's reserve

standard percentage):

5B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: If Form MY PI exists, Projected Year Totals data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter Projected Y ear Totals data. Projected Y ear Totals data for Current Year
are extracted.

Projected Year Totals - Unrestricted

(Resources 0000-1999)

Salaries and Benefits Total Expenditures Ratio
(Form 011, Objects 1000- (Form 011, Objects 1000- of Unrestricted Salaries and
3999) 7499) Benefits
Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B8, to Total Unrestncted Status
B10) Expenditures

Current Year (2023-24) 410,717,530.27 446,816,518.04 91.9% Not Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 399,147,693.02 434,440,082.02 91.9% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 416,896,307.02 451,878,469.02 92.3% Not Met
5C. Comparison of District Salaries and Benefits Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ratio of unrestricted salary and benefit costs to total unrestricted expenditures has changed by more than the standard in any of the current year or two

subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benefits.

Explanation: The district projects an increase in the ratio of unrestricted salaries and benefits to total unrestricted expenditures due to bargaining
. . settlement agreements reached with all labor partners retroactive to the 2022-23 y ear as well as a bargaining agreement settlement reached
(required if NOT met) with its largest certificated labor partner for the 23-24 and 2024-25 y ears.
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSI
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
6. CRITERION: Other R and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services and other operating), for any of the
current fiscal y ear or two subsequent fiscal y ears, have not changed by more than five percent since first interim projections. Changes that exceed five percent in any major object
category must be explained.

District's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

District's Other R and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

6A. Calculating the District's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. Second Interim data for the Current Year are extracted. If Second Interim Form MY Pl exists,
data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column. Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for
any year exceeds the district's explanation percentage range.

First Interim Second Interim
Projected Y ear Totals Projected Y ear Totals Change Is Outside
Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSlI, Item 6A) (Fund 01) (Form MY PI) Percent Change Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (Form MYPI, Line A2)

Current Y ear (2023-24) 141,267,968.04 148,230,947.19 4.9% No

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 39,116,752.00 39,039,779.00 -2% No

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 39,116,752.00 39,039,779.00 -2% No
Explanation:

(required if Yes)

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)

Current Year (2023-24) 123,738,287.12 127,493,963.09 3.0% No

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 115,293,761.00 117,161,671.00 1.6% No

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 115,293,461.00 117,161,671.00 1.6% No
Explanation:

(required if Yes)

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)

Current Y ear (2023-24) 8,218,346.29 11,653,004.34 41.8% Yes

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 6,673,728.00 6,495,805.00 -2.7% No

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 6,673,728.00 6,495,805.00 -2.7% No
Explanation: The current y ear increase in local revenue is due to an increase in interest revenue earned abov e initial projections.

(required if Yes)

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)

Current Year (2023-24) 59,646,009.09 54,920,975.13 -7.9% Yes
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 26,028,139.00 22,443,113.00 -13.8% Yes
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 21,168,307.60 22,552,337.00 6.5% Yes
Explanation: Adjustments in the current and 1st subsequent y ear are due to reducing books and supplies budgets in order to offset a portion of the
o projected increase in salaries and benefits costs related to bargaining agreements. Additional adjustments include the removal of a one-
(required if Yes) time textbook adoption in the 2024-25 y ear.

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)

Current Year (2023-24) 136,170,085.69 146,141,545.51 7.3% Yes

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 116,760,639.00 116,288,053.00 -.4% No

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 119,680,989.31 119,588,278.00 -1% No
Explanation: Adjustments in the 2023-24 y ear are primarily due to increases in special education contracted services and budgeting of additional

(required if Yes) carryover funds in restricted programs.
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6B. Calculating the District's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures

DATA ENTRY:: All data are extracted or calculated.

First Interim

Second Interim

Object Range / Fiscal Year Projected Y ear Totals Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status
Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenue (Section 6A)

Current Y ear (2023-24) 273,224,601.45 287,377,914.62 5.2% Not Met

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 161,084,241.00 162,697,255.00 1.0% Met

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 161,083,941.00 162,697,255.00 1.0% Met
Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 6A)

Current Year (2023-24) 195,816,094.78 201,062,520.64 2.7% Met

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 142,788,778.00 138,731,166.00 -2.8% Met

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 140,849,296.91 142,140,615.00 9% Met

6C. Comparison of District Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 6A if the status in Section 6B is Not Met; no entry is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - One or more projected operating revenue have changed since first interim projections by more than the standard in one or more of the current year or two

subsequent fiscal y ears. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, will be made to bring the
projected operating rev enues within the standard must be entered in Section 6A abov e and will also display in the explanation box below.

Explanation:
Federal Revenue
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other State Revenue
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other Local Revenue
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

1b. STANDARD MET - Projected total operating expenditures have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current y ear and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
Books and Supplies
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Services and Other Exps
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
7. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since first interim projections in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as required pursuant to Education Code
Section 17070.75, or in how the district is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities for their normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52060(d)(1) and
17002(d)(1).

Determining the District's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the district to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total general fund expenditures and other financing
uses for that fiscal y ear. Statute exclude the following resource codes from the total general fund expenditures calculation: 3212, 3213, 3214, 3216, 3218, 3219, 3225, 3226, 3227, 3228,
5316, 5632, 5633, 5634, 7027, and 7690.

DATA ENTRY: Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if First Interim data does not exist. First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim data into lines 1, if applicable,
and 2. All other data are extracted.

Second Interim Contribution

Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,
Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status
. 18,493,200.00 Met
1. OMMA/RMA Contribution 18,493,189.22
2. First Interim Contribution (information only) 18,493,200.00

(Form 01CSlI, First Interim, Criterion 7, Line 1)

If status is not met, enter an Xin the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made:

Not applicable (district does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998)

Exempt (due to district's small size [EC Section 17070.75 (b)(2)(E)])

X Other (explanation must be provided)

Explanation: The district will calculate its updated routine restricted maintenance contribution during the y ear end close process.
(required if NOT met
and Other is marked)
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Sacramento City Unified
School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Sacramento County

8. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and other financing sources) as a percentage
of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the district's available reserves® as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses?
in any of the current fiscal y ear or two subsequent fiscal years.

'Av ailable reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund and
the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

2A school district that is the Administrative Unit of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

8A. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY:: All data are extracted or calculated.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
- : - . 10.3% 4.8% -5.5%
District's Available Reserve Percentages (Criterion 10C, Line 9)
District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels
3.4% 1.6% -1.8%
(one-third of available reserve percentage):

8B. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MY Pl exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and second
columns.

Projected Y ear Totals

Total Unrestricted

Net Change in Expenditures
Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses Deficit Spending Level

(Form 011, Objects 1000- (If Net Change in

(Form 011, Section E) 7999) Unrestricted Fund

Balance is negative, else

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) N/A) Status
Current Y ear (2023-24) (46,373,687.92) 446,923,655.83 10.4% Not Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) (51,454,518.81) 434,547,219.81 11.8% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) (77,539,314.81) 451,985,606.81 17.2% Not Met

8C. Comparison of District Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Unrestricted deficit spending has exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal y ears. Provide reasons for the
deficit spending, a description of the methods and assumptions used in balancing the unrestricted budget, and what changes will be made to ensure that the budget deficits are eliminated

or are balanced within the standard.

Explanation: The district projects unrestricted deficit spending outside the standard range due to bargaining agreement settlements reached with all labor
(required if NOT met) partners retroactive to 2022-23 and settlements reached with its largest certificated labor partner for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 y ears.
Additionally, the projected decrease in the COLA funding rate has led to a decrease in fund balance in the 2024-25 and 2025-26 y ears
compared to the First Interim report.
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Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
9. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general fund balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal y ear and two subsequent fiscal years.

9A-1. Determining if the District's General Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MY PI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years.

Ending Fund Balance
General Fund

Projected Y ear Totals

Fiscal Year (Form 011, Line F2 ) (Form MYPI, Line D2) Status
Current Year (2023-24) 197,676,739.02 Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 81,889,907.54 Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) (1,983,386.94) Not Met

9A-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - General fund ending balance is projected to be negative for any of the current fiscal y ear or two subsequent fiscal y ears. Provide reasons for the negative fund
balance(s), a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting the ending fund balance, and what changes will be made to ensure the ending fund balance is positive.

Explanation: Due to the changes in expenditures and revenues noted above, the District projects a negative ending fund balance in the 2025-26 y ear.
The methods and assumptions include the funding rates prescribed by Governor's Budget Proposal and expenditure assumptions include
adjustments based on historical trends and projected increases in salaries and benefits related to bargaining agreement settlements. The

(required if NOT met) District is continuing to strategically plan on adjustments necessary to ensure the ending fund balance is positive.

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

9B-1. Determining if the District's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below.
Ending Cash Balance
General Fund

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status

Current Year (2023-24) 242,705,508.00 Met

9B-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)
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10. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves’ for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal y ears are not less than the following percentages or amounts? as applied to total expenditures
and other financing uses®:

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, 1st and 2nd Subsequent Y ear data will be extracted. If not, enter district regular ADA and charter school ADA
corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for the two subsequent years.

Percentage Level District ADA
5% or $80,000 (greater of ) 0 to 300
4% or $80,000 (greater of ) 301 to 1,000
3% 1,001 to 30,000
2% 30,001 to 400,000
1% 400,001 and over

* Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserve
for Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund
and Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be
reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

2 Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior y ear statutory cost-of-living adjustment
(Education Code Section 42238), rounded to the nearest thousand.

* A school district that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating

members.
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
o . : 33,821.04
District Estimated P-2 ADA (Current Year, Form Al, Lines A4 and C4. 33,414.40 33,244.20
Subsequent Years, Form MYPI, Line F2, if available.)
District's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 2% 2% 2%

10A. Calculating the District's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for districts that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MY PI exists, all data will be extracted including the Y es/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes, enter data for
item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Current Y ear data are extracted.

For districts that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):

1. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? Yes

2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds:

a. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

Current Year
Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)

b. Special Education Pass-through Funds
(Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, 0.00
objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223)

10B. Calculating the District's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year

Projected Ist
) Subsequent 2nd Subsequent Year
Y ear Totals
Year
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Form 011, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 852,942,789.19 769,920,045.48 739,186,503.48
2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through
(Criterion 10A, Line 2b, if Criterion 10A, Line 1 is No)
3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Line B1 plus Line B2) 852,942,789.19 769,920,045.48 739,186,503.48
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Sacramento City Unified
Sacramento County
4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level
5. Reserve Standard - by Percent
(Line B3 times Line B4)
6. Reserve Standard - by Amount
($80,000 for districts with 0 to 1,000 ADA, else 0)
7. District's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line B5 or Line B6)

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V8
File: CSI_District, Version 5

Second Interim
General Fund

School District Criteria and Standards Review

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

2% 2% 2%
17,058,855.78 15,398,400.91 14,783,730.07
0.00 0.00 0.00
17,058,855.78 15,398,400.91 14,783,730.07
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Sacramento City Unified

Sacramento County

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

10C. Calculating the District's Available Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY : All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years.

Reserve Amounts

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except Line 4)

1.

General Fund - Stabilization Arrangements
(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a)
General Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties
(Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b)
General Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount
(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c)
General Fund - Negative Ending Balances in Restricted Resources
(Fund 01, Object 979Z, if negative, for each of resources 2000-9999) (Form MY PI, Line E1d)
Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements
(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a)
Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties
(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MY PI, Line E2b)
Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount
(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MY P, Line E2c)
District's Available Reserve Amount
(Lines C1 thru C7)
District's Available Reserve Percentage (Information only)
(Line 8 divided by Section 10B, Line 3)
District's Reserve Standard
(Section 10B, Line 7):
Status:

Current Year
Projected Year Totals

(2023-24)

1st Subsequent Year

(2024-25)

2nd Subsequent Year
(2025-26)

0.00

17,009,348.00

15,348,893.00

14,734,222.00

71,083,560.56

21,289,496.75

(565,635,147.06)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

88,092,908.56

36,638,389.75

(40,900,925.06)

10.33%

4.76%

-5.53%

17,058,855.78

15,398,400.91

14,783,730.07

Met

Met

Not Met

10D. Comparison of District Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a.

STANDARD NOT MET - Available reserves are below the standard in one or more of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons for reserves falling below the
standard and what plans and actions are anticipated to increase reserves to, or above, the standard.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)

The district projects a negative ending fund balance for the 2025-26 fiscal y ear due to a decrease in projected LCFF revenue in 2024-25
and 2025-26 as well as due to estimated costs related to bargaining agreement settlements reached since First Interim. The District
continues to strategically plan on actions necessary to increase reserves to, or above, the standard.
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Second Interim

Sacramento City Unified General Fund
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY : Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer.

S1.

S2.

S3.

S4.

Contingent Liabilities

Does your district have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation,

state compliance reviews) that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the budget?

If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget:

No

Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

Does your district have ongoing general fund expenditures funded with one-time revenues that have

changed since first interim projections by more than five percent?

If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal y ears:

Yes

Second Interim Report.

The District projects utilizing av ailable one-time restricted funding sources in the 2024-25 and 2025-26 y ears to offset projected increases in
salaries and benefits costs related to recent bargaining agreement settlements and historical trends. The district anticipates that once these
one-time sources are depleted, the costs will shift to the unrestricted general fund. These assumptions are included within the 2023-24

Temporary Interfund Borrowings

Does your district have projected temporary borrowings between funds?

(Refer to Education Code Section 42603)

If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings:

No

Contingent Revenues

Does your district have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the two subsequent fiscal years
contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act

(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)?

If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the rev enues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

No
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Sacramento City Unified
Sacramento County

85. Contributions

Second Interim
General Fund

School District Criteria and Standards Review

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the general fund to restricted resources in the general fund for the current fiscal y ear and two subsequent fiscal years.
Provide an explanation if contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify projected transfers to or from the general fund to cover operating deficits in either the general fund or any other fund for the current fiscal y ear and two subsequent fiscal y ears.
Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the general fund budget.

District's Contributions and Transfers Standard:

-5.0% to +5.0% or -$20,000
to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the General Fund

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the Second Interim's Current Y ear data will be extracted. Enter Second
Interim Contributions for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the Second Interim's Current Y ear data will be extracted. If Form MY Pl exists, the data will be
extracted into the Second Interim column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MY PI does not exist, enter data for 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the appropriate button for Item

1d; all other data will be calculated.

First Interim Second Interim Percent
Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSl, Item S5A) Projected Y ear Totals Change Agﬁ::;:f Status
1a. Contributions, Unrestricted General Fund
(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)
Current Year (2023-24) (122,013,844.32) (122,013,844.32) 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) (123,845,132.00) (126,299,305.00) 2.0% 2,454,173.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) (133,142,899.00) (136,125,709.00) 2.2% 2,982,810.00 Met
1b. Transfers In, General Fund *
Current Y ear (2023-24) 2,475,399.00 2,475,399.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 2,475,399.00 2,475,399.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 2,475,399.00 2,475,399.00 0.0% 0.00 Met
1c. Transfers Out, General Fund *
Current Y ear (2023-24) 0.00 107,137.79 New 107,137.79 Not Met
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 0.00 107,137.79 New 107,137.79 Not Met
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 0.00 107,137.79 New 107,137.79 Not Met
1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns
Hav e capital project cost overruns occurred since first interim projections that may impact the general fund No
operational budget?
* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the general fund or any other fund.
S5B. Status of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects
DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for Item 1d.
1a. MET - Projected contributions have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current y ear and two subsequent fiscal years.
Explanation:
(required if NOT met)
1b. MET - Projected transfers in have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current y ear and two subsequent fiscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if NOT met)
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSI
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
1c. NOT MET - The projected transfers out of the general fund have changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for any of the current year or subsequent two fiscal

years. Identify the amounts transferred, by fund, and whether transfers are ongoing or one-time in nature. If ongoing, explain the district's plan, with timeframes, for reducing or
eliminating the transfers.

Explanation: Contributions out of the general fund have increased due to the estimated contribution required for the Adult Education Fund as a result of
(required if NOT met) increased salary and benefit costs related to bargaining agreement settlements.
1d. NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since first interim projections that may impact the general fund operational budget.

Project Information:
(required if YES)
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Sacramento City Unified
Sacramento County

S6. Long-term Commitments

Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Identify all existing and new multiy ear commitments® and their annual required pay ment for the current fiscal y ear and two subsequent fiscal y ears. Explain how any increase in annual

pay ments will be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced.

* Include multiy ear commitments, multiy ear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the District's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY:: If First Interim data exist (Form 01CSI, Item S6A), long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate button for Item 1b. Extracted data
may be overwritten to update long-term commitment data in Item 2, as applicable. If no First Interim data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1a and 1b, and enter all other data, as

applicable.
1. a. Does your district hav e long-term (multiy ear) commitments?
(If No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes
b. If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiy ear) commitments been incurred
since first interim projections? No
2. If Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiy ear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemploy ment

benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7A.

# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance
Ty pe of Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) as of July 1, 2023-24
Capital Leases
Certificates of Participation
P Fund 51 - Bond Interest and Redemption .
General Obligation Bonds
igati 27 Fund Object 7438, 7439 451,272,966
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences Fund 01, 09, 11, 13, 21, 67, 68 Object Code 1-3999 6,972,199
Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):
Fund 25 Dev eloper Fees, Fund 49 Mello .
Ls R Bond
ease Revenue Bonds 18 RooS Object 7438, 7439 52,060,000
TOTAL: 510,305,166

Type of Commitment (continued)

Prior Y ear Current Year

(2022-23) (2023-24)
Annual Pay ment

P&l P&l

Annual Pay ment

1st Subsequent Year
(2024-25)
Annual Pay ment
(P&l)

2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26)

Annual Pay ment

P&l

Capital Leases

Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds

Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans

Compensated Absences

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Lease Revenue Bonds

49,025,173

38,111,178

38,801,801

37,249,550

5,467,974

5,466,294

5,462,364

5,486,298
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Second Interim

34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSI
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
Total Annual 54,493,147 43,577,472 44,264,165 42,735,848
Pay ments:
Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2022-23)? No No No
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

S6B. Comparison of the District's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes.

1a. No - Annual pay ments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(Required if Yes
to increase in total

annual pay ments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?
No
2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment.
Explanation:

(Required if Yes)
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Second Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund

Sacramento County

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

School District Criteria and Standards Review

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since first interim projections, and indicate whether the changes are the result of a new actuarial v aluation.

S7A. Identification of the District's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY : Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and Second Interim

data in items 2-4.

1 a. Does your district provide postemploy ment benefits

other than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1b-4)

b. If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since first interim in OPEB
liabilities?

No

c. If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since

first interim in OPEB contributions?

2 OPEB Liabilities
a. Total OPEB liability
b. OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable)
c. Total/Net OPEB liability (Line 2a minus Line 2b)

d. Is total OPEB liability based on the district's estimate
or an actuarial valuation?
e. If based on an actuarial v aluation, indicate the measurement date

of the OPEB v aluation.

3 OPEB Contributions
a. OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC) if av ailable, per
actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement Method
Current Year (2023-24)
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25)

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26)

b. OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund)
(Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)

Current Year (2023-24)

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25)

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26)

c. Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount)
Current Year (2023-24)

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25)

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26)

d. Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits
Current Year (2023-24)

1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25)

2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26)

4. Comments:

First Interim

(Form 01CSl, Item S7A)

Second Interim

392,127,242.00

392,127,242.00

124,661,230.00

124,661,230.00

267,466,012.00

267,466,012.00

Actuarial Actuarial
Jun 30, 2022 Jun 30, 2022
First Interim

(Form 01CSl, Item S7A)

Second Interim

29,218,877.00

29,218,877.00

24,494,972.00

24,494,972.00

25,202,818.00

25,202,818.00

25,542,562.08

24,214,599.94

24,494,972.00

20,994,972.00

25,202,818.00

21,702,818.00

17,332,844.00

17,332,844.00

15,832,886.00

15,832,886.00

17,012,160.00

17,012,160.00

3,199 3,199
3,199 3,199
3,199 3,199

The District's projected OPEB contribution for the current year and two subsequent years has decreased by $3,500,000 as a result of a
recent bargaining agreement settlement that eliminates this required contribution to the trust in order to offset a portion of the estimated
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

S7B. Identification of the District's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY : Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and Second Interim
data in items 2-4.

1 a. Does your district operate any self-insurance programs such as
workers' compensation, employ ee health and welfare, or property and liability ? (Do not Yes
include OPEB; which is covered in Section S7A) (If No, skip items 1b-4)
b. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since first interim in self- No
insurance liabilities?
c. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since first interim in self- No
insurance contributions?
First Interim
2 Self-Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CSl, Item S7B) Second Interim
a. Accrued liability for self-insurance programs 16,340,967.17 16,340,967.17
b. Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs 16,340,967.17 16,340,967.17
3 Self-Insurance Contributions First Interim
a. Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs (Form 01CSI, Item S7B) Second Interim
Current Year (2023-24) 15,010,795.97 15,010,795.97
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 15,010,795.97 15,010,795.97
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 15,010,795.97 15,010,795.97
b. Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs
Current Year (2023-24) 15,010,795.97 15,010,795.97
1st Subsequent Y ear (2024-25) 15,010,795.97 15,010,795.97
2nd Subsequent Y ear (2025-26) 15,010,795.97 15,010,795.97

4 Comments:
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analy ze the status of all employ ee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements that hav e been ratified since first interim projections, as well as new commitments provided as part of
previously ratified multiy ear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of the
required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded in future fiscal y ears.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The school district must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the county office of education (COE)
with an analy sis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The county superintendent shall review the analy sis relative to the criteria and standards and may provide written comments to the president of the district governing board and
superintendent.

S8A. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY : Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

No
Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections?
If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8B.
If No, continue with section S8A.
Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations
Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Y ear
(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Number of certificated (non-management) full-time-equiv alent (FTE)
positions 2,267.6 2,260.5 2,260.5 2,260.5
1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? Yes

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have been filed with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed with the COE, complete questions 2-5.

If No, complete questions 6 and 7.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?
No
If Yes, complete questions 6 and 7.
Negotiations Settled Since First Interim
2a. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: Mar 07, 2024
2b. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collective bargaining agreement
certified by the district superintendent and chief business official? No
If Yes, date of Superintendent and CBO certification:
3. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget revision adopted
to meet the costs of the collective bargaining agreement? Yes
If Yes, date of budget revision board adoption: Mar 07, 2024
4. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: Jul 01, 2023 End Date: Jun 30, 2025
5. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiy ear
projections (MY Ps)? Yes Yes Yes
One Year Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement
% change in salary schedule from prior year
or
Multiyear Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement 18,951,469 34,350,922 33,897,944
% change in salary sched:lle from p"rior year 6.0% 2.0% 0.0%
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiy ear salary commitments:

For the 2023-24 year, the salary increase is to be funded primarily with ESSER funds and a portion to be funded with savings recognized
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Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

Sacramento City Unified
Sacramento County

Negotiations Not Settled

6. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits

7. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases

Certificated (Non

) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MY Ps?
2 Total cost of H&W benefits

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4 Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear

Certificated (Non ) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated Since First Interim Projections

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim projections for prior y ear settlements included in the
interim?

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MY Ps

If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year

(2023-24)

1st Subsequent Year
(2024-25)

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

2nd Subsequent Year

(2025-26)

Current Year

1st Subsequent Year

2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Yes Yes Yes
52,666,378 57,301,019 62,343,509
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
8.8% 8.8% 8.8%
No

Certificated (Non

) Step and Column Adjustments

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MY Ps?
2. Cost of step & column adjustments
3. Percent change in step & column over prior y ear

Certificated (Non t) Attrition (layoffs and retirements)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MY Ps?
2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired employ ees included in the interim
and MY Ps?

Certificated (Non

t) - Other

Current Year

1st Subsequent Year

2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Yes Yes Yes
0 3,929,700 3,984,716
1.4% 1.4% 1.4%

Current Year

1st Subsequent Year

2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Yes No No
Yes No No

List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim projections and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employ ment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

The certificated bargaining agreement reached for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 y ear includes amendments to

class sizes, staff to student ratios, instructional aide ratios, employ ee transfers, changes to stipend salary

placements, and other provisions as outlined in the agreements.
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000

Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)
S8B. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non t) Employees

DATA ENTRY : Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections?
No

If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8C.

If No, continue with section S8B.
Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Number of classified (non-management) FTE positions 1,404.8 1,485.5 I 1,485.5 1,485.5
1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? No |

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have been filed with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed with the COE, complete questions 2-5.

If No, complete questions 6 and 7.

1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?

If Yes, complete questions 6 and 7. Yes

Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections

2a. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting:

2b. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collective bargaining agreement

certified by the district superintendent and chief business official?

If Yes, date of Superintendent and CBO certification:

3. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget revision adopted

to meet the costs of the collective bargaining agreement? n/a

If Yes, date of budget revision board adoption:

E
4. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: Datr:
5. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiy ear
projections (MY Ps)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior y ear

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiy ear salary commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

6. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 932,031

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
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Second Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund

Sacramento County

School District Criteria and Standards Review

Current Year

1st Subsequent Year

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MY Ps? Yes Yes Yes
2 Total cost of H&W benefits 26,206,651 28,512,837 31,021,966
3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
4 Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior y ear 8.8% 8.8% 8.8%
Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated Since First Interim
Are any new costs negotiated since first interim projections for prior y ear settlements included in the Yes
interim?
If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MY Ps 1,791,267 895,634 895,634

If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

2022.

The new costs are related to a bargaining agreement settlement reached with the District's Teamsters classified union that includes a 10%
salary schedule increase retroactive to July 1, 2022 plus an additional 6% salary schedule for specified job classes retroactive to July 1,

Current Year

1st Subsequent Year

2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MY Ps? Yes Yes Yes
2. Cost of step & column adjustments 0 487,788 491,203
3. Percent change in step & column over prior y ear 1% 7% 7%

Current Year

1st Subsequent Year

2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MY Ps? Yes No No
2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired employ ees included in the interim
Yes No No
and MY Ps?

Classified (Non-management) - Other

List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim and the cost impact of each (i.e.,

hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):
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Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

Sacramento City Unified
Sacramento County

34 67439 0000000
Form 01CSI
E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

88C. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees

DATA ENTRY : Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this

section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? No

If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9.

If No, continue with section S8C.

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year

1st Subsequent Year

2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Number of management, supervisor, and confidential FTE positions 324.2 342.4 342.4 342.4
1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections?
Yes
If Yes, complete question 2.
If No, complete questions 3 and 4.
. . . Yes
1b. Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?
If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.
Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2. Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)
Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiy ear
projections (MY Ps)? Yes Yes Yes
Total cost of salary settlement 12,277,966 6,199,724 6,199,724
Change in salary scheduI? from prlcir year 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
(may enter text, such as "Reopener”)
Negotiations Not Settled
3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits I 624,835 |
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases I 0 | 0 0
Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 6,891,893 7,498,379 8,158,237

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear 8.8% 8.8% 8.8%
Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step and Column Adjustments (2023-24) (2024-25) (2025-26)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MY Ps? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 0 342,922 345,322

3. Percent change in step and column ov er prior y ear 1% T% 1%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2023-24)

1st Subsequent Year

(2024-25)

2nd Subsequent Year
(2025-26)

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MY Ps? No

No

No

2. Total cost of other benefits
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Sacramento City Unified
Sacramento County

S9.

Second Interim 34 67439 0000000
General Fund Form 01CSI

School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Status of Other Funds

Analy ze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected

negative fund balance, prepare an interim report and multiy ear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be
addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY : Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1.

California Dept of Education

Are any funds other than the general fund
projected to have a negative fund

balance at the end of the current fiscal y ear? No

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a
multiy ear projection report for each fund.

If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal y ear. Provide reasons
for the negativ e balance(s) and explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.
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Second Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSl
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but may alert
the reviewing agency to the need for additional review. DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2 through A9; Item A1 is automatically completed based on data from
Criterion 9.

A1. Do cash flow projections show that the district will end the current fiscal y ear with a

negative cash balance in the general fund? (Data from Criterion 9B-1, Cash Balance, No

are used to determine Yes or No)

A2. Is the sy stem of personnel position control independent from the payroll sy stem?
No
A3. Is enroliment decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal y ears?
Yes
A4, Are new charter schools operating in district boundaries that impact the district's
enroliment, either in the prior or current fiscal y ear? No
AS5. Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current
or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that Yes
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of -living adjustment?
AG6. Does the district provide uncapped (100% employ er paid) health benefits for current or
retired employ ees? Yes
AT. Is the district's financial sy stem independent of the county office system?
Yes
AS8. Does the district have any reports that indicate fiscal distress pursuant to Education
Code Section 42127.6(a)? (If Yes, provide copies to the county office of education.) No
A9. Hav e there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business
official positions within the last 12 months? Yes

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:

(optional)
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Form MYPI

E82GDNF3X6(2023-24)

Projected Year

%

0/ o

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V8
File: MYPI, Version 6

Page 31 of 137
Page 1

Description 32?2 (FI:: Ios1|) (cg:ag?:m) P’Z‘?j%tziz" (Ccﬁ:.a E?(?IC) Pf‘%};tzig"
(A) (8) (D)

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;

current year - Column A - is extracted)

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 500,355,264.00 (2.77%) | 486,482,344.00 .24% 487,662,339.00

2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00%

3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 12,144,270.26 32.03% 16,034,263.00 0.00% 16,034,263.00

4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 7,588,878.97 (42.02%) 4,400,000.00 0.00% 4,400,000.00

5. Other Financing Sources

a. Transfers In 8900-8929 2,475,399.00 0.00% 2,475,399.00 0.00% 2,475,399.00

b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

c. Contributions 8980-8999 (122,013,844.32) 3.51% | (126,299,305.00) 7.78% | (136,125,709.00)
6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 400,549,967.91 (4.36%) 383,092,701.00 (2.26%) 374,446,292.00
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
1. Certificated Salaries

a. Base Salaries 218,797,663.98 214,917,921.98

b. Step & Column Adjustment 2,741,154.00 3,008,851.00

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments (6,620,896.00) 2,226,666.00

e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 218,797,663.98 (1.77%) 214,917,921.98 2.44% 220,153,438.98
2. Classified Salaries

a. Base Salaries 52,646,090.04 47,894,889.04

b. Step & Column Adjustment 335,264.00 335,264.00

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments (5,086,465.00) 1,038,555.00

e. Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 52,646,090.04 (9.02%) 47,894,889.04 2.87% 49,268,708.04
3. Employ ee Benefits 3000-3999 139,273,776.25 (2.11%) 136,334,882.00 8.17% 147,474,160.00
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 8,116,981.46 7.64% 8,736,981.00 0.00% 8,736,981.00
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 33,534,651.75 (5.44%) 31,711,263.00 0.00% 31,711,263.00
6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,547,176.63 (94.43%) 86,235.00 0.00% 86,235.00
7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100_77255?5 o 1,510,300.00 0.00% 1,510,300.00 0.00% 1,510,300.00
8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (8,610,122.07) (21.58%) (6,752,390.00) 4.59% (7,062,617.00)
9. Other Financing Uses

a. Transfers Out 7600-7629 107,137.79 0.00% 107,137.79 0.00% 107,137.79

b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)
11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 446,923,655.83 (2.77%) | 434,547,219.81 4.01% 451,985,606.81
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE
(Line A6 minus line B11) (46,373,687.92) (51,454,518.81) (77,539,314.81)
D. FUND BALANCE
1.Net Beginning Fund Balance(Form 011, line F1e) 135,640,173.48 89,266,485.56 37,811,966.75
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 89,266,485.56 37,811,966.75 (39,727,348.06)
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)
a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 325,000.00 325,000.00 325,000.00
b. Restricted 9740
c. Committed
1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00
2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00
d. Assigned 9780 848,577.00 848,577.00 848,577.00
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Projected Year

%

%

3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines E1a thru E2c)

88,092,908.56

36,638,389.75

Description 221?:2 (FI::: Ios1|) (c;:.ag?:m) Prz‘(’)j%‘zig" (cflz.a E-g(f/C) Prz‘?j:e;tzig"
(A) (B) (D)
1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 17,009,348.00 15,348,893.00 14,734,222.00
2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 71,083,560.56 21,289,496.75 Neg:z:gnﬁ;:tz (55,635,147.06)
f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 89,266,485.56 37,811,966.75 (39,727,348.06)
E. AVAILABLE RESERVES
1. General Fund
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 17,009,348.00 15,348,893.00 14,734,222.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 71,083,560.56 21,289,496.75 (55,635,147.06)
(Enter other reserv e projections in Columns C and E for subsequent
years 1 and 2; current year - Column A - is extracted)
2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17)
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00

(40,900,925.06)

F. ASSUMPTIONS

SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Adjustments include projected expenditures related to bargaining

the one-time use of restricted funds to pay for unrestricted ongoing
salaries and benefits expenditures.

agreement settlements, removal of 1x retroactive costs recognized in
the 23-24 year, the addition of ongoing vacancy savings budgeted, and

Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and

second subsequent fiscal y ears. Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments

projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the
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Projected Year

%

%

Description 2?::3 (F(T::rtna Ios1|) (c;:.ag?:m) Prz‘(’)j%‘zig" (cflz.a E-gg/C) Prz‘?j:‘%tzig"
(A) (B) (D)

(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;

current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,478,216.00 0.00% 2,478,216.00 0.00% 2,478,216.00
2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 148,230,947.19 (73.66%) 39,039,779.00 0.00% 39,039,779.00
3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 115,349,692.83 (12.33%) 101,127,408.00 0.00% 101,127,408.00
4. Other Local Rev enues 8600-8799 4,064,125.37 (48.43%) 2,095,805.00 0.00% 2,095,805.00
5. Other Financing Sources

a. Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

c. Contributions 8980-8999 122,013,844.32 3.51% 126,299,305.00 7.78% 136,125,709.00
6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 392,136,825.71 (30.88%) 271,040,513.00 3.63% 280,866,917.00
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
1. Certificated Salaries

a. Base Salaries 91,290,98